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Over decades, it has been the top priority at IMC to delight its 
customers. Happiness and respect are our key goals and we 
work hard to ensure that every customer’s experience at Toyota 
is enjoyable. This is manifested in our pleasant customer service, 
the availability of genuine products and the complete satisfaction 
of customers’ needs.

DELIGHTING 
CUSTOMERS





Indus Motor Company Limited (IMC) is a joint venture between certain companies of House 
of Habib of Pakistan, Toyota Motor Corporation and Toyota Tsusho Corporation of Japan. 
Incorporated in 1989, the Company manufactures and markets Toyota brand vehicles 
in Pakistan. These include several variants of the flagship ‘Corolla’ in the passenger car 
segment, ‘Hilux’ in the light commercial vehicle segment and ‘Fortuner’ in Sports Utility 
Vehicle segment.

IMC’s manufacturing facility and offices are located at a 107 acre site in Port Qasim, 
Karachi. The product is delivered to end customers nationwide through a strong network 
of 46 independent 3S Dealerships spread across the country.

Over 29 years, since inception, IMC has sold more than 875,000 CBU/CKD vehicles. It 
has also demonstrated impressive growth in terms of volumetric increase.  From a modest 
beginning of 20 vehicles per day production in 1993, daily production of the Company 
has now increased to 268 (with overtime) units per day in 2018-19. This has been made 
possible through the development of human talent embracing the ‘Toyota Way’ of quality 
and lean manufacturing.

In this period, IMC has made large scale investments in enhancing its own capacity and 
in meeting customer requirements for new products. Corolla is, today, the largest selling 
automotive brand model in Pakistan. This country is the highest Corolla-selling nation in 
the Asia-Pacific region and also has the distinction of being # 1 in Toyota’s Asian market.

The Company has a workforce of 3,349 persons at year end. It invests heavily in training 
the team members and management employees and creating a culture of high performing 
and empowered teams who work seamlessly across the various processes in search of 
quality and continuous improvement.

IMC employees are encouraged to pursue high standards of business ethics and safety 
according to the core values of the Company; they communicate candidly by giving bad 
news first and extend respect to people. Employees rate IMC high on work environment 
and level of job satisfaction as per the bi-annual TMC morale survey.

IMC has played a major role in the development of the entire value chain of the local auto 
industry. It is also proud to have contributed in poverty alleviation at the grass root level by 
nurturing localization. This, in turn, has directly created thousands of job opportunities and 
transferred technology to over 46 vendors supplying parts. The Company is also a major 
tax payer and significant contributor to the Government’s exchequer.

Corporate Profile
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Strengthening 
NETWORK
IMC believes in developing networks of confidence and 
dependability with its customers and partners. Sustaining and 
preserving the environment is our key goal. We also endorse 
and pursue localization with great diligence in an effort to stay 
connected with our roots. Our expanding network of dealerships 
keeps us bonded to a motivated cycle of growth and accessibility. 
We make significant advances to further strengthen our hallmark 
ownership culture and keep our fundamentals strong.
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“To be the most respected and successful enterprise, 
delighting customers with a wide range of products and 
solutions in the automobile industry with the best people and 
the best technology.”

Vision

Act #
Action, 

Commitment, 
Teamwork

Respect & Corporate Image

Best Employer

Profitability

Production & Sales

Customer Satisfaction

Quality & Safety 1

Vision & Mission
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Mission
IMC’s Mission is reflected in the Company’s slogan

Action, Commitment and Teamwork to 
become # 1 in Pakistan
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•	 World class production quality
•	 Achieving the ultimate goal of complete customer satisfaction
•	 Being seen as the best employer
•	 Fostering the spirit of teamwork
•	 Inculcating ethical and honest practices

Core Values
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Gaining
TRUST
Customer satisfaction takes us to new heights. It is this 
indispensable trust of customers in the Toyota Way, which keeps 
us moving forward. Toyota is a name that goes hand in hand 
with caring for its customers. We have never failed to satisfy our 
customer’s expectations and have always facilitated them in every 
aspect. 





Guiding Principles
Toyota

President, Toyota Motor Corporation
Akio Toyoda

Honor the language and 
spirit of the law of every 
country and region, and 
undertake open and fair 
business activities to be a 
strong corporate citizen of 
the world.

Respect the culture and 
customs of every country 
and region, and contribute 
to economic and social 
development through 
corporate activities in their 
respective communities.

Dedicate our business to 
providing clean and safe 
products and to enhancing 
the quality of life everywhere 
through all of our activities.

Pursue growth through 
harmony with the global 
community via innovative 
management.

Foster a corporate culture 
that enhances both individual 
creativity and the value of 
teamwork, while honoring mutual 
trust and respect between labor 
and management.

Create and develop 
advanced technologies 
and provide outstanding 
products and services that 
fulfill the needs of custormers 
worldwide.

Work with business partners 
in research and manufacturing 
to achieve stable, long-term 
growth and mutual benefits, 
while remaining open to new 
partnerships.
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Preamble 

We, Toyota Motor Corporation and our subsidiaries, take 
initiative to contribute to the harmonious and sustainable 
development of society to earth through all business 
activities that we carry out in each country and region, 
based on our Guiding Principles. We comply with local, 
national and international laws and regulations as well as 
the spirit thereof, and conduct our business operations 
with honesty and integrity. In order to contribute to 
sustainable development, we believe that management 
interacting with its stakeholders as described below is of 
considerable importance, and we will endeavor to build 
and maintain sound relationships with our stakeholders 
through open and fair communication. We expect our 
business partners to support this initiative and act in 
accordance with it.

Customers

•	 Based on our “Customer First” philosophy, we 
develop and provide innovative, safe and outstanding  
high-quality products and services that meet a wide 
variety of customer demands to enrich the lives of 
people around the world. (Guiding Principles: 3 and 4)

•	 We will endeavor to protect the personal information 
of customers and everyone else we are engaged in 
business with, in accordance with the letter and spirit 
of each country and region’s privacy laws. (Guiding 
Principle: 1)

Employees

•	 We respect our employees and believe that the 
success of our business is led by each individual’s 
creativity and solid teamwork. We support personal 
growth for our employees. (Guiding Principle: 5)

•	 We support equal employment opportunities and 
diversity and inclusion for our employees. We do not 
discriminate against them. (Guiding Principle: 5)

•	 We strive to provide fair working conditions and to 
maintain a safe and healthy working environment for 
all our employee. (Guiding Principle: 5)

•	 We respect and honor the human rights of people 
involved in our business and, in particular, do not use 
or tolerate any form of forced or child labor. (Guiding 
Principle: 5

•	 Through communication and dialogue with our 
employees, we build and share the value,”Mutual 
Trust and Mutual Responsibility,” working together for 
the success of our employees and the company. We 
recognize our employees’ right to freely associate, 
or not to associate, complying with the laws of the 
countries and regions in which we operate. (Guiding 
Principle: 5)

•	 Management of each company takes leadership 
in fostering a corporate culture and implementing 
policies that promote ethical behavior. (Guiding 
Principles: 1 and 5)

Business Partners 

•	 We respect our business partners such as suppliers 
and dealers and work with them through long-term 
relationships to realize mutual growth based on 
mutual trust. (Guiding Principle: 7)

•	 Whenever we seek a new business partner, we 
are open to any and all candidates, regardless of 
nationality or scale, and evaluate them based on their 
overall strengths. (Guiding Principle: 7)

•	 We maintain fair and free competition in accordance 
with the letter and spirit of each country and region’s 
competition laws. (Guiding Principles: 1 and 7)

Shareholders

•	 We strive to enhance corporate value while achieving 
stable and long-term growth for the benefit of our 
shareholders. (Guiding Principle: 6)

•	 We provide our shareholders and investors with 
timely and fair disclosure on our operating results and 
financial condition. (Guiding Principles: 1 and 6)

Global Society / Local Communities

Environment

We aim for growth that is in harmony with the environment
by seeking to minimize the environmental impact of our 
business operations, such as by working to reduce the 
effect of our vehicles and operations on climate change 
and biodiversity. We strive to develop, establish, and 
promote technologies that enable the environment and 
economy to coexist harmoniously, and to build close 
and cooperative relationships with a wide spectrum of 
individuals and organizations involved in environmental 
preservation. (Guiding Principle: 3)

Community

•	 We implement our philosophy of respect for people 
by honoring the culture, customs, history and laws of 
each country and region. (Guiding Principle: 2)

•	 We constantly pursue safer, cleaner, and improved 
technologies that satisfy the evolving needs of society 
for sustainable mobility. (Guiding Principles: 3 and 4)

•	 We do not tolerate bribery of or by any business 
partner, government agency, or public authority, 
and maintain honest and fair relationships with 
government agencies and public authorities. (Guiding 
Principle: 1)

Social contribution

•	 Wherever we do business, we actively promote 
and engage, both individually and with partners, in 
social contribution activities that help strengthen 
communities and contribute to the enrichment of 
society. (Guiding Principle: 2)

Contribution toward Sustainable Development
CSR Policy
Toyota Motor Corporation
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Strategic Objectives

• 	 Following our “Customer 
First” philosophy in 
manufacturing and 
providing high quality 
vehicles and services 
that meet the needs of 
Pakistani customers.

• 	 Enhancing the quality and 
reach of our 3S Dealership 
Network.

• 	 Employing customer 
insight and feedback for 
continuous corporate 
renewal, including product 
development, improving 
service and customer care.

Achieving Market 
Leadership by Delivering 
Value to Customers

• 	 Maximizing QRD (Quality, 
Reliability and Durability) by 
built-in engineering.

• 	 Transferring technology and 
promoting indigenization at 
IMC and its Vendors.

• 	 Raising the bar in all support 
functions to meet Toyota 
Global Standards.

Bringing Toyota Quality
to Pakistan

• 	 Fostering a Kaizen culture 
and mindset at IMC, its 
Dealers and Vendors.

• 	 Implementing Toyota 
Production System.

• 	 Removing waste in all areas 
and operating in the lowest 
cost quartile of the industry.

Optimizing Cost by 
Kaizen

16



• 	 Treating employees as the most 
important sustainable competitive 
resource.

•	 Providing a continuous learning 
environment that promotes 
individual creativity and 
teamwork.

•	 Supporting equal employment 
opportunities, diversity and 
inclusion without discrimination.

• 	 Building competitive value 
through mutual trust and mutual 
responsibility between the Indus 
Team and the Company.

Respecting our people Become a Good Corporate Citizen

• 	 Following ethical business practices 
and the laws of the land.

• 	 Engaging in philanthropic and social 
activities that contribute to the 
enrichment of the Pakistani society, 
especially in areas that are strategic 
to both societal and business 
needs e.g. road safety, technical 
education, environment protection, 
etc.

• 	 Enhancing corporate value and 
respect while achieving a stable and 
long term growth for the benefit of 
our shareholders.
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Ali S. Habib 
Chairman
Ali S. Habib is the Chairman of Indus Motor Company Limited and is also 
the Founding Director of the Company. He also serves as a Member on 
the Board of Directors of Thal Limited, Shabbir Tiles & Ceramics Limited and 
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited.

He is a graduate in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Minnesota, 
USA. He has attended the PMD Program at Harvard University.

Yuji Takarada 
Director & Vice Chairman
Yuji Takarada has been appointed as a Director on the Board and Vice 
Chairman of Indus Motor Company Limited with effect from January 2018. 
He has been serving at Toyota Motor Corporation for over 25 years and has 
worked in different capacities. He has also served as Marketing Director for 
Toyota Astra Motor (TAM). 

He has completed his Bachelor’s degree in Sociology from Hitotsubashi University 
in Japan.

Ali Asghar Jamali 
Chief Executive
Ali Asghar Jamali was appointed as Chief Executive Officer in January 2017. 
He has been with the Company since October 2000 and has served in key 
roles in various departments, owing to which he has acquired rich experience 
in end-to-end management of company operations.

He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and has 
attended the Advanced Management Program at Harvard University and the 
Accelerated Management Program at Wharton School of Business in the USA.

Board of Directors

18



Parvez Ghias 
Director

Parvez Ghias was Chief Executive of the Company from 2005 to 2016 and 
continues to serve Indus Motor as Director on the Board. He is currently the 
Chief Executive Officer at Habib University Foundation and Vice Chairman - 
Automotive for the House of Habib. He also serves as a Director on the boards 
of Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited and Shell Pakistan Limited.. 

Prior to joining the Company and House of Habib, he was the Vice President 
and CFO at Engro Corporation (formerly Engro Chemical Pakistan Limited) and 
served as Director on Engro subsidiaries. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants from England & Wales and holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics 
and Statistics.

Azam Faruque 
Independent Director

Azam Faruque was elected as a Director of the Company in October 
2014. He is a Director and CEO of Cherat Cement Co. Limited, a Ghulam 
Faruque Group (GFG) company. Apart from 27 years he has spent in the 
cement industry and other GFG businesses, he has served as a member 
on the Board of various public and private sector institutions. Currently, he 
is a Director of Faruque (Pvt) Limited, Greaves Pakistan (Pvt) Limited, Unicol 
Limited, International Industries Limited, Atlas Battery Limited, Habib University 
Foundation and State Bank of Pakistan.  

He is an Electrical Engineering and Computer Science graduate from Princeton 
University, USA, and has also completed his MBA with High Honors from the 
University of Chicago.
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Imran A. Habib 
Director
Imran A. Habib was appointed as Director of Indus Motor Company Limited 
in February 2019. He is Senior Vice President at Habib American Bank in 
New York, USA.  Prior to his transfer to the United States in 2016, he served as 
Senior Vice President with Habib Bank AG Zurich in the United Arab Emirates 
from 2008-2016. He has a graduate degree in Business Administration from 
Bryant University (2002), USA, and has attended the Program for Leadership 
Development at Harvard Business School. 

Tetsuya Ezumi  
Director

Tetsuya Ezumi was appointed as Director of Indus Motor Company Limited 
in May 2018. He has been associated with Toyota Motor Corporation from 
1985 to 2017, during which time he has held various senior positions. He 
joined Toyota Tsusho Corporation in 2018 and he is presently Executive Officer 
of Toyota Tsusho Corporation and has served as director on the Board of various 
Toyota Group companies in countries around the globe.

He is a graduate from Faculty of Law of Kagawa University, Japan.

Board of Directors

Mohamedali R. Habib 
Director 
Mohamedali R. Habib is the Founding Director of Indus Motor Company 
Limited. He has been an Executive Director of Habib Metropolitan Bank 
Limited since 2004 and currently serves as the Chairman of the Board of 
Directors of the Bank. He also serves as a Member on the Board of Thal Limited 
and Habib Insurance Company Limited. He was appointed as Joint-President & 
Division Head (Asia) & Member of General Management of Habib Bank AG Zurich 
in 2011.

He has a graduate degree in Business Management – Finance from Clark University, 
USA.
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Sadatoshi Kashihara  
Director
Sadatoshi Kashihara was appointed as Director of Indus Motor Company 
Limited in January 2017 and also serves as Director Manufacturing. He has 
been with Toyota Group since 1990 and has held various senior executive 
positions. He has vast experience in the areas of Production and Plant 
Engineering at various Toyota plants in the world.

He is a graduate from the Miyazaki University, Japan

Susumu Matsuda  
Director 
Susumu Matsuda was appointed as a Director of Indus Motor Company 
Limited in February 2018. Currently he is serving as the President of Toyota 
Motor Asia Pacific Pte Ltd and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of Asia & China 
region, Toyota. He is presently director on the Board of Directors of various 
Toyota Group companies in countries around the globe. 

He graduated from Kobe University, Japan.
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Senior 
MANAGEMENT 
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Toyota takes pride in ensuring that we provide customer service 
with a smile. This enables us to propagate significant growth in our 
brand. It boosts the advances that we have made in our strong 
areas which are our hallmark ownership culture and our strong 
fundamentals. It is our continued effort to strive towards perfecting 
our products and assisting customers with reliable after-sales 
service. We take pride in assessing and catering to our customer’s 
needs and wishes.

Ensuring 
SATISFACTION





Company Information

Bankers
Bank Alfalah Limited
Bank Al-Habib Limited
Citibank N.A.
Habib Bank Limited
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
MCB Bank Limited
Meezan Bank Limited
National Bank of Pakistan
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited
United Bank Limited

Auditors
A.F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants,
State Life Building No. 1-C,
I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi.

Legal Advisors
A.K. Brohi & Company
Mansoor Ahmed Khan & Co.
Mahmud & Co.
Sayeed & Sayeed

Share Registrar
CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block “B”, 
S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, 
Karachi-74400.
Tel:      0800-23275
UAN:  111-111-500
Email: info@cdcsrsl.com

Credit Rating
Credit Rating Company:
VIS Credit Rating Company Limited
Long term rating: AA+
Short term rating: A-1+

Factory / Registered Office
Plot No. N.W.Z/1/P-1, Port Qasim Authority, 
Bin Qasim, Karachi.
Phone: (PABX) (92-21) 34720041-48
              (UAN) (92-21) 111-TOYOTA (869-682) 
Fax:                  (92-21) 34720040  
Website:           www.toyota-indus.com

Chief Financial Officer
Mr.  Muhammad Aqeel Loon

Company Secretary
Mr. Muhammad Arif Anzer

Board Audit Committee Members
Mr. Azam Faruque (Chairman)
Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib 
Mr. Imran A. Habib
Mr. Susumu Matsuda
Mr. Tetsuya Ezumi
Mr. Parvez Ghias
Mr. Azam Khan (Secretary)

Board Human Resource and Remuneration 
Committee Members
Mr. Azam Faruque (Chairman)
Mr. Ali S. Habib 
Mr. Parvez Ghias
Mr. Ali Asghar Jamali
Mr. Mohammad Ibadullah (Secretary)

Board Ethics Committee Members
Mr. Parvez Ghias (Chairman)
Mr. Ali Asghar Jamali
Mr. Imran A. Habib
Mr. Mohammad Ibadullah (Secretary)
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IMC’s Basic Approach to Corporate Governance

IMC has a range of long-standing in-house 
committees responsible for monitoring and 
discussing management and corporate activities from 
viewpoints of various stakeholders to make prompt 
decisions for developing strategies, speeding up 
operations while ensuring heightened transparency 
and the fulfillment of social obligations. IMC has a 
unique corporate culture that places emphasis on 
problem solving and preventative measures in line 
with Toyota Global Standards.

Basic Concept of Compliance

IMC follows the guiding principles of Toyota and 
not only complies with local laws and regulations, 
but also meets social norms, corporate ethics 
and expectations of various stakeholders. IMC 
undertakes open and fair corporate activities to meet 
local standards as well as Toyota Global Standards. 
The Audit Committee consists of four non-Executive 
Directors and one independant Director.

Board Human Resource and Remuneration 
Committee

The Remuneration Committee is a sub-committee 
of the Board. It recommends human resource 
management policies to the Board. It also 
recommends selection, evaluation, compensation 
and the succession plan of the CEO and Senior 
Management employees who directly report to 
the CEO. The Committee consists of three Non-
Executive Directors, one Executive Director and the 
CEO.

Board Ethics Committee

The Committee has the responsibility of overseeing 
ethical policies and compliance by the Company. 
It provides expeditious actions on disclosures of 
wrongdoing. The Ethics Committee also reviews 
and investigates incidents of whistle-blowing. The 
Committee consists of the CEO and two Non-
Executive Directors.

Board Share Transfer Committee

The Board Share Transfer Committee has been 
authorized by the Board to approve transfer of 
shares. All Share  Transfer Resolutions are noted 
by the Board of Directors in subsequent meetings.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee assists the Board in 
fulfilling its oversight responsibility for the investment 
in assets of the company. It evaluates the capital 
expenditures required to be made and recommends 
the same to the Board for approval. The Committee 
is also responsible for formulating the overall policies 
for investment in fixed assets, subject to approval 
by the Board, and establishing investment guidelines 
in furtherance of those policies. The Committee 
consists of the CEO, two Directors, the CFO and 
Secretary.

Marketing Technical Co-ordination Committee

Marketing Technical Co-ordination Committee 
is a management committee responsible for 
synchronization between the marketing and technical 
departments. The committee also controls new 
products or minor model specification changes and 
schedules. The Committee is chaired by the CEO 
every month and representatives from marketing 
and technical departments attend the meeting.

ACT #1 Management Committee

The ACT #1 Management Committee is responsible 
for the monitoring of organizational KPIs and 
stewardship of financial performance every 
month. It also reviews departmental targets and 
accomplishments achieved during the month. In 
addition ACT #1 reviews government regulatory 
affairs including macro-economic situations which 
results in formation of the Company’s strategy and 
risk management policies. The meeting is conducted 
by the CEO with representation from all departments.

Safety, Health and Environment Steering 
Committee

The Steering Committee meets on a monthly basis 
and keeps a close eye on company wide Safety, 
Health and Environment (S.H.E) statistics, KPI 
trends, relevant local laws compliance, promulgating 
drive and focus on S.H.E. right from the top; enabling 
Management to have a first hand feel of S.H.E issues 
prevailing on the shop floor and ways to resolve them 
via efficient and swift decision-making. The S.H.E 
Steering committee, chaired by the CEO, formulates 
the overall policies and S.H.E framework for 
the company.
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Promoting 
LOCALIZATION
We believe in keeping true to our roots and preserving our local 
economy and heritage. IMC has always aspired to boost localization 
and create employment opportunities for the local population. 
Success in this objective has allowed us to contribute to our local 
economy. We actively strive to gain maximum indigenization in 
parts and processes without compromising on quality. Our goal of 
localization and customer delight work in corroboration. 





Factory / Registered Office
Plot No. N.W.Z./1/P-1, Port Qasim Authority 
Bin Qasim, Karachi.
PABX: 	 (92-21) 34720041-48
Fax: 	 (92-21) 34720040

Share Registrar
CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block “B”
S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, 
Karachi-74400.
Tel: 	 0800-23275
UAN: 	 111-111-500
Email: 	 info@cdcsrsl.com

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m. on October 8, 2019 at the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of  Pakistan, Karachi.

Shareholders as on October 1, 2019 are encouraged to participant and vote.

Any shareholder may appoint a proxy to vote on his or her behalf. Proxies must be deposited with the Company 
not less than 48 hours before the Meeting.

Ownership
On June 30, 2019 there were 4,126 shareholders on record of the Company’s ordinary shares.

Dividend Payment
The proposal of the Board of Directors for dividend payment will be considered at the Annual General Meeting. 
The net amount of dividend will be credited into respective account of the shareholder listed in the register of 
members as on October 1, 2019. Income Tax will be deducted in accordance with the provisions of Income 
Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Shareholder Information
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Listing on Stock Exchanges
Indus Motor Company Limited equity shares are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Stock Code
The stock code for dealer in equity shares of Indus Motor Company Limited at PSX is INDU.
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Operating Highlights

 158.0 
139.7

Net Revenues (Rs. in billion) (Units)

(Units)

2019
2018

 65,346
62,886

Vehicle Production

2019
2018

 66,211 
 64,000

Vehicle Sales

2019

2018
  174.5

 200.7

Earnings Per Share (Rs.)

2019
2018

Year ended June 30
2019 2018

Profit after Tax Rs in billion  13.7  15.8 
Vehicle Sales Units  66,211  64,000 
Vehicle Production Units  65,346  62,886 
Net Revenues Rs in billion  158.0 139.7
Earnings Per Share Rs  174.5 200.7
Annual Cash Dividend Per Share Rs  115.0  140.0 
Shareholders’ Equity Rs in billion 40.0  36.7 
Contribution to National Exchequer Rs in billion 52.3  49.0 
Manpower No. of employees  3,349  3,266 
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Financial Summary

% Change Year ended June 30

For The Year: 2019 Vs 
2018 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Units sold 3%  66,211  64,000  60,586  64,584  57,387  34,470 

Net revenues Rs in billion 13%  158.0 139.7  112.0  108.8  96.5  57.1 

Profit before tax Rs in billion -17%  19.0  23.0  19.1  17.4  14.1  5.0 

Profit after tax Rs in billion -13%  13.7  15.8  13.0  11.5  9.1  3.9 

Return on equity Percentage -20%  34.2  42.9  41.7  41.5  37.9  19.4 

Per Share Data:

 
Earnings (EPS)  Rs -13%  174.5  200.7  165.4  145.7  115.9  49.3 

Cash dividends Rs -18% 115  140.0  115.0  100.0  80.0  29.5 

Shareholders’ equity Rs 9%  509.5  467.5  396.9  351.5  305.8  253.4 

At Year-End:  

 
Total assets Rs in billion -21%  64.8  81.9  63.9  57.5  50.4  26.1 

Shareholders’ equity Rs in billion 9% 40.0  36.7  31.2  27.6  24.0  19.9 

Share Performance (June 30):  

Price per share Rs -15%  1,203.9  1,421.5  1,793.6  939.5  1,249.0  537.9 

Market capitalization Rs in billion -15%  94.6  111.7  141.0  73.8  98.2  42.3 

Net Revenues Net Income / ROE EPS / Dividend per share

(Rs)(Rs)(%) 
(Rs in billion) (Rs in billion) 

Net Income 
ROE (Right scale) 

EPS
Cash Dividend Per Share (Right scale) 
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Guaranteeing 
QUALITY
Indus Motor Company upholds the best traditions of the Toyota 
Way which has always enabled it to ensure consistency. In keeping 
with its promise of quality in all its products, IMC has never 
compromised on high standards in the toughest of times. Quality 
is a trademark of the Toyota brand name. It is this commitment 
to quality that has further sharpened our focus and enhanced 
efficiency in every venture.





2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 
POSITION ----------------------- (Rs in million) -------------------------- ---------------------- (Percentage) ------------------------

Property, plant and equipment  13,805  7,225  6,258  4,919  5,184  6,032  21.31  8.82  9.80  8.55  10.29  23.10 

Intangibles  93  87  88  19  10  1  0.14  0.11  0.14  0.03  0.02  0.00 

Long-term loans and advances  16  49  9  4  11  29  0.02  0.06  0.01  0.01  0.02  0.11 

Long-term investments  -    -    -    5,006  4,955  -    -    -    -    8.70  9.83  -   

Long-term deposits  11  9  9  10  10  10  0.02  0.01  0.01  0.02  0.02  0.04 

Deferred taxation  -    14  74  199  5  -    -    0.02  0.12  0.35  0.01  -   

Stores and spares  544  301  204  154  179  142  0.84  0.37  0.32  0.27  0.35  0.54 

Stock-in-trade  13,560  11,151  9,318  7,785  6,150  4,469  20.93  13.61  14.59  13.53  12.20  17.12 

Trade debts  2,548  1,453  759  1,132  448  1,737  3.93  1.77  1.19  1.97  0.89  6.65 

Loans and advances  3,728  3,715  1,653  1,125  1,221  1,006  5.75  4.53  2.59  1.96  2.42  3.85 

Short-term prepayments  32  15  21  46  19  15  0.05  0.02  0.03  0.08  0.04  0.06 

Accrued return  35  120  376  513  419  87  0.05  0.15  0.59  0.89  0.83  0.33 

Other receivables  3,110  556  402  191  168  176  4.80  0.68  0.63  0.33  0.33  0.67 

Short-term Investments  23,402  55,031  41,488  33,697  26,257  9,121  36.12  67.17  64.95  58.57  52.10  34.93 

Taxation - payment less provision  617  -    -    -    -    1,216  0.95  -    -    -    -    4.66 

Cash and bank balances  3,282  2,201  3,221  2,738  5,365  2,068  5.07  2.69  5.04  4.76  10.65  7.92 

Total Assets  64,783  81,927  63,880  57,537  50,399  26,111  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00 

 

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital  786  786  786  786  786  786  1.21  0.96  1.23  1.37  1.56  3.01 

Reserves  39,259  35,958  30,411  26,844  23,250  19,130  60.60  43.89  47.61  46.65  46.13  73.26 

Shareholders' Equity  40,045  36,744  31,197  27,630  24,036  19,916  61.81  44.85  48.84  48.02  47.69  76.27 

Long Term Loan  81  -    -    -    -    -  0.13  -    -    -    -   -

Deferred taxation  425  -    -    -    -    219  0.66  -    -    -    -    0.84 

Deferred Revenue  57  27  4  -    -    -   0.09  0.03  0.01  -    -    -   

Trade, dividend and other payables 16,245  15,974  9,683  10,035  9,181  4,430  25.08  19.50  15.16  17.44  18.22  16.97 

Advances from customers and dealers  7,930  27,491  22,189  19,127  16,193  1,546  12.24  33.56  34.74  33.24  32.13  5.92 

Taxation - provision less payment  -    1,691  807  745  990  -    -    2.06  1.26  1.29  1.96  -   

Total Equity and Liabilities  64,783  81,927  63,880  57,537  50,399  26,111  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00 

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Net Sales  157,996 139,716 111,943  108,759  96,516  57,064  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00 

Cost of sales  138,805  115,831  92,450  91,027  82,272  51,270  87.85 82.9     82.59  83.70  85.24  89.85 

Gross profit  19,191 23,885 19,493  17,731  14,244  5,794  12.15  17.10  17.41  16.30  14.76  10.15 

Distribution costs  1,404  1,284  1,228  1,061  996  794  0.89  0.92  1.10  0.98  1.03  1.39 

Administrative expenses  1,410  1,524  1,053  931  799  635  0.89  1.09  0.94  0.86  0.83  1.11 

Other operating expenses  235  194  177  144  119  52  0.15  0.14  0.16  0.13  0.12  0.09 

WPPF and WWF  1,406  1,705  1,418  1,285  1,052  372  0.89  1.22  1.27  1.18  1.09  0.65 

Operating income  4,307  3,901  3,593  3,164  2,907  1,113  2.73  2.79  3.21  2.91  3.01  1.95 

Finance costs  67 80 69  77  52  38  0.04  0.06  0.06  0.07  0.05  0.07 

Profit before taxation  18,976  22,999  19,141  17,397  14,133  5,016  12.01  16.46  17.10  16.00  14.64  8.79 

Taxation  5,261  7,227  6,140  5,943  5,022  1,143  3.33  5.17  5.48  5.46  5.20  2.00 

Profit after taxation  13,715  15,772  13,001  11,455  9,110  3,873  8.68  11.29  11.61  10.53  9.44  6.79 

Vertical Analysis
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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
2019 vs 

2018
2018 vs 
2017

2017 vs 
2016

2016 vs 
2015

2015 vs 
2014

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 
POSITION ----------------- (Rs in million) -------------------- ----------------- (Percentage) -----------------

Property, plant and equipment  13,805  7,225  6,258  4,919  5,184  6,032  91.07  15.45  27.22  (5.11)  (14.07)

Intangibles  93  87  88  19  10  1  6.90  (1.14)  356.17  98.32  872.70 

Long-term loans and advances  16  49  9  4  11  29  (67.35)  444.44  137.22  (65.81)  (62.25)

Long-term investments  -    -    -    5,006  4,955  -    -    -    (100.00)  1.03  100   

Long-term deposits  11  9  9  10  10  10  22.22  -    (9.53)  2.91  -   

Deferred taxation  -    14  74  199  5  -     (3,135.71)  (81.08)  (62.74)   3,851.10  102.42   

Stores and spares  544  301  204  154  179  142  80.73  47.55  32.85  (14.02)  26.08 

Stock-in-trade  13,560  11,151  9,318  7,785  6,150  4,469  21.60  19.67  19.69  26.58  37.61 

Trade debts  2,548  1,453  759  1,132  448  1,737  75.36  91.44  (32.93)  152.75  (74.23)

Loans and advances  3,728  3,715  1,653  1,125  1,221  1,006  0.35  124.74  46.87  (7.79)  21.33 

Short-term prepayments  32  15  21  46  19  15  113.33  (28.57)  (53.87)  140.60  26.62 

Accrued return  35  120  376  513  419  87  (70.83)  (68.09)  (26.76)  22.57  379.46 

Other receivables  3,110  556  402  191  168  176  459.35  38.31  110.14  14.04  (4.51)

Short-term Investments  23,402  55,031  41,488  33,697  26,257  9,121  (57.47)  32.64  23.12  28.34  187.86 

Taxation - payment less provision  617  -    -    -    -    1,216 136.49  -    -    -    (181.41)

Cash and bank balances  3,282  2,201  3,221  2,738  5,365  2,068  49.11  (31.67)  17.66  (48.98)  159.44 

Total Assets  64,783  81,927  63,880  57,537  50,399  26,111  (20.93)  28.25  11.02  14.16  93.02 

 

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital  786  786  786  786  786  786  -    -    -    -    -   

Reserves  39,259  35,958  30,411  26,844  23,250  19,130  9.18  18.24  13.29  15.46  21.54 

Shareholders' Equity  40,045  36,744  31,197  27,630  24,036  19,916  8.98  17.78  12.91  14.95  20.69 

Long Term Loan  81  -    -    -    -    -    100.00  -    -    -    -   

Deferred taxation  425  -    -    -    -    219  100.00  -    -    -    (100.00)

Deferred Revenue  57  27  4  -    -    -    111.11  575.00  100.00  -    -   

Trade, dividend and other payables  16,245  15,974  9,683  10,035  9,181  4,430  1.70  64.97  (3.51)  9.31  107.22 

Advances from customers and dealers  7,930  27,491  22,189  19,127  16,193  1,546  (71.15)  23.89  16.01  18.12  947.60 

Taxation - provision less payment  -    1,691  807  745  990  -    (100.00)  109.54  8.34  (24.78)  100.00 

Total Equity and Liabilities  64,783  81,927  63,880  57,537  50,399  26,111  (20.93)  28.25  11.02  14.16  93.02 

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Net Sales  157,996  139,716  111,943  108,759  96,516  57,064  13.08  24.81  2.93  12.68  69.14 

Cost of sales  138,805  115,831  92,450  91,027  82,272  51,270  19.83  25.29  1.56  10.64  60.47 

Gross profit  19,191  23,885  19,493  17,731  14,244  5,794  (19.65)  22.53  9.94  24.48  145.86 

Distribution costs  1,404  1,284  1,228  1,061  996  794  9.35  4.56  15.75  6.51  25.52 

Administrative expenses  1,410  1,524  1,053  931  799  635  (7.48)  44.73  13.13  16.54  25.85 

Other operating expenses  235  194  177  144  119  52  21.13  9.60  23.05  20.42  129.67 

WPPF and WWF  1,406  1,705  1,418  1,285  1,052  372  (17.54)  20.24  10.31  22.15  182.91 

Operating income  4,307  3,901  3,593  3,164  2,907  1,113  10.41  8.57  13.54  8.86  161.09 

Finance costs  67  80  69  77  52  38  (16.25)  15.94  (10.70)  48.93  35.63 

Profit before taxation  18,976  22,999  19,141  17,397  14,133  5,016  (17.49)  20.16  10.02  23.10  181.72 

Taxation  5,261  7,227  6,140  5,943  5,022  1,143  (27.20)  17.70  3.32  18.32  339.38 

Profit after taxation  13,715  15,772  13,001  11,455  9,110  3,873  (13.04)  21.31  13.50  25.74  135.20 

Horizontal Analysis
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Statement of Value Addition
For the year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018

Rupees in ‘000 % Rupees in ‘000 %

Wealth Generated

Gross revenue  191,383,617 97.8%  168,827,803 97.7%
Other income  4,306,662 2.2%  3,900,685 2.3%

 195,690,279 100.0%  172,728,488 100.0%

Bought in material and services and other expenses  123,494,196 63.1%  103,581,088 60.0%

 72,196,083 36.9%  69,147,400 40.0%

Wealth Distributed
Employees
Salaries, wages and other benefits  2,589,935 3.6%  2,852,016 4.1%

Society
Donations towards education, health and environment  229,992 0.3%  190,530 0.3%

Providers of Finance
Finance cost and Compensation on advances from 
customers

 275,718 0.4%  572,406 0.8%

Government
Income tax, sales tax, excise duty, customs duty, WWF and 
WPPF

 53,264,406 73.8%  47,836,854 69.2%

Shareholders
Dividend  9,039,000 12.5%  11,004,000 15.9%

Retained within the business for future growth
Retained earnings, depreciation and amortization  6,797,032 9.4%  6,691,594 9.7%

 72,196,083 100.0%  69,147,400 100.0%

Distribution Of Wealth

Employees Society Providers of finance  
Retained within the business for future growth  

Government Shareholders 

2019
0.4%
0.3%

9.4%

3.6%

73.8%

12.5%

2018

0.8%
0.3%

9.7%

4.1%

69.2%

15.9%
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Chairman’s Review
“I welcome you to this 30th Annual General Meeting of 
your Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.” 

Ali S. Habib
Chairman
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Dear Shareholders,

Since the very first Corolla came off the production 
line in 1993, Indus Motor Company has strived to 
uphold the philosophy of “Kaizen” (Continuous 
Improvement) and practice the “Toyota Way” 
throughout its operations. These practices, coupled 
with the support of all shareholders and customers, 
have allowed us to become the most respected 
brand and achieve sustained levels of excellence 
and performance. Today, we begin by thanking our 
customers and shareholders for their continued 
patronage and allegiance.

On the business front, world economic growth is 
expected to slow down, at around 2.5% to 3%, 
even this moderate pace of expansion in the global 
economy is threatened by downside risks that 
can potentially create development challenges in 
many parts of the world.  Together with disruptive 
technologies there is a major upheaval in the world 
trade order in which nationalism, protectionism, and 
the looming threat of an increased US / China Trade 
War, Brexit and multiple geo-political conflicts are 
creating uncertainty on a global scale.

Pakistan has entered its 13th IMF program at the end 
of the current fiscal year.  The structural adjustments 
envisaged in the earlier programs were not achieved.  
During the period under review the Rupee has 
undergone a major correction, interest rates have 
more than doubled, energy prices have been 
significantly enhanced; there have been significant 
increases in the Customs Duties and Regulatory 
Duties and multiple measures taken to improve 
documentation and increase the tax base.

While we strongly support the Government’s efforts 
to document the economy and increase the tax 
base, it is important that the adjustments and new 
policies be implemented in a gradual and practical 
manner; such an approach will allow the market 
place sufficient time to prepare for and adjust to 
these changes.

During the year under review there were a number of 
policy changes impacting the automobile sector.  The 
documented automobile industry was required not to 
sell vehicles to non-tax filers. This restriction was then 
modified for vehicles greater than 1300cc.  This was 
subsequently done away with. A 10% Federal Excise 
Duty was introduced on only one vehicle, made in 
Pakistan, the Fortuner. This too, was immediately 
changed to include all vehicles upto 1700cc and 
above and finally in the latest budget this was 
reduced from 10% to 7.5% for vehicles from 2000cc 
and above and a fresh Federal Excise Duty of 2.5% 
and 5% was introduced on vehicles of smaller engine 
capacity. These significant and frequent changes can 
be counter-productive to mid-term and long-term 
planning and significantly impact the confidence of 
both domestic and international investors.

As the new fiscal year commenced the cumulative 
effect of these abrupt changes and the increase in 
additional customs duties from 2% to 7%, devaluation 
and Excise Duty has forced the automobile makers 
to make unprecedented increases in prices which 
together with the depressed economy has seen a 
major correction in demand.

The Automobile Development Policy of 2016-
2021 has led to multiple new investments made by 
new entrants.  These new firms have a significant 
advantage in paying lower Customs Duties on 
imported parts; their entry into the market place, 
which is experiencing a severe down turn, will be 
challenging for the entire industry comprising of 
existing OEMs and new entrants.  We would urge 
the policy makers to encourage local manufacturing 
of parts by targeting concessions to the local parts 
manufacturers rather than encouraging imports.

In an extremely welcome move, the Government has 
finally clamped down on the illegal and undocumented 
imports of used vehicles. We urge the Government 
to sustain these measures and compliment the 
Government’s decision makers for taking this long 
awaited, bold step.
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The Ministry of Climate Change is championing the 
introduction of a new policy for Electric Vehicles.  
Toyota has established global leadership in numerous 
technologies with the introduction, a decade ago, of 
Hybrid vehicles, Hydrogen Fuel Cell vehicles, plug-
in Hybrids and Electric Vehicles. For a developing 
country like Pakistan our focus on climate change must 
be considered in a broader context of basic human 
needs starting with clean drinking water, sewage 
disposal, health care, education and emissions from 
existing vehicles on roads, both passenger cars and 
commercial vehicles required for transporting of 
goods throughout the country, together with industrial 
and power generation emissions. We have noted with 
great concern, information in the press regarding the 
proposed policy for Electric Vehicles which alarmingly 
seeks to encourage imports of Electric Vehicles at 
a huge loss of revenue on custom duty and sales 
tax and without regards to localization, resulting in 
out flow of Dollars, loss of jobs and many other ill-
effects and is being formulated in a vacuum, without 
consultation from the stake holders in the industry or 
relevant institutions of the State such as Engineering 
Development Board and Ministry of Industries.  Such 
a process is not in the national interest.

The recently announced Federal Budget, contained a 
policy statement in which luxury goods and finished 
goods would attract higher Customs Duties with the 
intention of reducing imports and allowing domestic 
manufacturing sector to regain their lost market 
share in the domestic market which had been eroded 
over the years due to multiple inconsistent policies 
and poorly negotiated Free Trade Agreements (FTAs).  
However, its implementation has led to serious 
distortions by applying these additional Custom 
Duties indiscriminately on many industrial inputs, raw 
materials and intermediary products. We strongly urge 
the Government to require a coordinated approach 
between the tax collecting institutions (FBR) and 
the economic ministries so that revenue measures 
can be applied in a strategic way that lead to both 
increased revenue, as well as, increased productivity, 
job creation and reduction in imports.

Being at the very forefront of the automobile industry 
in Pakistan, Indus Motor Company has a direct 
interest in vehicle safety and we pay special attention 
to occupant safety. To this end, we pursue a number 
of safety-oriented initiatives such as promotion of 
our Safety Mascot THUMS (Total Human Model for 
Safety), over digital and other platforms to educate 
masses on best-in-class safety features provided in 
all IMC CKD variants.

IMC works hand in hand with its dealers all over 
Pakistan to create and nurture clientele that has 
our trust and confidence. We believe in helping our 
dealers sell Toyota vehicles by providing them with 
all the information about our products, after sales 
service and genuine Toyota parts. We actively support 
them through continuous motivational and technical 
educational programs and trainings. 

A true measure of success for any company is 
to delight its customers. This is our single most 
important goal.  To achieve this, we have to provide 
the best-in-class quality products, pre and after 
sales service and the confidence that the ownership 
experience throughout the product lifespan is one in 
which the customers can rely upon us to continue 
to meet all their needs. We acknowledge that the 
year under review has been a difficult one in some 
aspects where multiple price changes, outside our 
control, were required to be taken, against significant 
and sudden Rupee devaluation, abrupt introduction 
of Federal Excise duty and other numerous policy 
changes that undoubtedly have caused hardship 
to our customers. We will redouble our efforts to 
continue to endeavor to meet and exceed the trust 
and confidence, for which we are very grateful, that 
they have in us and in our products.

I am pleased to report that your Company’s Board of 
Directors has continued to provide valuable guidance 
and oversight to ensure strong governance and to 
effectively provide encouragement and input to the 
management throughout the year. A review of the 
Board’s performance and effectiveness through a 
self-assessment basis has been conducted during 
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the year under review to ensure best practices are 
continually observed. 

Mr. Farhad Zulficar, one of the founding Directors and 
the first Managing Director of the Company retired as 
a member of the Board of Directors, and Mr. Imran A.  
Habib was appointed to fill the casual vacancy. The 
Board duly acknowledges the valuable contribution 
made by Mr. Zulficar and has expressed its gratitude 
on behalf of the Company. The Board also welcomed 
Mr. Imran A. Habib as a member. 

During the year under review, there were five Board 
meetings, in which the Board received presentations 
on the Company’s operations, challenges and 
progress towards achieving objectives in line with 
the Board’s vision. We are privileged to have a rich 
balance of expatriates who bring Toyota’s global 
knowledge to our Company and highly experienced 
and respected Pakistanis who regularly provide 
meaningful guidance and input on our Board. We are 
particularly grateful to our Audit Committee members 
who conduct an extremely detailed and diligent review 
to ensure that we continue to anticipate and mitigate 
risks and comply with corporate best practices.

Finally, on behalf of the Board of Directors, I would 
like to express my gratitude to all the shareholders for 
their continued trust and confidence in the Company.  
The Board and I are united in extending our thanks to 
each member of the IMC team as we acknowledge 
their unwavering support and dedication to the 
Company. We are committed to maintaining our 
leadership in the industry and pray to Almighty Allah 
to bless us in our endeavors going into the future.

Ali S. Habib
Chairman
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Directors’ Report

•	 Industry Review & Business 
Environment

•	 Company Review

•	 Customer Relations

•	 Customer First – Parts & Service

•	 Safety, Health & Environment

•	 Human Resources

•	 Operations

•	 Information Technology

•	 Corporate Social Responsibility - 
Advancing Concern Beyond Cars

•	 Corporate Matters & Related 
Disclosures

Ali Asghar Jamali 
Chief Executive
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The Directors of Indus Motor Company Limited takes pleasure in presenting Directors’ Report, together with 
the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019:

FINANCIAL RESULTS, APPROPRIATIONS AND SUBSEQUENT EFFECTS

The Financial results and appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2019 are as follows: 

2019 2018
(Rupees in ‘000)

Profit After Taxation 13,714,975 15,771,860
Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year 492 (6,480)
Un-appropriated Profit  brought forward 273,792 12,412

13,989,259 15,777,792
Appropriations
First Interim Dividend @ 325% i.e. Rs. 32.5 per share (2018 300% i.e. Rs. 30 Per share) 2,554,500 2,358,000
Second Interim Dividend @ 250% i.e. Rs. 25 per share (2018 325% i.e. Rs. 32.5 Per share) 1,965,000 2,554,500
Third Interim Dividend @ 300% i.e. Rs. 30 per share (2018 325% i.e. Rs. 32.5 Per share) 2,358,000 2,554,500

6,877,500 7,467,000
Unappropriated Profit Carried Forward 7,111,759 8,310,792

Subsequent Effects
Proposed Final Dividend @ 275% i.e. Rs. 27.5 per share (2018: 450% i.e. Rs. 45 per share) 2,161,500 3,537,000
Transfer to General Reserves 4,500,000 4,500,000

6,661,500 8,037,000
Basic and Diluted Earnings per share 174.49 200.66

Principal Activities of the Company 
Indus Motor Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company in 
December 1989 and started commercial production in May 1993. The shares of the Company are quoted on 
the Pakistan Stock Exchange.  The company’s principal activity is the assembly, progressive manufacturing 
and marketing of Toyota vehicles in Pakistan.  

Financial Performance Overview 
During the year ended June 30, 2019, the sales volume of CKD and CBU vehicles increased to 66,211units as 
against 64,000 units sold last year. 
 
The company has posted net sales revenue of Rs. 157.99  billion, up by 13% as compared to Rs. 139.71 billion 
last year, however, profit after tax declined by 13% to 13.71 billion from Rs. 15.77 billion posted last year. The 
overall revenue mainly increased due to improved volumes of Toyota Corolla, whereas, the net profit declined 
mainly on account of rise in input costs due to deprecation of PKR against USD and JPY. 

Contribution to National Exchequer
During the year, the Company contributed a sum of Rs. 52.30 billion to the national exchequer, which amounts 
to about 1% of the total revenue collection by the Government of Pakistan during the year. Since the Company’s 
incorporation in 1989, our contribution stands in excess of Rs. 418.3 billion.
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Industry Review & Business Environment

Business Environment, Risk and Uncertainty
For sustained economic growth, macroeconomic 
stability is a fundamental pre-requisite. The outgoing 
fiscal year 2018-19 witnessed a muted growth of 
3.29% in comparison with 4.7% average growth in 5 
years. Pakistan managed to reduce its import bill by 
US$5.9 billion while maintaining exports of $23 billion 
in 2018-19.

These are good signs for the economy which assure 
a promising future in the long term. We, however, 
expect minimal growth in 2019-20 due to rapid PKR 
devaluation of 34% in 2018-19. The agreement 
with the IMF for US$6 billion support under the EFF 
program will ultimately ease out stress on Pak rupee 
devaluation and encourage other donor agencies 
to lend more money. Shrinking imports, growth 
in exports and remittances coupled with the IMF 
program will help maintain foreign currency reserves 
at an adequate level.

Development of 9 special economic zones will be the 
driving force for economic growth and taking the fruits 
of CPEC to the lesser developed regions of Pakistan. 
The improved law and order situation across Pakistan 
will help raise investors’ confidence. The ground is 
set to generate positive socio-economic impact of 
CPEC through increased collaboration among the 
industrial sectors of both Pakistan and China.

The Auto Policy 2016-2021 is delivering its fruits as 
green and brownfield projects have gradually started 
operations. Rise in overall production capacity is 
expected to surpass market demand. A wide range 
of choices will be available to consumers, ensuring 
healthy competition, mostly in the SUV and economy 
segments.

This is the time to deepen indigenization by 
encouraging local part makers to promote “Make 
in Pakistan”. The objective of new investments 
should be directed towards job creation, technology 
transfer and increase in local value addition. All these 
objectives are achievable if a level playing field is 
provided and ADP 2016-21 improved for vendors as 
well.

Two supplementary budgets were introduced during 
FY 2018-2019. Policies have impacted the auto 
industry both positively and negatively. Being a 
tax filer is a condition for new vehicle purchases of 
1700cc and above. The enforcement of SRO 52 has 
drastically reduced used car import numbers and 

has also helped the local manufacturing industry to 
maintain its volumes in line with 2017-18.

Application of 10% FED in Oct 2018 on vehicles 
above 1700cc negatively impacted on luxury vehicle 
segment during last 9 months of FY 2018-19.

GoP has widened FED application for all types of 
passenger vehicles and has introduced three slabs 
of 2.5% - 7.5%, along with increase in rates of 
additional customs duty from 2% to 7% on inputs of 
locally manufacture vehicles. 

The combined impact of duty increases and PKR 
devaluation have increased cost of inputs and 
ultimately resulted in further price increases.

The government tends to promote electric vehicles 
and is willing to extend concessions to CBU/SKD 
imports. This will devastate the industry and may 
initiate localization roll back, draining huge foreign 
exchange and increase in unemployment. The 
policymakers have not considered common aspects 
of construction of electric vehicles and conventional 
combustion engine vehicles. Parts like shell body, 
interior trims, lighting systems, suspension systems, 
seats, tires, rims, brakes, instrument panels, etc are 
all common in construction, being locally produced 
for conventional vehicles and can be provided for 
electric vehicles too.

The current tariff structure for the manufacture of 
these locally made parts is substantially higher in 
comparison to tariffs proposed for electric vehicles and 
provided to new entrants under green or brown field 
program. Such ill-conceived policies will discourage 
the localization process, increase the import bill and 
negatively impact the local manufacturing process.

Recommendations
Government efforts for broadening the tax net are 
very much appreciated. Pakistan is among the 
top 50 largest economy with low tax-to-GDP ratio 
and motorization level. The untapped potential can 
create economic stimulus with good governance 
as a key element. For sustained growth, consumer 
confidence is necessary. We urge the government to 
introduce policies that will restore market confidence 
and accelerate economic activities across the board.

The foremost important element for the auto industry 
is ensuring a predictable taxation regime and holding 
of government promises on a long-term basis. ADP 
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2016-2021  was introduced after several consultation 
rounds held among all stakeholders, which is 
commendable.

The auto industry works with heavy investments for 
every new model and sustains long product lifecycles 
for payback. Abrupt changes in taxation or providing 
drastic incentives for specialized products adversely 
affects volumes and most of the time do not bring 
fruits which were intended at the introduction time. 
It is advised that for the auto industry, a consultative 
process be ensured and major policy interventions 
only be introduced after the end of each policy period.
Under ADP 16-21, the auto industry attracted major 
investment from 15-plus new entrants. Existing OEMs 
also invested and increased their capacities. Now, 
industry-wide production capacities surpass total 
market demand. The waiting period has decreased 
and vehicles are now readily available, while new 
products offer wider customer choices.  

We urge the government to continue its support 
to the industry and not encourage CBU imports, 
whether for both used or electric cars.

There is retardation in GDP growth rate due to several 
factors. There is a need to introduce global marketing 
practices to enhance marketing activities in the auto 
sector. We urge the government to revisit the double 
taxation regime on passenger cars and commercial 
vehicles distribution system which is restricting 
leading car assemblers to adopt a wholesale-retail 
mechanism in order to boost marketing activities as 
well as help in preventing the premium menace and 
long delivery periods.

We are confident that the government will continue to 
work in eradicating the malpractices of under-invoicing 
and incorrect declarations at the import stage of auto 
parts. We also expect that the government will shift 
the load of tax collection from the private sector to 
authorized tax collecting bodies as there are many 
complexities and it is difficult to manage and increase 
the cost of doing business significantly.
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Company Review

Industry Review
The total industry sales of locally manufactured PC 
and LCV vehicles were 240,646 units in the country 
during 2018-19 compared to 258,682 units sold 
last year, indicating an 7% drop in the market. The 
decline in the automobile industry is attributed to 
an overall economic slowdown, rising interest rates, 
and escalating vehicle prices on the back of the 
plunging Pakistani rupee against the US dollar and 
sky-rocketing inflation. The recent restriction on the 
import of used vehicles into the country has been 
positive for the local industry during the period. 
Approximately 36,000 used cars were imported 
during the year, compared to 70,000 units last year. 

Company Review
Indus Motor Company Limited, as a major player 
in Pakistan’s automobile industry, has made 
encouraging advances during the period, despite 
an economic slowdown. Building on previous 
performances, IMC has achieved the highest ever 
production record of 65,346 units and has also 
increased the sales at 66,211 units, in the fiscal year 
ended June 2019 which reflects the customers’ 
confidence in the company. 

Overall, a pressing demand continued to exist 
this year for meeting production targets. Corolla 
minor improvement was launched, along with the 
introduction of Toyota Connect application. Long 
awaited addition of XLI AT variant within the line-up 
was also added during the FY19. Our basic values 
are based on the Spirit of “Kaizen” or Continuous 
Improvement and based on this, we have taken 
necessary steps to eradicate bottlenecks and 
increase production capacity. A newly constructed 
multi-billion rupee paint shop was commissioned in 
the last fiscal year resulting in increased output in 
the current period. All our efforts have been directed 
at reducing the delivery lead time of vehicles and 
ensuring customer satisfaction.

The improved plant operations also resulted in 
successful roll out of Fortuner, Revo and Hilux 4x2 
Minor improvements, which were well-received by 
the market.  

The Company continues to make major investments 
and operates its manufacturing facility at full capacity. 
Manufacturing has continued with employee overtime 
hours and manufacturing operations were also being 
undertaken on off Saturdays to meet market demand. 
The total production of the Company stood at 65,346 
units, which shows 4% increase from 62,886 units 
produced in the corresponding period last year.

The Company’s combined sales of CKD and CBU 
vehicles for the year increased by 3.4%, to 66,211 
units as against 64,000 units sold in the same period 
last year. Accordingly, our market share stood at 22% 
of locally manufactured PC and LCV vehicles for the 
year.

The Company has stood by its commitment and 
has introduced various specification upgrades 
in the entire lineup of vehicles, including state of 
the art safety features. These features include 
standardization of dual SRS Airbags in all passenger 
cars and commercial vehicles.

Toyota Corolla – CKD Passenger Car Segment
Toyota Corolla our flag ship model, over the years, 
became a symbol of extraordinary luxury, striking 
style, and superior performance. Building upon 
a legacy of customer delight, IMC introduced a 
minor improvement in this period along with the  
introduction of the first of its kind application, Toyota 
Connect. The new vehicle is now equipped with 
features such as Auto Door Lock, Immobilizer with 
Alarm, and Toyota Connect App to further enhance 
the luxury experience. 

As an OEM provided application, Toyota Connect 
brings convenience and comfort to the users who can 
monitor live vehicle location, analyze driving behavior, 
location sharing and alerts all via their smartphones.

IMC with the launch of XLI AT, further strengthened 
its Automatic transmission lineup. The product was 
well received by the market and supported IMC in 
achieving the sales targets. 
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Toyota Hilux – CKD Pickup Segment
Toyota Hilux, an icon of power and adventure, 
celebrated a legacy of unstoppable adventure on its 
50th global anniversary in FY19. Hilux Revo continues 
to be the first choice of urban buyers looking for an 
all-purpose vehicle.

In FY19, we launched minor improvement model of 
Hilux lineup. In Revo addition of Rear air-conditioned 
register was very well received by the customers. 
The additions such as 1GD engine launched in early  
2018 continued its successful image and the 
response from the customer was overwhelming.     

In order to educate the customers about all new 
features of Hilux Revo, a marketing initiative “Conquer 
the Wild – Destination Pakistan” was launched as a 
digital series which consisted of 7 exciting episodes. 
The series proved to be a huge success on all social 
media platforms. 

Toyota Fortuner - CKD SUV Segment
Fortuner Sigma-4 has heralded an evolution to the 
CKD SUV market in Pakistan, giving customers 
unprecedented power and elegance with a litany of 
features such as an advanced, powerful and ultra-
efficient turbocharged Diesel Engine and advanced 
Drive Assist features. 

Fortuner Models Improvement was also launched in 
early 2019, building on its futuristic aesthetics, it has 
been equipped with Dual Front Powered Seats as 
well.
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Conquer the Wild – Destination Pakistan hosted 
by Wajahat S. Khan.

“Steering with the Stars”, a digital campaign to 
showcase the new features of the New Fortuner
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Extensive marketing activities were conducted to 
establish the Fortuner as best in class CKD SUV in the 
market. Experiential drives were conducted in 7 cities 
of Pakistan to give hands-on experience to potential 
customer for the peace of mind and power that comes 
naturally while driving the Fortuner on tough terrains. 
To reach a wider audience, a digital campaign called 
“Steering with the Stars” was launched with a brand 
new concept to showcase the new features by putting 
6 celebrities behind the wheels of the New Fortuner 
on a purpose built test track. The series consisted of 
6 episodes which were well received by the audience 
and performed exceedingly well on all social media 
platforms.

Toyota Imported Vehicles-CBU Segment
Shaping a new era of mobility and strengthening its 
CBU product portfolio to cater customers’ diverse 
and evolving requirements, IMC introduced two new 
vehicles in this period. In September 2018, IMC 
launched Toyota Rush in the compact SUV segment, 
providing customers with a stepping stone from 
Sedan to SUV. Toyota Rush is a perfect fit for an 
active and dynamic lifestyle, coupled with its versatile 
nature and eye-catching design. The brand new 
model exemplifies style, beauty and mobility providing 
customers with an enhanced level of excitement. 
The new design comes with an exceptional ground 
clearance of 220mm for improved maneuverability, 
with seamlessly designed smart exterior. Toyota 
Rush offers a Display (MID), 7-inch Audio Display, 
Rear Wheel Drive with an exemplary combination of 
extravagance and practicality.

In June 2019, IMC launched the Hiace Deluxe in 
the commercial segment which offers a leading 
edge in mobility for true professionals, promising 
fresh prospects for business. Hiace Deluxe boasts 
of unwavering quality, guaranteeing practicality and 
comfort for occupants on the move.

Toyota SURE	
In order to create a brand new experience of buying 
and selling used cars and delivering peace of mind 
to customers, Toyota SURE was launched in 2014 
with the single aim of revolutionizing the local used 
car market. Since then the brand has grown to a 
network of 38 dealerships nationwide with presence 
in all provinces of the country.

In order to enhance retail capability and create a 
larger presence, Toyota SURE launched its flagship 
Annual Certified Used Car Bazaars between October 
and December 2018 spread across Karachi, Lahore 
and Islamabad. The Bazaars engaged thousands of 
customers who were looking for reliable (certified) 
used cars or great exchange deals to upgrade their 
existing vehicles.  

Ending the year in style, Toyota SURE in collaboration 
with the Customer First Department, launched 
Certified Care, which is free 1 year basic maintenance 
for the certified used cars. This was an initiative taken 
by IMC, which is the first time an automobile company 
has offered such services in used cars in Pakistan. 
Toyota SURE will continue with the same zeal, offering 
new and unique services to its customers to become 
a complete one window solution in the upcoming 
year.

2017-18 2018-19
IMC CBU Sales  Toyota Direct Sales
Competition

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000
5,320 5,113

N
o.

 o
f V

eh
ic

le
s

185 188
812

4,203 4,113

912

Toyota Rush new design exemplifies style, 
beauty and mobility

Hiace Deluxe launched by IMC in the 
commercial segment

52



Start Your Impossible
Toyota continues its evolution as a mobility company 
with its first-ever global marketing initiative in 
celebration of Olympic and Paralympic Games Tokyo 
2020. ‘Start Your Impossible’ is Toyota’s global 
corporate initiative that aims to inspire employees, 
partners and customers. In an age of accelerating 
technological and environmental developments, 
Toyota aims to support the creation of a more inclusive, 
sustainable and mobile society in which everyone has 
the freedom to move and challenge their impossible.

IMC rolled out the ‘Start Your Impossible’ initiative in 
Pakistan with an internal launch event held on 29th 
August 2018 in Karachi.

IMC is excited to begin its journey to Olympic and 
Paralympic Games Tokyo 2020 along with its local 
hero athlete ‘Saadi Abbas Jalbani- a leading Karate 
Player’.  Saadi Abbas Jalbani will be working alongside 
Indus Motor Company and the National Institute of 
Karate-do Pakistan to promote Karate amongst kids 
of his hometown Lyari.

The aim of this program is to inspire the youth to 
pursue their sporting dreams, especially those with 
limited access to proper training and facilities. Indus 
Motor Company is committed to supporting Saadi- 
The Local Hero Athlete in fulfilling his dream of 
bringing a medal for Pakistan at the Olympic Games 
Tokyo 2020.

Safety Campaign
Indus Motor Company is proud to be a safety leader 
in the industry by providing the Best-in class safety 
features in all its CKD variants.  Over the span of 2 
years, IMC has continuously made efforts to increase 
safety awareness and educate the users about the 
correct usage of safety specs.

Along with NCAP (New car assessment program), 
IMC also promoted its Safety Mascot THUMS 
(Total Human Model for Safety) over digital and 
other platforms to educate viewers on safety specs 
provided in all IMC CKD variants. 

To instill the concepts of safety into youth, IMC 
launched its program #BeSafetyLeaders that 
educated university students about the safety 
features and gave the chance to different university 
teams’ to come forward and  be the drivers of change 
in promoting Safety awareness among the masses.

Toyota launches its flagship Annual Certified 
Used Cars Bazaar

Toyota’s safety leader campaign at Universities

The management panel with Ms Zainab and 
Mr Saadi at the Start Your Impossible launch
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Customer Relations

The 13TH TOYOTA DREAM CAR ART CONTEST

It has been an interesting journey for the Dream Car 
since it revved up its engine in 2011 with the 5th Toyota 
Dream Car Art Contest. It all started with a moderate 
number of 10,500 artwork submissions from just 250 
schools nationwide and since then, the one-of-its-
kind artwork competition has grown exponentially 
over the years. Held in 2019, the 13th Toyota Dream 
Car Art Contest received a record number of 48,500 
artworks (as compared to 38,000 artworks received 
in 2018) from a total of 1,550 schools (1150 schools 
participated in 2018) across the country, making 
Pakistan the 3rd nation globally to receive the highest 
number of artwork submissions. 

Aimed at defining the future of mobility by encouraging 
children’s creative expression, this international 
contest is one of the biggest drawing competitions 
globally and is organised every year by Toyota Motor 
Corporation for children less than 16 years of age.

The Royal category, a special feature of the National 
Contest has seen active participation from children 
who are differently abled. This year, the category grew 
by 41% with a total of 1600 drawing submissions, 
compared with 1100 artworks received in 2018.

Comprising educators, painters, curators and visual 
artists, the five-member independent Jury Panel 
selected the regional and national winners and 
shortlisted the top 9 artworks from Pakistan to enter 
the World Contest in Japan.

This year is very special as the World Contest, held in 
Japan, announced two World Winners from Pakistan 
in two age categories viz. 

•	8 to 10 years category - Palwasha Azeem from 
Rahim Yar Khan (Toyota Royal Motors) for her 
“Lantern Car” won the Bronze Award. 

•	12 to 15 years category - Ibrahim Qureshy from 
Lahore (Toyota Sahara Motors) for his “Car of 
Invisibility” won the Bronze Award.   

“Lantern Car” made by 
Palwasha Azeem

“Car of Invisibility” made 
by Ibrahim Ahmed Qureshi

The World Contest saw over 950,000 artwork 
submissions from 86 countries, out of which 30 top 
winners were chosen, two of them from Pakistan. 
This is a remarkable achievement for children, the 
dealerships and IMC and is indeed a high honour for 
Pakistan as well. The two winners have secured the
grand prize and travelled to Japan to attend the 
Award Ceremony in August 2019 where they had the 
opportunity of a lifetime to mingle, interact and make 
friends with winners from other parts of the globe and 
also experienced world famous Japanese culture.

The Company hosted an Award Ceremony in Lahore 
to celebrate the 39 winners who came from the 
across the country. All winners were awarded with 
certificates and medals for their achievements. 

Winners of the 13th Toyota Dream Car Art Contest with Vice Chairman Indus Motor Company and Dealers 
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Customer First – Parts & Service 

Here at Toyota, we believe in the Customer for Life 
ideology. The Customer First Department embodies 
this Toyota philosophy by continually striving to 
enhance customer experience. By performing 
quality checks before the delivery of the vehicle, and 
providing Genuine Parts and Quality Services in after-
sales, we ensure a complete and reliable ownership 
experience throughout the life-cycle of the vehicles. 

Customer Service Excellence Award
IMC has won the ‘Outstanding Customer Service 
Excellence Award’ in CSEA 2018. The Indus 
Motor Company – Customer First Department has 
participated in this program for the last 11 years and 
has bagged this prestigious Gold Title for the very 
first time. The program is hosted every year by the 
Toyota Motor Corporation, Japan and all worldwide 
Toyota affiliates including Thailand, Taiwan and 
Indonesia participate in it. We all strive towards one 
common objective, which is providing ever-improving 
customer service in order to become the most 
admired automotive brand in its territory.

 
Through CSEA, IMC has improved the efficiency of 
its aftersales and CR operations and has created 
numerous Customer Engagement touch points for 
delighting its customers.  

Serving 1 Million Customers
With the changing dynamics of the automotive 
industry and the thriving after sales business due 
to the increasing number of cars on roads, it is of 
utmost importance to give priority to customers and 
treat their satisfaction as the goal. With the vision 
of serving customers as per their convenience, our 
dealership networks have taken the initiatives of 
“Extended Evening Hours” and “Sunday Operations”.
Extended Evening Hours translates to having more 
working hours in a day to facilitate customers, for 

instance, dealerships were earlier open from 9.00 am 
to 6.00 pm but are now open from 9.00 am to 8.00 
pm (utilizing shift operations for selected staff).

Let us serve you on“

Sunday
”Because TOYOTA cares for you and your comfort

Announcing extended evening hours at Toyota 
Dealerships to facilitate customers

Bearing in view the target of serving 1 million 
customers, IMC launched mobile workshops to 
serve customers in far-reaching areas which may fall 
beyond the scope of the Toyota Dealership network. 
These mobile workshops provide essential car 
services to customers at their very doorstep.

Extension of Warranty Period
At Toyota, we are committed to delivering excellent 
customer service by offering best aftersales products 
and services for our valued customers. In keeping with 
the same philosophy, IMC has recently announced 
built-in warranty for 3 years and/or 100,000 km 
(whichever comes first).

Toyota always works towards making continuous 
improvements (Kaizen) in its operations and services 
so that customers can enjoy being part of the Toyota 
Family. The warranty extension program follows this 
viewpoint by providing Toyota customers peace of 
mind. 

Receiving the Outstanding Customer Service
Excellence Gold Award in CSEA 2018

Toyota’s standard warranty period

55Annual Report 2019

Indus Motor Company Ltd.



CS Kaizen Evolution 2018-19
Customer Satisfaction Kaizen Evolution (CSKE) is 
a yearly activity to cultivate and sustain a Kaizen 
(continuous improvement) culture and develop 
human resources at dealerships.

This year, a total of 130+ themes were registered and 
450+ dealership staff was trained with the concept 
of the Toyota Way, Toyota Business Practices and 
Kaizen Culture Development. 

This year, to make CSKE even bigger and better, 
CSKE was merged with the Quality Control Circle 
(QCC) in order to take it to a global scale. 

The Grand Finale of the 4th CSKE 2018-19 was held 
at Indus Motor Company on 13th July 2019 in which 
top 16 teams selected from across Pakistan took 
part and presented their year-long Kaizen activities 
in After Sales, Customer Relations, Sales and T-Sure.

Three best teams have been selected which will 
participate in QCC to be held in mid-August, 2019.

Grand Finale of the 4th CSKE 2018-19 held at 
Indus Motor Company

Prepaid Periodic Maintenance
IMC strives to bring to its customers the best in market 
practices to increase its customer satisfaction. In 
synchronization with this philosophy, IMC launched 
its Prepaid Periodic Maintenance (PPM) in the year 
2016. PPM provides our customers with a smart 
and affordable method that protects them from 
fluctuating prices due to inflation. PPM is a one-stop 
solution; our customers pay once and then enjoy four 
free maintenances, cashless transactions and other 
value added services.

IMC plans to continue and launch several other 
services and promotional campaigns for its 
customers to keep our journey of providing customer 
satisfaction.

Summer Campaign

Announcing Free A/C inspection at Toyota 
Authorized Dealerships

Every year, the Customer First Department 
launches a Summer Campaign to provide all its 
Toyota customers ‘free A/C Inspection’ at Toyota’s 
Authorized dealerships. On a yearly basis, this 
campaign reaches new heights and engages new 
customers. 

Collaboration with Careem

Announcing our collaboration with Careem

This year, CFD collaborated with Careem to generate 
additional CPUS via Careem Captains. Careem, in 
turn, provided coupon cards for its customers as 
giveaways.

The campaign resulted in an increase in terms 
of customer engagement, customer footfall and 
eventually, additional revenue from parts and labor 
sales.
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Skills Contest
At Toyota, we are committed to providing the best 
quality services at our dealerships. To motivate and 
promote talent within our Toyota Family, IMC has 
been organizing a Skills Contest every year. This event 
is organized in two different areas i.e. Dealership 
General Service and Dealership Body & Paint on an 
alternate year basis.

This year, IMC initiated Body & Paint Skills Contest 
for the Body Technician, Paint Technician & Service 
Advisor category. A total of 119 technicians 
participated in all three categories. The champions of 
the skills contest won a chance to go to the Toyota 
Motor Corporation, Japan and showcase their talent 
on a global platform. 

Champions of the Skills Contest at Toyota 
Indus Motor Company

Service Advisor Capacity Building
IMC firmly believes that its employees are one of 
their greatest assets. To cultivate our employees’ 
skills, IMC holds a Service Advisor Capacity Building 
Competition every year. Service Advisors (SA) are the 
building blocks of our business as they are our front 
liners who have a direct contact with our customers. 
They are a reflection of customer satisfaction since it 
is due to them that customers interact with the brand.

Service Advisors, especially in Toyota, need to be 
confident communicators with excellent selling skills 
and the ability to retain the product knowledge they 
have gained. To help them gain these skills, IMC 
provides relevant, yearly trainings. This year, Umair 
Jaliawala was invited to train the advisors and to 
equip them with the necessary skills and knowledge. 

Dealership Employee Satisfactory Survey
IMC firmly believes that happy employees equate 
to happy customers. Following this viewpoint, IMC 
conducts Employee Surveys at its dealerships twice 
a year to cultivate an Employee-Centric approach 

within the dealerships. The survey is then used to 
bring about improvements at our dealerships and to 
increase our employee satisfaction level. Recently, 
some of our dealerships launched an in-house lunch 
facility and loan facility for their staff to incorporate 
feedback received from the survey.  

To further enhance the satisfaction of its employees, 
IMC has decided to initiate the Employee Satisfaction 
Committee for the dealerships. Free schooling is 
also provided for the children of the employees at 
numerous dealerships.

Customer Delight Touchpoints:
Indus Motor Company continuously endeavors 
to create a delightful experience for its customers. 
In view of this, IMC created certain touch points in 
collaboration with its dealers in order to enhance 
the customer’s experience at the dealerships. A 
few of these activities which make our customers 
happy to have Toyota vehicles maintained at Toyota 
dealerships include lunch and refreshment facilities 
at the customer lounge. Moreover, to capture the 
real voice of the customers, a Happy Tree has been 
placed in the lounge at every dealership for customer 
feedback.

Customer Satisfaction Index 2018-19
IMC conducts Customer Satisfaction Index (CSI) 
every year to measure the level of satisfaction of the 
customers regarding Toyota’s services collectively. It 

is to understand our customers and make continuous 
improvements (Kaizens) to contribute towards 
customer delight and be in synchronization with 
market practices to give our customers a comfortable 
experience and to hear customers’ thoughts.

The Happy Tree placed at all Toyota 
dealerships to capture the real voice 
of the customers
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IMC truly believes in serving our customers with the 
best and our customers are top priority. To further 
this belief, CSI helps us hear the real voice of our 
customers and helps us connect with them. 

Toyota Racing Development (TRD)

Toyota Racing Development inaugarated at 
Toyota Central Motors

In recent years, our local market has significantly 
evolved and customers are now enthusiastic about 
spending on the customization and enhancement 
of cars. Aiming to give its customers a one-stop 
accessories shop, Indus Motor Company has 
installed Toyota Racing Development for the first time 
in Pakistan. The aim of this project was to generate 
an additional revenue stream by selling Genuine TRD 
Accessories.

In October 2018, TRD was inaugurated at Toyota 
Central Motors by Mr. Yamaoka, Group Manager of 
TMC Production Control; Mr. Salim Godil, CEO of 
TCM; and Mr. Ali Asghar Damani, General Manager 
of IMC. After success of the pilot run, IMC decided 
to further expand the project and the second TRD 
corner was installed at Toyota Faisalabad Motors 
in April 2019. Due to the ever-increasing demand 

of accessories and visualization of the corner, three 
more dealerships have been selected for expansion, 
which is due to be completed by July 2019.

Green Dealership Status
Indus Motor Company strives to set a positive 
environmental foot-print. Our environmental 
commitment is not just manifested in the wordings 
of our policies, but is also reflected in our actions. 
We are at the forefront of activities that preserve 
and improve our environment. Toyota Pakistan has 
designed a Green Dealer Program which is a roadmap 
for Toyota dealerships across Pakistan to quantifiably 
reduce their energy and carbon dioxide emissions by 
installing solar panels and increasing the use of LEDs 

Dealerships in Pakistan have implemented Green 
Dealer Program and IMC ensures that its dealerships 
are in line with the global  direction and maintain their 
environmental KPIs.   

Solar panels at Toyota dealerships to reduce 
energy and carbon dioxide emissions
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Safety, Health & Environment 

IMC is committed to providing a safer and healthier 
environment to all its employees by strictly complying 
with all safety, health and environment rules and 
regulations. IMC takes full care of all employees, 
contractors, suppliers and all individuals in general 
who might be affected by the company’s business 
operations. Employees at IMC work actively to 
prevent accidents and injuries and make continuous 
efforts to identify, eliminate and manage all safety 
risks.

At Indus Motor Company, our Safety Policy conveys 
the following simple message:

“SAFETY WILL ALWAYS TAKE PRECEDENCE
OVER PRODUCTION, SALES AND PROFITS”

Safety Record
The Company recorded a Zero -Loss Work Day (LWD) 
Injury and No Fire Incident this year. This is the 3rd 
consecutive year in IMC with Zero - Loss Work Day 
(LWD). This was made possible through immediate 
improvements and a number of measures that were 
taken which include continuous risk assessment, 
job safety analysis, and awareness sessions,  
on-job hazard identification, safety and fire patrolling 
by trained members including top management. 

Apart from this, IMC has implemented the Safety 
Plant Management Requirement (PMRs) System 
throughout its plant as per the guidelines of TDEM 
(Toyota Daihatsu Engineering & Manufacturing 
Co., Ltd). Following the continuous improvement 
philosophy of Toyota, the company is looking forward 
to implementing the Global safety standards i.e. 
Occupational Safety Health Management System 
(OSHMS) in the coming year.

Safety Training
The Company regularly conducts a number of general 
and special training programs for its employees. The 
general safety training programs like firefighting, basic 
safety with simulation of Stop-6 Accident Dojo and 
first aid are aimed at empowering every employee to 
deal with emergency situations and avoid accidents. 
While special job training includes construction 
safety, working at heights, machine safety, defensive 
driving and process safety, only authorized members 
are allowed to perform a specific job complying with 
the standards. 

IMC also conducts safety training for vendors, dealers 
and contractors to ensure that the highest priority is 

understood at all levels. In fiscal year 2018 a total 
of 1794 members were trained and time spent on 
safety trainings was more than 10,000 man-hours.

This fiscal year new training was added for the 
employees and contractors performing electrical 
work i.e. Low Voltage Electrical Training. This training 
has been made mandatory for individuals performing 
Electrical Works. Another improvement in safety 
training is the addition of new accident simulators 
for Kodokan (fire safety simulator). Along with these, 
real-life accident videos and past accidents from 
other affiliates are also being displayed to the team 
members to make them efficiently understand the 
importance of a safe and secure environment.

Improving Working Environment for Employees
IMC takes good care of all its employees and for this, 
a huge amount has been invested in the environment 
improvement system. This year, Air Handling Units 
(AHUs) have been installed on the entire production 
floor to provide a comfortable working environment. 
Apart from this, IMC annually conducts health 
surveillance test of employees to ensure good health 
of all employees. 

Safety training and health surveillance tests for 
IMC employees

First Aid Medical Centre
This year IMC introduced a First Aid Medical Centre 
providing first aid treatments to their workers when 
required along with other contract workers present on 
site. This First Aid Centre was setup for the treatment 
of sickness and minor injuries to provide necessary 
first aid, quick relief and support to shift the affected 
person to the hospital after necessary first aid in case 
an emergency. For this purpose a separate room 
has been allocated along with a paramedical staff 
available 24/7.
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The First Aid Centre will not only benefit the 
employees but also the onsite contractors working 
within the premises of IMC. This action shows IMC’s 
commitment towards its employees and their health. 

Environmental Assessment System
The Environmental Assessment System (EAS) is the 
Toyota system for environment management. Toyota 
has developed a five year action plan and sets key 
performance indicators to achieve its targets along 
with the ambition to achieve Toyota’s 2050 Challenge 
Plant Zero CO2 emissions. The Company has made 
remarkable achievement in previous years and is 
raising the bar. To achieve better results and to keep 
affiliates motivated for environment improvement the 
audit criteria has been made more challenging this 
year. The Company is expanding its environment 
activities to all suppliers and dealers nationwide and 
focusing on ISO 14001 certifications of its business 
partners also.

Annual Environment Excellence Award 2019 (AEEA)
Indus Motor Company (IMC) has been awarded the 
16th Annual Environment Excellence Award 2019 
(AEEA) at the Annual Conference on Environment & 
Health held in Karachi on 9th July 2019.

The 16th Annual Environment Excellence
Award 2019 (AEEA) bagged by Indus Motor
Company

The event was put together by the National Forum 
for Environment & Health (NFEH), a non-profit 
organization which focused on facilitating and 
promoting environment, healthcare and educational 
awareness amongst the masses in Pakistan.

Recognized as one of the top 10 organizations 
in Pakistan for leading efforts to environmental 
protection, the award won by IMC underlined the 
company’s vision, contribution to environmental 
conservation and its extensive range of corporate 
social responsibility program.

Future Activities and Investments

Extension of Waste Water Treatment Plant (WWTP)
IMC being a responsible corporate organization 
is complying with all the relevant legal and other 
environmental requirements and laws. It is going to 
invest huge amounts on multiple projects. Treatment 
of hazardous waste water through WWTP is one 
example of its commitment. As the production 
capacity increases and new Pre-treatment and 
Electro-deposition Line (PTED) is under construction, 
the company has set up a new Waste Water 
Treatment Plant with state-of-the-art Membrane bio 
reactor (MBR)technology . The capacity of the New 
WWTP would be twice as that of the current system. 
This New WWTP would perform both the biological 
and chemical treatment. 

Renewable Energy Project
Keeping in view the Toyota Global Environmental 
Challenge 2050, Plant Zero CO2 Emission is moving 
towards a renewable source of energy. The currently 
installed Solar System capacity at IMC is 420 KW, 
which supplies electricity to Manufacturing and Non-
Manufacturing areas. The facility has been installed 
in the parking area, canteen, corporate and CPD 
Building. Now IMC is extending its renewable energy 
by the installation of a 4 MW Solar Power System 
which will be completed by 2020.

Installation of a 4 MW Solar Power System at 
IMC

Safety & Environment Months
Promoting a safety culture is an ongoing process  
throughout the year. We celebrated a Safety Month 
to encourage safety awareness in the team. For this 
year,  our safety theme was Safe Work, Safe Home. 
Different activities are organized for promotion of a 
safer workplace and reiterating the commitment to 
safety. These activities include training sessions for 
employees on general safety, fire prevention, rescue 
and fire evacuation drills, competition between the 
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shops on hazard identification and closure of these 
observations.

An Environment Month is celebrated every year in 
June. The purpose is to create awareness and remind 
people about their social responsibility towards 
the environment. Beside training and awareness, it 
creates a competitive environment for employees 
and their families for sustainability in society through 
increased awareness. The focus activity in this 
month was to create awareness about conservation 

of energy and water resources and to promote 3R 
(reduce, reuse, recycle) activities. Other than this tree 
plantation was done inside and outside IMC and in 
the Port Qasim area.

Safety training activities to promote a safety 
culture

Tree plantation at IMC by Mr. 
Shuja Uddin Ahmed, Senior 
Manager Admin
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Human Resource
IMC has continued to focus on engaging its highly 
skilled and diverse workforce in a wide range of 
activities. With a spirit of continuous improvement, 
we have striven to deliver better services to our 
employees, ensuring an ethical and safe workplace 
in line with our values of respect and teamwork. 

Diversity & Inclusion
At IMC we are committed to sustaining a diverse 
workforce and utilizing the intellectual capacity of all 
genders, especially women. This year, our female 
strength increased by almost 28%. We have keenly 
listened to and understood the challenges faced by 
our female employees, and are consistently open 
to feedback for the betterment of our environment. 
Consequently, we have enhanced the facilities at our 
office for all employees. 

We have continued to hire talented people from 
diverse backgrounds. Our hiring philosophy is based 
on a “zero discrimination” policy wherein everyone is 
assessed entirely on the basis of merit and without 
any prejudice.

Employee Engagement
At IMC, employee engagement is given paramount 
importance throughout the organization. This is seen 
as a means to strengthening connections amongst 
employees at all levels by providing them with healthy 
and fun activities.

A fun-filled day for the ladies of IMC

As a way to celebrate our employees, we organize their 
birthday festivities every month. These celebrations 
have become a tradition at IMC where employees 
come together to enjoy their special day together. 
IMC firmly believes in a healthy work-life balance, 
hence arranges movie shows for its employees and 
their families to spend quality time together.

Various sports competitions were held this year 
including swimming, football and cricket competitions. 
Not only did over 500 employees participate in these 
competitions, but also several cross-departmental 
teams participated and organized these events, 
thereby promoting a culture of teamwork.

A glimpse from our football competition

Developing Our People
IMC is committed to investing and developing 
its employees so that they are ready to steer the 
company to success and also to achieve their career 
goals. Our employees attended different programs 
at globally-recognized institutions such as Harvard, 
Wharton and London Business School, besides top 
local institutions. We have invested heavily on trainings 
including in-house and international sessions for our 
empolyees. 

We have continued to provide our employees with 
international exposure through Intra-Company 
Transfers with Singapore, Thailand and Japan. This 
gives them an opportunity to gain advanced skills 
and knowledge that broadens the horizons of their 
career.

IMC has continued to induct a large number of trainee 
apprentices as part of an initiative to develop human 
capital by imparting skills and giving them a chance 
to build a better future. The program is an opportunity 
for the youth to learn new skills from Toyota-certified 
trainers with a chance of employment at IMC.
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Operations
In continuous pursuit to meet the quality, productivity 
and safety standards of the Toyota World, the 
Indus Motor Company has been working on Facility 
Extension, Process Automation and Future Model 
introduction projects. These Projects include, but are 
not limited to the New Paint facility. Equipped with 
state-of-the-art paint robots, this New Paint shop 
facility has an investment value of PKR 3.1 Billion and 
is fully capable of supporting painting of all exterior 
colors. 

State-of-the-art paint robots at IMC

With an aim to keep the customers satisfied and 
engaged, Indus Motor Company introduces New 
Vehicle Models periodically, in lieu of which the Press 
Shop and Logistics Building was extended with an 
investment value of PKR 2.36 Billion. 

Consistent with the Japanese philosophy of 
eliminating waste (muda, mura, muri) from production 
processes, sophisticated and advanced robots 
having an investment value of PKR 571 Million are 
introduced in the Engine, Transmission and Weld 
Shop. A total of 5 Engine and Transmission Process 
Robots are introduced to automate the sealant 
application process and a total of 18 Hemming 
Robots have been installed in the Weld Shop to 
automate the Hemming Process. Through these 
developments, the Production Facility of Indus Motor 
Company Ltd. has taken a step further to elevate its 
production standard. 

Asia Pacific Skill Contest
Hosted by Toyota Global, an annual competition for 
Toyota Technicians, the Asia Pacific Skill Contest 
2019 was held in Thailand. There were 121 
participants in the contest belonging to 12 Toyota 
affiliated companies from 8 countries of the Asia 
Pacific region.

Indus Motor’s technicians from various categories 
participated in the Contest and had an opportunity 
to display their skills and talent on the international 
platform. They bagged five medals this year. The 
winners were:

Three Silver Medals: in Paints category-Ather Mirza, 
Team Member, in Assembly category Yasir Ahmed, 
Team Leader and in Quality category Ghadeer Abbas, 
Team Member.

Two Bronze Medals: in Press category-Asif Khan, 
Team Leader and in Quality category Haris Moin, 
Team Member.

Localization
There is a continuing quest to nourish the local 
industry in a pursuit to increase the percentage of 
local parts that our vehicles comprise. The Indus 
Motor Company has been constantly excelling at 
achieving this objective and plans to keep doing 
so in the future. The process involves not only the 
localization of parts but, in many cases, search for 
new suppliers and their subsequent development 
so that they are able to uphold Toyota’s globally 
renowned quality standards.

This year in Asia Pacific Skill Contest IMC won 
five medals

Advanced Robots at IMC plant
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The Indus Motor Company is committed to 
manufacture vehicles that meet Toyota’s globally 
renowned quality standards. This requires a 
commitment from our suppliers to provide the same 
to us, and hence the need to reinforce built-in quality 
and Toyota production systems (TPS) at their end to 
ensure defect-free products that conform to these 
quality standards.

In line with Toyota’s global initiative, Indus Motor 
Company also has a supplier quality development 
(SQD) section with engineers who are specifically 
trained to improve system coherence and suppliers’ 
compliance to Toyota’s global practices. The 
main focus lies on 5S and safety improvements, 

supplier quality assurance manual (SQAM) 
documents conformance, tool and die maintenance 
improvements, machine and equipment calibration 
and maintenance improvements, and conformity 
to the Japanese Obeya and Asaki concepts. The 
philosophy is to stop the defects at the occurrence 
point, rather than later in the process or at the 
defined quality gates. This is done by increasing 
compliance of Toyota production system (TPS), total 
productive maintenance (TPM) of machines and dies, 
and standardization of work chart and quality check 
sheets. In the initial phase, which started a year 
ago, six suppliers were selected and focused, and 
significant improvements are already visible.
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Information Technology

IT Strategy driven by Value Innovation
IMC’s IT strategy has been engineered to cater 
stringently to its customers. As Toyota globally 
transforms itself from a traditional automotive 
company to a well-rounded ‘Mobility’ Company, 
the potential significance and role of the Information 
Technology function has increased manifold. With 
so much to choose from in an era of ever-increasing 
Technology Incubation Hubs and seemingly 
deployable use-cases, it is important to stick to 
basic Business fundamentals and select Technology 
solutions that enhance the customer experience. 
This is why the IT strategy’s main focus at Toyota 
has been Value Innovation rather than Technology 
Innovation. There is an inherent desire to place 
equal emphasis on Value and Innovation driven by 
customer experience rather than mere Technology 
innovation which is futuristic yet adds little value to 
customer needs.

IT has adopted the Agile methodology for introducing 
new technology solutions. The tried and tested Plan-
Do-Check-Act (PDCA) cycles were deployed to find 
suitability of emerging technologies towards IMCs 
radical desire to be an intelligent enterprise. RPA, IOT 
and Big Data are some of the emerging Industry 4.0 
trends that IMC has adopted or performed Proof-
of-Concept with the ultimate objective of improving 
quality, efficiency and customer experience. 

Global Recognition:
Indus Motor Company has won the Global SAP 
Innovation Award 2019 in the category ‘Process 

Innovator’. This achievement has a historical 
significance as this is the first time that an entry from 
Pakistan has been accepted. The SAP Innovation 
Awards, now in the 6th year, received a record 233 
submissions from 37 countries and 25 industries.

Key Focus Areas

Operational Efficiency of Supply Chain and 
Logistics Function through S/4 HANA Optimization
IMC implemented the latest version of SAP S/4 
HANA in 2016. It was the first organization to have 
gone live with real-time data analytics capability 
provided by the inherent SAP FIORI user interface. 
The IMC SAP team, in conjunction with the Supply 
chain and Support functions, has further improved 
the effectiveness of SAP through meaningful 
application of controls and purposeful automation. 
This year, the Imported Parts Ordering System (IPOS) 
has been launched with real-time exporter calendar 
visibility. This has enabled the Production Planning 
team to accurately forecast and plan for timely arrival 
of imported parts and kits, thus ensuring timely 
production and subsequent delivery of vehicles to 
customers. In addition, Warehouse Management has 
been configured to effectively utilize Bin Locations 
on a FIFO basis. This will ensure better yard capacity 
management and throughput from IMC.

The IMC SAP team celebrating the 
implementation of the latest version of SAP S/4 
HANA Optimization 

Digitalization of After-sales Function at IMC 
Dealerships
One of the key focus areas of IMC IT has been to 
improve customer experience by increasing the 
efficiency of the After-sales function at Dealerships. 
In this regard, several important improvements 
have been made to the Genesis Business Portal. 
Genesis was originally launched in 2016 with the 
main objective of automating Business interaction 
between IMC and its network of dealerships across 

IMC receiving the Global SAP Innovation Award 
2019 in the category ‘Process Innovator’
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Pakistan. This year’s achievement includes launching 
of modules such as Parts ordering, Fix-it-Right (FIR) 
and Repair-Support-Request (RSR) module. The 
addition of these modules has significantly improved 
warranty processing and spare parts ordering 
efficiency, resulting in a higher level of customer 
satisfaction.

Digital transformation of Sales Booking Process
In an effort to reduce Sales Booking Process time, 
several digitalization efforts are in progress at the 
Dealership front. One such effort recently completed 
is the decentralized scanning of Sales documents at 
dealerships. The project aims at cutting down manual 
processes and to initiates real-time verification of 
documents to ensure that our customers can get the 
vehicle delivered to them as early as possible. 

Predictive Maintenance through Internet-of-Things 
(IOT) Technology
In an effort to improve process efficiency, IMC has 
taken several initiatives that focus on enhancing 
visibility and integrity of process data. Predictive 
maintenance is one of the areas where IOT is being 
prototyped with the potential benefits ranging 
from proactive reminders of machine breakdown 
to considerable savings by avoiding spare parts 
obsolesce. 

Move to Intelligent Enterprise by leveraging 
Robotic Process Automation (RPA)
Robotic Process Automation (RPA) is an emerging 
technology aimed at utilizing software robots for 
repetitive and mundane tasks. One of the key benefits 
of RPA is that it allows an organization to free-up its 
human resource for value-added work by reallocating 
repetitive work to software robots. Several business 
functions have been identified as potential candidates 
for RPA adoption and currently proof-of-concepts is 
in progress. 

Improving Customer Response Time through Call 
Center/IVR Upgrade
In order to enable Sales and Marketing, Customer First 
and Customer Relations departments of IMC, with 
the end-goal of providing a delightful experience to 
our customers, IMC IT has developed and upgraded 
the Call Center Interactive-Voice-response system. 
With this upgrade, Customers waiting for delivery of 
their vehicles can now call and get an instant update 
about the delivery and invoicing status. Customers 

need to enter their CNIC and PBO numbers as inputs 
to the IVR system.

Distributor Mobile App for Streamlining Oil Business
IMC has introduced a Distributor Mobile Application 
to streamline the operation of Toyota Genuine Oil. 
The mobile App with a simple and easy to follow 
interface, makes it easy for distributors to plan and 
order Oil from IMC.

Cloud Migration for Higher Availability
As part of its carefully-engineered Hybrid cloud 
strategy, IMC has migrated several mission-critical 
Business applications to Cloud. One such application 
is Genesis, which is extensively being used at 
dealerships to cater to the After-sales Business. 
The move to Microsoft Azure Cloud ensures highest 
possible availability, integrity and confidentiality for 
our customers. 

Information Security and Business Continuity 
Planning (BCP)/Disaster Recovery Planning (DRP) 
The Information Security function has gained 
significant prominence in the wake of ever-increasing 
cyber threats. In order to ensure Confidentiality, 
Integrity and Availability (CIA) of the enterprise data, 
there needs to be a constant focus on improving IT 
Security policies and procedures. In the current year, 
IMC reassessed and improved its BCP/DR Plan with 
the help of a reputed Big4 firm and also performed 
a successful DR Drill. This has provided adequate 
assurance to the Board and shareholders about the 
strength of IMCs BCP/DR plan readiness. In order 
to improve physical security within the plant, a RFID/
Fingerprint-based Access control mechanism has 
been deployed to ensure authorized access.

Future Outlook
Customer delight lies at the center of IMC’s IT Strategy. 
We will continue to build on the momentum that has 
been achieved on the Digital Transformation front. 
Toyota Vision 2025 talks about achieving ‘4Most’ in 
Business and contributing to Society as ‘The Best 
in Town’ company. IMC IT will be a key enabler for 
achieving this vision of being the company with Most 
Customers, Most Profitable, Most Competitive and 
Most Innovative.
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Corporate Social Responsibility 
Advancing Concern Beyond Cars
Social Performance: Good Corporate Citizen
In consonance with its Vision, Mission, Core Values 
and the UNGC Principles, Indus Motor Company 
always aims to demonstrate responsible corporate 
conduct throughout the entire spectrum of its 
activities and operations.

Indus Motor Company has a rich history of community 
investment that has evolved to meet the complexities 
and challenges of a developing society. We support 
a broad range of initiatives in the areas of Education, 
Health, Road Safety and Environment and Ecology 
conservation with a firm belief that these provide the 
fundamental building blocks for the development of 
society.

Since the formal launch of the CSR structure in 2002, 
the Company has worked to develop a common 
understanding and a harmonized approach to CSR 
within its operations and dealership network, through 
regular assessment of the current CSR situation and 
development of counter-measures.

We believe that the success of a business and its 
social responsibility goes hand in hand; hence we 
strive to contribute to the advancement of society 
and to effectively shape, help and promote its 
development. Together with our employees, we 
are involved in many charitable community projects 
in order to help meet social challenges and create 
noticeable benefits. Being an automobile company, 
Indus Motor has a considerable role to play in 
transformation towards a sustainable society in 
general and to combat climate change specifically.

By collaborating with stakeholders on projects that 
benefit society, IMC seeks to leverage its knowledge 
and networks where these can have the greatest 
positive impact. Major CSR initiatives undertaken in 
2018-19 to drive social transformation comprise:

Environment & Ecology Conservation:
The environmental dilemma has become a global 
concern; that is why the world is taking environment 
and climate change issues seriously and trying to 
cope with the adverse situation on a war footing. 
Apart from deforestation, industrial operations 
and products have a significant impact on the 
environment.

 Climate change has a significant impact on the planet. 
Everyone has to work together and play a part to  
bring about real change. We remain absolutely 
committed to improving fuel efficiency and reducing 
emissions for our customers, and we continue 
to pursue our electrification and sustainable 
manufacturing strategies to do our part to help 
address climate change issues. We have challenged 
ourselves to go further by setting stretch goals 
to reduce climate-related impacts in our facilities 
and nationwide. The major three investments are 
summarized below:

 IMC’s  SOCIAL
Contribution

DURING LAST 10 YEARS

(1) Million Tree Plantation Drive: Inspired by the 
“Toyota Environmental Challenge 2050”, Indus 
Motor determines to pave the way progressively for 
an environment-friendly society through a range of 
dedicated year-round initiatives. Being responsible 
corporate citizens we launched the Million Tree 
Plantation Drive in November 2018 at a small event 
graced by Mr Waseem Akhtar, the Mayor of Karachi. 
This CSR initiative will be sufficient to support 1% 
population of our country, as one tree generally will 

CEO, Mr. Ali Asghar Jamali, Mayor of Karachi 
and directors launching the Million Tree 
Plantation Drive

Rs. 1.11 Billion

67Annual Report 2019

Indus Motor Company Ltd.



sequester around 23 kg of atmospheric carbon 
dioxide. In our effort to offset and reduce CO2 
emissions and our targeting to achieve a net zero 
carbon footprint with respect to our production 
facility, several measures are being taken.

Our approach in this drive is to ensure the right 
selection of indigenous saplings to plant in the right 
location, as well as the sincere engagement of local 
communities, so that the plants could survive and 
grow to become trees. To make this drive effective, 
we have partnered with WWF-Pakistan for technical 
support and supply of quality saplings of various 
species. This helps us in expanding our reach and 
also serves as third party validation of our social 
contribution.

(2) Contribution towards construction of Diamer-
Bhasha and Mohmand Dams: The increasing 
pressures of population and industrialization have 
already placed greater demand on water. It is the 
second basic problem of Pakistan - a country that 
is gradually experiencing chronic water stress. Fresh 
water is not only vital for sustenance of life but 
equally essential for socio-economic development. 
Therefore, building of more reservoirs and an effective 
water management strategy are a need of the time.

Embracing the spirit of national integrity and 
considering the criticality of national needs, Indus 
Motor has pledged its contribution of Rs 100 million 
to release in annual tranches. During the year, IMC 
released a total of Rs 40 million to the PM-CJ Fund 
for construction of Diamer-Bhasha and Mohmand 
Dams. Realizing the significance of the water crisis, 
our CBA (Indus Peoples Workers Union) has also 
joined hands and donated a modest contribution 
equivalent to 3-hour overtime of all unionized staff.

(3) Sustainable City: (5S Clean and Green Drive 
2019, Phase-II): According to the World Bank’s 
Karachi City Diagnostic Report, the metropolis faces 
severe environmental challenges which include 
a high incidence of air, land, water and marine 
pollution. Much of this is caused by inadequate waste 
management. 60pc of solid waste is not collected 
and transferred to dump sites; most of the waste is 
either left rotting or is burnt, which creates a choking 
miasma that envelops the various localities. 

Keeping these grim details in mind, Indus Motor 
Co. initiated Clean-up Drive 2018 in Karachi aimed 
at owning the cities of Pakistan through engaging 
NGOs, Media, Citizens and volunteer employees. 
Our objective is to instill a sense of ownership, 
particularly among the younger generation, to allow 
them to understand the positive impact they can 
make on their society. The Sustainable City drive is 
still continuing in collaboration with WWF-Pakistan 
targeting 200 schools in Karachi. It is aimed at 
fostering a sense of civic responsibility, ownership and 
unity among Karachiites to keep the city clean. The 
5S principles of Toyota have also been inculcated in 
the drive so that everyone aspiring to take ownership 
of the overall environment can benefit by increasing 
their efficiency through these concepts. 

IMC employees conducting the 5S Cleanup 
Drive 

Support to Wheelchair Table Tennis Player for 
Tokyo 2020 Paralympic Games  

Indus Motor Co. has formally launched in Pakistan 
the global corporate initiative of Toyota “Start Your 
Impossible” that aims to inspire Toyota employees, 
partners and customers and connect the company’s 
core beliefs. Toyota believes that mobility goes beyond 
cars; it is about overcoming challenges and making 
dreams come true. The “Start Your Impossible” 
initiative reflects these values and highlights the 
company’s goal to provide freedom of mobility for all.

Mr Waseem Akhtar, Mayor of Karachi gracing 
the launch event of the Million Tree Plantation 
Drive
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Indus Motor Co. pledges to support Ms Zainab 
Barkat, the national wheelchair table tennis player, 
to represent Pakistan in the Tokyo 2020 Paralympic 
Games and fulfill her dream of returning as a gold 
medalist. This support by IMC to her is a part of the 
global ‘Start Your Impossible’ initiative that reflects 
the Olympic and Paralympic spirit of encouragement, 
challenge and progress. The global initiative highlights 
the company’s mission of creating a barrier-free 
society and reinforces its values of humility, hard 
work, overcoming challenges and never giving up.

Ms Zainab Barkat, national 
wheelchair table tennis player, 
aspiring Paralympic champion

Habib University Foundation: 
Promotion of education is a comprehensive process 
for human and social transformation. The Habib 
University Foundation’s portfolio revolves around 
higher education, educational research and youth 
development. Habib University is envisaged as a 
world-class research-based undergraduate institution 
aimed at responding to the pressing challenges of 
the 21st century. It is the hub of Liberal Arts and 
Sciences education in Pakistan, offering a truly 
transformative learning experience to its students. 
The university’s mission is to educate promising 
students from all backgrounds and promote diversity 
in the field of research and education, developing 
them into competent and conscious members of 
society. Around 90% students of the university are 
receiving some form of financial support, with some 
100+ scholarships being offered every year.

At Indus Motor Co., we believe that it is our youth 
which will lead the country to a brighter future and 
as a good corporate citizen it is our responsibility 
to invest in them. IMC has continued donation of 
a substantial amount this year and played its role 
in promoting creativity, academic freedom and the 
exchange of ideas in an intellectually-stimulating 
environment.

Community Uplift:
Indus Motor Co.’s ambition is to be a good corporate 
citizen in communities, especially in localities where 
it operates. 

Since Inception of IMC
Around 1 million people-touched 
through Free Medical Camps

Above 1 million people-touched 
through Food and Ration Distribution

Our well-articulated Community Uplifting Program 
for local communities has two overarching goals 
for making our neighbours happier, more balanced 
and instilling a greater sense of purpose in their daily 
life. The role of our Community Service in eliminating 
social exclusion in adjoining localities explores various 
avenues. The first goal is to take care of their health 
by providing good quality nutritious cooked food 
every week, edible rations hampers during Ramazan, 
organizing free weekly medical camps for OPD at 
three locations and free psychiatric medical camps at 
two locations every two months.

Toyota’s free weekly medical camp for OPD 
and psychiatric services 

The second goal is to marshal and focus on 
bringing their children to school for mental and 
spiritual enrichment through providing elementary 
to secondary education under the program “Toyota 
– Goth Education Program” (T-GEP), which was 
initiated in 2008. The first batch has passed their 
Matriculation exams in Grade-A1 and A, while the 
second batch successfully passed their exams and 
have been promoted to higher classes and they have
already started blossoming into young individuals.
IMC is determined to continue its full support for 
their Higher Secondary Education at private colleges, 
etc., so that after some time, when they become 
professionals, they will become agents of change in 
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transforming the community.
 
TGEP is a unique social intervention that has 
significantly improved the living standards of 
beneficiaries who have a most rewarding and uplifting 
experience. The growth of children is phenomenal 
and we truly believe that they are the ambassadors of 
change. The biggest impact on their living standards 
has brought a radical change in their daily life. The 
fraction of dropouts and gender differentiation has 
now decreased to a negligible level. Their preference 
for early marriage has diluted with the expectation 
of a brighter future. We believe this is a great way 
to give back to the community as it will ultimately 
reduce the level of poverty. Apart from this, we also 
have had the privilege of establishing a fully functional 
computer lab for the Government Secondary School 
in Razzaqabad.

Conducted around

million
T-GEP’s

y e a r s
 nurturing
d r e a m

academic-hours

Toyota - Technical Education Program
As human development is our fundamental focus, 
we are developing the skills of youth, especially 
young people who hail from the economically 
weaker sections. The Toyota Technical Education 
Program (T-TEP) was begun as a typical example of 
a corporate giving initiative to which IMC contributed 
training hardware for a vocational training college in 
Lahore in 2000. T-TEP is a three-year automobile 
diploma that provides thorough automobile training 
to youth, enabling them to pursue successful careers 
in the industry. For providing students a distinct 
platform to hone their technical skills and contribute 
in strengthening Pakistan’s automotive industry, 
at present IMC runs four TTEP training institutes in 
Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad, offering world-class, 
holistic education in varying automotive disciplines. 
To date, 4,397 industry-ready technicians have been 
trained; most of them are employed within the Toyota 
network in Pakistan. All these graduates are highly 
employable because of their skills and are also in high 
demand in Middle Eastern markets.

We are pleased to enter the 10th year of the program 
which has enabled the young talent of Pakistan 
to undergo holistic training and gain industry-

specific skills essential for professional growth and 
development in the auto industry.

TTEP training institutes offering world-class, 
holistic education in varying automotive 
disciplines to youth

Support to Health Sector

1.	 Support to Sindh Institute of Urology and 
Transplantation

Dr Adibul Rizvi of SIUT with CEO Mr Ali Asghar 
Jamali, appreciating the contribution of Indus 
Motor 

Indus Motor Company has released a Corporate 
philanthropy of 75 lakh rupees to the Sindh 
Institute of Urology and Transplantation (SIUT) to 
help them become more effective because they 
have unique assets and capability in providing 
quality treatment and transplantation to people 
suffering from renal diseases.
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Dr Adibul Rizvi of SIUT appreciated the 
contribution of Indus Motor and its support for the 
community at large. He assured that this support 
will help propel success stories of social-impact 
that SIUT is demonstrating a strong commitment 
to providing state-of-the-art healthcare for the 
community.

2.	 Support to Indus Hospital for the Extension 
Plan 
Health sector is one of the most challenging 
sectors in Pakistan with a dire need of attention.  
The hospitals are the focal point of collective 
national health system for generations. Indus 
Hospital is doing a commendable job to bridge the 
gaps in provision of healthcare to underprivileged 
and IMC is supporting them in this cause.

To contribute to Indus Hospital’s extension plans 
and reach out to poor and needy patients, Indus 
Motor Company has donated Rs.10 million.

IMC congratulating Indus Hospital on their 
commendable work and offering a donation of 
Rs.10 million
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Corporate Matters & Related Disclosures

Composition of the Board 

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company as on June 30, 2019 is as follows. 

1.	 The total number of directors are 10 as per the following:

a)	 Male				    10
b)	 Female		   	 -

2.	 The number of directors under respective categories are as follows:

a)	 Independent Director 		  01
b)	 Non-Executive Directors 	 06
c)	 Executive Directors 		  03

As per the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2017, “the Regulations”, the Board 
is required to have a female director and 1/3rd independent directors, not later than the expiry of the current 
term i.e. by October 31, 2020. 

Board of Directors Meetings
A total of Five (05) meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the 12 months period from July 01, 
2018 to June 30, 2019. Name of the directors (at any time during the year) alongwith their attendance at the 
Board Meetings is as follows. 

S. 
No. Name of Directors Meetings Attended

1 Mr. Ali S. Habib (Chairman) 5

2 Mr. Yuji Takarada (Vice Chairman & Director) 5

3 Mr. Ali Asghar Jamali (CEO) 4

4 Mr. Sadatoshi Kashihara 5

5 Mr. Susumu Matsuda [Mr. Tsuyoshi Haginiwa, Alternate Director] 5

6 Mr. Tetsuya Ezumi,   [Mr. Y. Wagata, Alternate Director / Mr. K. Sotowa,   
Ex. Alternate Director ] 4

7 Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib 4

8 Mr. Imran A. Habib / (Mr. Farhad Zulficar Ex- Director) 3

9 Mr. Azam Faruque 5

10 Mr. Parvez Ghias 5

Changes in Directors 
During the year, one casual vacancy occurred on the Board. Mr. Farhad Zulficar resigned as Director with effect 
from February 26, 2019 and Mr. Imran A. Habib was appointed as Director from the same date. 

The Board acknowledged the valuable contributions made by the outgoing Director and welcomed the new 
Director on the Board. 
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Committees of the Board 
The Board has formed the following Committees and 
details of members are as under:

1.	 Board Audit Committee 
1)	 Mr. Azam Faruque, Chairman 
2)	 Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib 
3)	 Mr. Imran A. Habib 
4)	 Mr. Parvez Ghias
5)	 Mr. Susumu Matsuda 
6)	 Mr. Tetsuya Ezumi  

2.	 Board Human Resource & Remuneration 
Committee
1)	 Mr. Azam Faruque, Chairman 
2)	 Mr. Ali S. Habib
3)	 Mr. Yuji Takarada 
4)	 Mr. Parvez Ghias
5)	 Mr. Ali Asghar Jamali 

3.	 Board Ethics Committee
1)	 Mr. Parvez Ghias, Chairman 
2)	 Mr. Ali Asghar Jamali
3)	 Mr. Imran A. Habib

Salient features of Remuneration policy for
Non-Executive Directors 
The Board acknowledge the valuable contributions 
being made by the Non-Executive directors (including 
independent director), and currently a meeting fee 
is being offered for attendance and participation at 
each Board meeting and its Committee, while this 
does not reflect compensation of their contributions 
and just represents a token of appreciation. The Non-
Executive directors may waive their rights to receive 
such remuneration for attending and participation in 
the above meetings.  
 
Remuneration of Executive Directors
The Remuneration of CEO & Directors of the 
Company for the year ended June 30, 2019, is given 
on page number 129.  

Principal Risk and Uncertainties 
Company’s financial performance is exceptional 
over the past recent years. However, the continuous 
depreciation of Pak Rupee against various currencies, 
rise in inflation and international commodity prices 
continues to be vital factors that have an impact 
on current and the future financial statements of 
the Company.  The increase in taxes and duties by 
Government result in increase in prices of products, 
which will affect the volumes of the industry.  
 
Under the Automotive Development Policy 2016-
2021, many new players have planned investments 

which are underway and will introduce new products 
in the local market. The company welcomes new 
competition. However, consistent Government 
policies are required alongwith creating a level 
playing field for the existing players of the industry for 
sustainable growth.

Internal Control
The Company has employed an effective system 
of internal controls to carry on the business of the 
Company in an orderly manner, safeguard its assets 
and secure the accuracy and reliability of its records. 
The Management supervision and reviews are an 
essential element of the system of internal controls. 
The Management has delegated the function of 
detailed examination and special review to the team 
of internal auditors.

The Board ensures adequacy of internal control 
activities either directly or through its Committees. 
The Board also reviews the Company’s financial 
operations and position at regular intervals by means 
of interim accounts, reports, profitability reviews and 
other financial and statistical information. Analysis of 
budgetary control is in place and the Board reviews 
material variances with explanations and actions 
taken thereon on periodic basis.

Risk management 
IMC has a formal risk management framework to 
assess the risks faced in the context of the broader 
political and macroeconomic environment. The risk 
management system identifies strategic, regulatory, 
financial, operational, reputational, and sustainability 
risks related to IMC business activities. The risks are 
reviewed by the management committee along with 
departmental objectives, targets and performance. 
Appropriate strategies are developed and 
implemented to minimize the impact of the identified 
risks.

The Company has also formulated a risk management 
structure based on the global practice followed by 
Toyota, with the aim of driving the Company strength 
growth with managing risk associated with business 
adequately. 

Financial Statements
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), 
as applicable in Pakistan and provisions of and 
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 
have been followed in preparation of the financial 
statements, where provisions of and directives issued 
under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, 
the provisions of and directives issued under the 
Companies Act, 2017 have been followed. 
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The auditors of the Company, M/s. A.F. Ferguson & 
Co., Chartered Accountants, audited the Financial 
Statements of the Company and have issued an 
unqualified report to the members. 

Pattern of Shareholding
The Pattern of Shareholding of the Company as on 
June 30, 2019, is given on pages 137 to 138.

Trading of Shares of the Company
During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Directors, 
the Executives, and their spouses and minor children 
have not carried out trading of shares of the Company, 
other than that disclosed in pattern of shareholding. 

Material Changes and Commitments
There have been no material changes and 
commitments affecting the financial position of the 
Company that have occurred between the end of the 
financial year of the Company to which the balance 
sheet relates and the date of the report, other than 
disclosed in Financial statements, or in this report. 

Appointment of Auditors
The existing auditors, M/s A.F. Ferguson & Co., 
Chartered Accountants retire and being eligible, 
offer themselves for re-appointment. The Directors 
endorse the recommendation of the Audit Committee 
for re-appointment of A.F Ferguson & Co, as the 
auditors for the year ending 2020.

Related Party Transactions
All transactions with related parties have been 
executed at arm’s length and in normal course of 
business, which have been disclosed in the financial 
statements under relevant notes.

Key Operating and Financial Data
The Key Operating and Financial Data is mentioned 
on pages 140 to 141 of the Annual Report.

Statement of Compliance with COCG
The Company has fully complied with requirements 
of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations 2017. Statement to this 
effect is annexed with this Report on page 84 to 85.

Chairman’s Review
The Directors of the company endorse the contents 
of the Chairman’s review, dealing with the overall 
performance of the Company, future outlook and 
report on the performance and effectiveness of the 
Board.

Moving Forward
Moving forward, your Company plans to secure new 
and exciting products from Toyota that will further 
strengthen the existing product slate to provide a 
wider choice to customers and ensure sustainable 
growth and value creation. 

After the formation of the newly elected government, 
we anticipate that policies are to be made to overcome 
the economic challenges. Initiatives are also to be 
taken to increase investments and localization.

Acknowledgement 
We are grateful to our customers for their continued 
patronage of our products and wish to acknowledge 
the efforts of the entire Indus team, including our 
staff, vendors, dealers and all business partners for 
their untiring efforts in these challenging times and 
look to their continued support. 

We bow to the Almighty and pray for His blessings 
and guidance. 

Karachi.
August 27, 2019

Ali Asghar Jamali
Chief Executive

Yuji Takarada
Vice Chairman
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Global Vision for Those We Serve

Customers
Provide safe and reliable vehicles that inspire 
enthusiasm at affordable prices. Listen sincerely to 
customer voices and continue to reinvent ourselves 
through sufficient information disclosure and 
dialogue.

Employees
Create working environments for various employees 
to work proudly and with loyalty and confidence 
in fulfilling their potential, which realize their self-
growth.

Global Society/Local Communities
Reduce environmental burdens through lifecycle 
by developing various eco-friendly vehicles and 
technologies and making them prevail. As a good 
corporate citizen, respect the culture and customs of 
every nation and contribute to social development. 
Be aware of responsibilities of developing and 
producing vehicles and contribute for realization of 
new mobility society free from traffic accidents and 
congestion. 

Shareholders
Ensure sustainable growth by fostering the virtuous 
circle: 
   o	 Always better cars 
   o	 Enriching lives of communities
   o	 Stable base of business. 

Business Partners
Contribute for economic development of local 
communities with open stance to new suppliers 
and dealers and through sustainable growth based 
on mutually beneficial business relationships with 
dealers/distributors and suppliers.

Defining the ideal form of the company for each stakeholder and the outline for 
the future it should take in order to realize the Global Vision

We aim to exceed expectations and be rewarded with a smile. We will meet challenging goals by engaging the 
talent and passion of people, who believe there is always a better way as we set out in the Global Vision. That 
means, we will sincerely listen to the voices of every stakeholder - customers, employees, business partners, 
shareholders, and global society/local communities, and respond to those expectations. The expression 
“Global Vision for Those We Serve” is our way of organizing and explaining the thoughts constituting the Global 
Vision in relation to stakeholders. It is Toyota’s resolve to meet challenging goals step by step to see the smiles 
and happiness of everyone including customers and beyond.
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Fun Facts & Tips for Safety
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YOU NEVER DRIVE ALONE
Even if you are alone in the car, you’re still responsible for more lives than you 
think. That’s because the safety of other road users are in your hands every time 
you’re behind the wheel.

SAFETY MULTIPLIER
There’s a very simple way to enhance the effectiveness of airbags by 15 times-
WEAR YOUR SEATBELT.

S IS FOR SAFETY
Keeping your child safe during a car ride is easy as ABC. Just put your child in a 
child safety seat. This can reduce the risk of fatality by 71% for infants and 54% 
for toddlers aged 1 to 4 years.

200MPH
AIRBAG SPEED
The only thing that should be speeding is your airbag. Deployed 
at speeds of up to 200mph in 0.2 seconds, the airbag provides 
protection between you and the steering wheel, dashboard or 
windshield.

AIRBAGS ENDANGER CHILDREN
Children aged 12 and under should always ride in the rear 
because the explosive force used to deploy an airbag can be 
fatal to young children. For the same reason, a rear-facing car 
seat for infants and toddlers should not be placed in front of an 
airbag.

SAVED BY A SEATBELT
100,000 - that’s the average number of people saved by seatbelts 
every year.
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SAFETY FEATURES TO KNOW
ISOFIX CHILD SEAT ANCHORS
ISOFIX child seat anchors allow you to fit a car seat directly into a 
vehicle without using a seatbelt. It is used for the safety of children so 
that child seat is installed properly on a regular basis. 

VSC (VEHICLE STABILITY CONTROL)
VSC helps suppress vehicle lateral skidding when cornering or during 
emergency steering maneuvers for excellent handling and stable 
performance.

GOA BODY WITH REINFORCEMENT
GOA (Global Outstanding Assessment) is collision safety body 
consisting of an impact absorbing body structure and high integrity 
cabin. In the case of a crash, the GOA body helps in minimizing cabin 
deformation.

SEATBELT: PRETENSIONER WITH
FORCE LIMITER & ELR
The pretensioners help the seatbelts to quickly restrain the occupants 
by retracting the seatbelts when vehicle is subjected to certain types 
of severe frontal collision. Force limiters mitigate the impact applied to 
the chest, thus contributing to achieving excellent occupant restraint 
performance.minimizing cabin deformation.

DUAL SRS AIRBAGS
The SRS (Supplemental Restraint System) airbags inflate when the 
vehicle is subjected to certain types of severe impacts that may cause 
significant injury to the occupants. They work together with the seat 
belts to help reduce the risk of death or serious injury. They can help 
protect the head and chest of the driver and front passenger from 
impact with interior components. SRS front airbags do not generally 
inflate if the vehicle is involved in a side or rear collision, if it rolls over, 
or if it is involved in a low-speed frontal collision.

ABS AND EBD
Anti-lock Braking System (ABS) helps to prevent the wheels from 
locking up and skidding during hard braking, allowing you to retain 
steering control. Electronic Brake Distribution (EBD) ensures brake-
force is distributed optimally between all wheels for effective braking.
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Gaining 
RECOGNITION
1.	 Corporate Excellence Award 2018
2.	 Overall Most Outstanding Company in Pakistan 2018
3.	 Most Outstanding Company in Pakistan in Automobile and Components 

Sector 2018
4.	 The Global SAP Innovation Award 2019
5.	 Business Sustainability Award 2018 in the category of multinational 

companies
6.	 Corporate Social Responsibility Award 2019 in the category of Sustainable 

Initiatives
7.	 Best Car of the year 2018: Toyota Corolla GLi (Consumer Choice Award)
8.	 Best Four-Wheel-Drive SUV of the year 2018: Toyota
9.	 CEO of the Year Award 2018: to Mr Ali Asghar Jamali, CEO, IMC
10.	Best Leadership Award 2018: to Mr Ali Asghar Jamali, CEO, IMC
11.	Annual Environment Excellence Award 2019 
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Statement of Compliance 
with the Code of Corporate Governance

This statement is being presented to comply with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) for the purpose of establishing a framework of 
good governance.

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1.	 The total number of directors are 10 as per the following:

a.	 Male	 10
b.	 Female	  -

2.	 At the year ended June 30, 2019, the composition of the Board of Directors (the Board) is as follows:

Independent Director 
1.	 Mr. Azam Faruque Director

Non-Executive Directors 
2.	 Mr. Ali S. Habib Chairman 
3.	 Mr. Imran A. Habib Director
4.	 Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib Director
5.	 Mr. Susumu Matsuda Director
6.	 Mr. Tetsuya  Ezumi Director
7.	 Mr. Parvez Ghias Director

Executive Directors 
8.	 Mr. Yuji Takarada Vice Chairman
9.	 Mr. Ali Asghar Jamali Chief Executive 
10.	Mr. Sadatoshi Kashihara Director

The independent director meets the criteria of independence under the Companies Act, 2017.

3.	 The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed companies, 
including this Company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable).

4.	 The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken 
to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5.	 The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of 
the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they 
were approved or amended has been maintained.

6.	 All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken 
by the Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies (The Act), 2017 
and the Regulations.

7.	 The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected 
by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act, the Code and 
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of the meetings of the Board.

8.	 The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance 
with the Act, the Code and these regulations.

9.	 In accordance with the criteria specified in the Code, 1 director of the company has been exempted by 
SECP from the requirements of Directors Training Program (DTP) as prescribed by the Code. 5 Directors 
are already certified directors under DTP. All the directors are fully conversant with their duties.

84



10.	During the year, there has been no change in the position and terms and conditions of employment of the 
Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit.

11.	The CFO and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) have duly endorsed the financial statements before approval 
of the Board.

12.	The Board has formed Committees  comprising of members given below: 

Audit Committee 
Mr. Azam Faruque Chairman
Mr. Imran A. Habib Member 
Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib Member
Mr. Susumu Matsuda Member
Mr. Tetsuya  Ezumi Member
Mr. Parvez Ghias Member
HR & Remuneration Committee 
Mr. Azam Faruque Chairman
Mr. Ali S. Habib Member
Mr. Yuji Takarada Member 
Mr. Ali Asghar Jamali Member
Mr. Parvez Ghias Member

13.	The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the 
committees for compliance.

14.	The frequency of meetings of the committees during the year was as per the following:

•	 Board Audit Committee	 Quarterly meetings
•	 Board HR & Remuneration Committee	 Half yearly meetings

15.	The Board has set up an effective internal audit function for a person who is considered suitably qualified 
and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

16.	The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating 
under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and 
registered with the Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their 
spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are 
in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted 
by the ICAP.

17.	The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other 
services except in accordance with the Act, these, Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and 
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18.	We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

Ali S. Habib
Chairman

Karachi
August 27, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
INDUS MOTOR COMPANY LIMITED 

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2017 

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Indus Motor Company 
Limited for the year ended June 30, 2019 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the 
Regulations. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. 
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s 
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance 
with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel 
and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting 
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not 
required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls 
or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance 
procedures and risks. 

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the 
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions 
and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only 
required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party 
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried 
out procedures to assess and determine the Company’s process for identification of related parties and that 
whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement 
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the 
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Chartered Accountants 
Dated: August 27, 2019
Karachi



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF INDUS 
MOTOR COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Indus Motor Company Limited (the Company), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2019, and the statement of profit or loss, the 
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations 
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement 
of financial position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of 
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with 
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of 
the state of the Company’s affairs as at June 30, 2019 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.
		
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as 
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
	
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters.
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Following are the Key audit matters:

S. No.  Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

(i) Estimates involved in the provision for    
warranty obligations (Refer note 20.4 to the 
annexed financial statements)

The Company normally provides warranty on 
its locally manufactured vehicles to customers 
and maintains a provision in this respect, which 
amounts to Rs 1,443.982 million as at June 
30, 2019. The management carries out a semi-
annual exercise to assess the reasonableness of 
the provision for warranty obligations retained in 
the financial statements. The management and 
the Board of Directors of the Company consider 
it as a significant estimate and the provisioning 
methodology is regularly reviewed by the Board’s 
Audit Committee. In ascertaining the adequacy 
of the provision, the Board takes into account 
the trend of regular warranty claims and any 
previous incidents of recall.

Due to the significance of the provision balance 
and related significant estimation involved, we 
considered it as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:
•	 We obtained an understanding of the 

warranty process, evaluated the design of, 
and performed the related tests of controls.

•	 We evaluated the appropriateness of the 
Company’s methodology for calculating the 
charge of warranty provisions for the year 
and tested the basis for the assumptions 
developed and used in the determination of 
the warranty provisions.

•	 We assessed the reasonableness of the 
assumptions used in determination of the 
warranty provision and tested the validity of 
the data used in the calculations.

•	 We reviewed the adequacy of disclosures 
made by the Company in accordance with 
the applicable financial reporting framework.
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S. No.  Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

(ii) Capital expenditure (Refer note 3 to the 
annexed financial statements)

During the current year, the Company has 
incurred significant capital expenditure mainly 
to enhance production capacity, technological 
upgrades and strengthen the existing product 
slate of the Company, as part of extension, 
expansion, balancing and modernization 
activities and has been capitalized during the 
year.

We consider the above as a key audit matter 
being significant transactions and events for the 
Company during the year.

Our audit procedures included the following:
•	 Assessed, on a sample basis, costs 

capitalised during the year by comparing 
the costs capitalised with the relevant 
underlying documentation, which included 
purchase agreements and invoices.

•	 Assessed whether the costs capitalized met 
the relevant criteria for capitalization as per 
the applicable accounting and reporting 
framework.

•	 Evaluated management’s estimation of 
economic useful lives and residual values by 
considering our knowledge of the business 
and practices adopted in the local industry.

•	 Reviewed the date of transferring capital 
work-in-progress to operating fixed assets 
by examining the completion certificates, on 
a sample basis.

•	 Assessed whether the disclosures are made 
in accordance with the financial reporting 
framework.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included 
in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies 
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Company’s internal control.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about 
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a)	 proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX 
of 2017);

(b)	 the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, 
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have 
been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the 
books of account and returns;

(c)	 investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose 
of the Company’s business; and

(d)	 zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by 
the company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Shahbaz Akbar.

Chartered Accountants
A. F. Ferguson & Co 
Dated: August 27, 2019	
Karachi 
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Statement of Financial Position
As at June 30, 2019

Note 2019 2018
--------(Rupees in ‘000)---------

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 3  13,804,509  7,224,839 
Intangible assets 3  93,524  86,540 
Long-term loans and advances 4  15,906  48,525 
Long-term deposits 5  11,129  9,443 
Deferred taxation - net 6  -    14,589 

 13,925,068  7,383,936 
Current Assets
Stores and spares 7  544,005  301,254 
Stock-in-trade 8  13,560,393  11,150,736 
Trade debts - unsecured 9  2,547,915  1,453,670 
Loans and advances 10  3,728,026  3,714,654 
Short-term prepayments 11  31,946  14,639 
Accrued return 12  34,846  120,016 
Other receivables 13  3,109,549  556,284 
Taxation - net 15  617,068  -   
Short-term investments 14  23,402,464  55,031,103 
Cash and bank balances 16  3,281,782  2,200,772 

 50,857,994  74,543,128 

TOTAL ASSETS  64,783,062  81,927,064 

EQUITY

Share Capital 
Authorised capital
500,000,000 (2018: 500,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs 10 each  5,000,000  5,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 17  786,000  786,000 
Reserves 18  39,259,309  35,958,342 

 40,045,309  36,744,342 
LIABILITIES

Non-Current Liabilities
Long term loan 19  80,540  -   
Deferred Revenue  53,690  22,711 
Deferred taxation - net 6  424,690  -   

 558,920  22,711 

Current Liabilities
Current portion of deferred revenue  3,300  3,933 
Unclaimed dividend  174,538  182,437 
Unpaid dividend  121,059  60,445 
Trade payables, other payables and provisions 20  15,950,203  15,731,241 
Advances from customers and dealers 21  7,929,733  27,491,128 
Taxation - net 15  -    1,690,827 

 24,178,833  45,160,011 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  64,783,062  81,927,064 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 24 

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Aqeel Loon
Chief Financial Officer

Ali Asghar Jamali
Chief Executive

 Yuji Takarada
Vice Chairman & Director
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Statement of Profit and Loss
For the year ended June 30, 2019

Note 2019 2018
--------(Rupees in ‘000)---------

Net sales 25  157,996,212  139,715,429 

Cost of sales 26 (138,804,538) (115,830,771)

Gross profit  19,191,674  23,884,658 

Distribution expenses 27  (1,403,611)  (1,283,889)

Administrative expenses 28  (1,410,033)  (1,523,800)

Other operating expenses 29  (234,977)  (193,620)

 (3,048,621)  (3,001,309)

 16,143,053  20,883,349 

Workers’ Profit Participation Fund and Workers’ Welfare Fund 30  (1,406,379)  (1,704,557)

 14,736,674  19,178,792 

Other income 31  4,306,662  3,900,685 

 19,043,336  23,079,477 

Finance cost 32  (67,407)  (80,311)

Profit before taxation  18,975,929  22,999,166 

Taxation 33  (5,260,954)  (7,227,306)

Profit after taxation  13,714,975  15,771,860 

(Rupees)

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 34  174.49  200.66 

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Aqeel Loon
Chief Financial Officer

Ali Asghar Jamali
Chief Executive

 Yuji Takarada
Vice Chairman & Director
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2019

Note 2019 2018
--------(Rupees in ‘000)---------

Profit after taxation  13,714,975  15,771,860 

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Remeasurement gain / (loss) on net defined benefit obligation 22.4  693  (9,127)

Related deferred tax (income) / charge thereon  (201)  2,647 

 492  (6,480)

Total comprehensive income for the year  13,715,467  15,765,380 

   

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Aqeel Loon
Chief Financial Officer

Ali Asghar Jamali
Chief Executive

 Yuji Takarada
Vice Chairman & Director
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Statement of Cash Flow 
For the year ended June 30, 2019

Note 2019 2018
---------(Rupees in ‘000)---------

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash (utilised in) / generated from operations 35  (6,346,782)  30,392,927 
Net decrease / (increase) in long-term loans and advances  32,619  (39,157)
Net increase in long-term deposits  (1,686)  -   
Compensation paid on advances received from customers  (403,646)  (400,320)
Increase in deferred revenue  30,979  18,778 
Payment to Workers’ Profit Participation Fund  (1,020,000)  (1,205,000)
Payment to Workers’ Welfare Fund  (450,978)  (356,881)
Income tax paid  (7,129,771)  (6,281,518)
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from operating activities  (15,289,265)  22,128,829 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets  (8,749,118)  (2,947,269)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment  68,577  74,119 
Interest received on bank deposits and Term Deposit Receipts  1,583,036  1,891,973 
Gain on sale of Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs)  308,105  287,404 
Proceeds against sale / redemption of Pakistan Investment Bonds  -    5,123,453 
Investment in listed mutual fund units  (8,238,074)  (17,705,961)
Dividend income received from mutual funds  494,074 -
Proceeds from redemption of listed mutual fund units  17,242,007  8,941,825 
Proceeds against maturity of Term Deposit Receipts  -    7,000,000 
Interest received on Market Treasury Bills  399,787  -   
Investment in Market Treasury Bills  -    (5,749,468)
Proceeds from sale of Market Treasury Bills  1,103,183  6,540,973 
Net cash inflow from investing activities  4,211,577  3,457,049 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long term loan received  80,540  -   
Dividend paid  (10,361,785)  (10,142,419)
Net cash outflow on financing activities  (10,281,245)  (10,142,419)

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents during 
the year  (21,358,933)  15,443,459 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  48,043,179  32,599,720 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 36  26,684,246  48,043,179 

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Aqeel Loon
Chief Financial Officer

Ali Asghar Jamali
Chief Executive

 Yuji Takarada
Vice Chairman & Director
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Statement of Changes In Equity
For the year ended June 30, 2019

Share Capital Reserves

TotalIssued, 
subscribed 
and paid-up

Capital Revenue

Sub-TotalShare 
Premium

General 
reserve

Unappro-
priated profit

---------------------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ----------------------------------------

Balance at July 1, 2017 786,000 196,500 23,451,050 6,763,412 30,410,962 31,196,962 

Transfer to general reserve for the year ended
June 30, 2017 appropriated subsequent to year end  -    -   4,000,000 (4,000,000)  -    -   

Transactions with owners

Final dividend @ 400% for the year ended
June 30, 2017 declared subsequent to year end  -  -  - (2,751,000) (2,751,000) (2,751,000)

1st Interim dividend for the year ended June 30, 
2018 @ 300%  -  -  - (2,358,000) (2,358,000) (2,358,000)

2nd Interim dividend for the year ended
June 30, 2018 @ 325%  -  -  - (2,554,500) (2,554,500) (2,554,500)

3rd Interim dividend for the year ended  
June 30, 2018 @ 325%  -    -    -   (2,554,500) (2,554,500) (2,554,500)

Total transactions with owners  -    -    -   (10,218,000) (10,218,000) (10,218,000)

Profit after taxation for the year - - - 15,771,860 15,771,860 15,771,860 
Other comprehensive loss for the year  -    -    -   (6,480) (6,480) (6,480)

Total comprehensive income for the year
ended June 30, 2018  -    -    -   15,765,380 15,765,380 15,765,380 

Balance at June 30, 2018 786,000 196,500 27,451,050 8,310,792 35,958,342 36,744,342 

Transfer to general reserve for the year ended
June 30, 2018 appropriated subsequent to year end  -    -   4,500,000 (4,500,000)  -    -   

Transactions with owners

Final dividend @ 450% for the year ended
June 30, 2018 declared subsequent to year end  -    -    -   (3,537,000) (3,537,000) (3,537,000)

1st Interim dividend for the year ended
June 30, 2019 @ 325%  -    -    -   (2,554,500) (2,554,500) (2,554,500)

2nd Interim dividend for the year ended
June 30, 2019 @ 250%  -    -    -   (1,965,000) (1,965,000) (1,965,000)

3rd Interim dividend for the year ended
June 30, 2019 @ 300%  -    -    -   (2,358,000) (2,358,000) (2,358,000)

Total transactions with owners  -    -    -   (10,414,500) (10,414,500) (10,414,500)

Profit after taxation for the year  -    -    -   13,714,975 13,714,975 13,714,975 
Other comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -   492 492 492 

Total comprehensive income for the year
ended June 30, 2019  -    -    -   13,715,467 13,715,467 13,715,467 

Balance at June 30, 2019 786,000 196,500 31,951,050  7,111,759 39,259,309 40,045,309 

Proposed final dividend and transfer between reserves made subsequent to the year ended June 30, 2019 are disclosed in note 45 to these 
financial statements.

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Aqeel Loon
Chief Financial Officer

Ali Asghar Jamali
Chief Executive

 Yuji Takarada
Vice Chairman & Director
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

1	 GENERAL INFORMATION							     
								      
	 Indus Motor Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company 

in December 1989 and started commercial production in May 1993. The shares of the Company are 
quoted on  the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

	 The Company was formed in accordance with the terms of a Joint Venture agreement concluded 
amongst certain House of Habib companies, Toyota Motor Corporation and Toyota Tsusho Corporation 
for the purposes of assembling, progressive manufacturing and marketing of Toyota vehicles. The 
Company also acts as the sole distributor of Toyota and Daihatsu vehicles in Pakistan and has a license 
for assembling, progressive manufacturing and marketing of these vehicles in Pakistan.

	 The registered office and factory of the Company is situated at Plot No. NWZ/1/P-1, Port Qasim Industrial 
Estate, Bin Qasim, Karachi.

2	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

	 The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out 
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1	 Basis of preparation 							     
								      
2.1.1	 Statement of compliance							    
								      
	 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting 

standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan 
comprise of: 

	 -	 International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

	 -	 Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017				  
		

	 Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the 
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.1.2	 Initial application of standards, amendments or interpretations to published approved accounting 
and reporting standards

2.1.3	 Standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting and reporting standards that 
became effective during the year ended June 30, 2019

	 There are certain new standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards 
which are mandatory for the Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2018 but are 
considered not to be relevant or have any significant effect on the Company’s financial reporting, except 
as mentioned below:

							     
	 -	 IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ - This standard replaces guidance in IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: 

Recognition and Measurement’. It includes requirements on the classification and measurement of 
financial assets and liabilities derecognition of financial instruments, impairment of financial assets 
and hedge accounting; it also includes an expected credit losses impairment model that replaces the 
current incurred loss impairment model.
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

	 As a result of application of IFRS 9, investments in market treasury bills have been classified as ‘fair 
value through profit or loss’ based on the business model of the Company and investments in Term 
Deposit Receipts have been reclassified from ‘held to maturity’ to ‘amortised cost’. Further, based on 
assessment by the management, no material change in provision for impairment of financial assets is 
required in these financial statements.

	 -	 IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ - IFRS 15 replaces the previous revenue standards: 
IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts, and the related interpretations on revenue 
recognition.

		  IFRS 15 introduces a single five-step model for revenue recognition with a comprehensive framework 
based on core principle that an entity should recognise revenue representing the transfer of promised 
goods or services under separate performance obligations under the contract to customer at an 
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those 
promised goods or services.

		  Further, IFRS 15 explains transaction price as the amount of consideration to which an entity expects to 
be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts 
collected on behalf of third parties (for example, some sales taxes). The consideration promised in a 
contract with a customer may include fixed amounts, variable amounts, or both.

		  As a result of application of IFRS 15, compensation on advances received from customers for the year 
amounting to Rs 208.311 million (2018: Rs 492.095 million) that were previously classified in ‘Finance 
Cost’ have now been netted off against Revenue from contract with customers. 

	 Consequent to the adoption of above mentioned standards, changes in accounting policies have been 
reflected in note 2.3.4, 2.3.6 and 2.3.16.

2.1.4	 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing accounting standards that are not yet 
effective and have not been early adopted by the Company

	 IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ will be effective for the Company’s annual accounting period beginning July 1, 2019. It 
will result in almost all leases being recognised on the statement of financial position, as the distinction 
between operating and finance leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use 
the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short-
term and low-value leases. At present the Company is in the process of determining the impacts of 
application of IFRS 16 on future financial statements of the Company.

	 There are certain other new standards and amendments to the approved accounting standards that will 
be mandatory for the Company’s annual accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2019. However, 
these standards and amendments will not have any significant impact on the financial reporting of the 
Company and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial statements.

2.2	 Basis for measurement							     
								      
2.2.1	 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that 

investments classified as financial assets ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ and ‘derivative financial  
instruments’ have been marked to market and certain staff retirement benefits are carried at present 
value of defined benefit obligation less fair value of plan assets.

2.3	 Summary of significant accounting policies							     
								      
	 The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out 

below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented  unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

2.3.1	 Property, plant and equipment							     
								      
2.3.1.1	 Property, plant and equipment - Owned							    
								      
	 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any, except capital work-in-progress which is stated at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. 

	 Depreciation is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the straight line method, whereby 
the depreciable amount of an asset is written off over its estimated useful life. The cost of leasehold 
land is amortised equally over the lease period. Depreciation is charged on additions from the month 
the asset is available for use and on disposals up to the month preceding the month of disposal. The 
rates of depreciation are stated in note 3.2  to these financial statements. 

	 The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted, if 
appropriate, at each reporting date. 

	 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amounts or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow 
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Normal repairs and maintenance 
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. All other repairs and maintenance 
are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

	 Gains and losses on sale or retirement of property, plant and equipment are included in the statement 
of profit or loss.

Capital work-in-progress

All expenditures connected with specific assets incurred during installation and construction period 
are carried under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when 
assets are available for use.
								      

2.3.1.2	 Intangible assets - Computer Softwares							    
								      

Computer softwares are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. Softwares’ costs are only 
capitalised when it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the softwares will flow to 
the Company and the same is amortised applying the straight line method at the rates stated in note 
3.2 to these financial statements.
								      

2.3.1.3	 Impairment of non-financial assets

	 The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and 
equipment and intangible assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the carrying amounts 
of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable 
amounts and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-
generating units are written down to their recoverable amounts and the differences are recognised in 
the statement of profit or loss.

2.3.2	 Stores and spares

	 Stores and spares, except in transit are valued at cost, determined on a moving average basis. Provision 
is made for any slow moving and obsolete items. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice 
values plus other charges incurred thereon.
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2.3.3	 Stock-in-trade

	 Stock-in-trade, except in transit, are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Stock in 
transit are valued at cost as accumulated upto the reporting date, comprising invoice values plus other 
charges incurred thereon.

	 Cost of raw materials, own manufactured vehicles and trading stock is determined on a moving 
average basis. Cost of work-in-process is valued at material cost.

	 Provision for obsolete and slow moving stock-in-trade is determined based on the management’s 
assessment regarding their future usability. 

	 Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less 
estimated cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary to be incurred for its sale.

2.3.4	 Financial assets and liabilities							     
								      
2.3.4.1	 Financial assets							     
								      
	 a)	 Financial assets at amortised cost

		  Financial assets at amortised cost are held within a business model whose objective is to hold 
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial 
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on 
the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets, impairment losses, 
foreign exchange gains and losses, and gain or loss arising on derecognition are recognised 
directly in profit or loss.

	 b)	 Fair value through other comprehensive income

		  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business 
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial 
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

	 c)	 Fair value through profit or loss

		  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are those financial assets which are either 
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other categories. A gain or loss on debt 
investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit 
or loss in the period in which it arises.

		  Financial assets are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given 
and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are subsequently remeasured to 
fair value, amortized cost or cost as the case may be. Any gain or loss on the recognition and 
de-recognition of the financial assets and liabilities is included in the profit or loss for the period in 
which it arises.

								      
	 Equity instrument financial assets / mutual funds are measured at fair value at and subsequent to initial 

recognition. Changes in fair value of these financial assets are normally recognised in profit or loss. 
Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss when the Company’s right 
to receive payment is established. Where an election is made to present fair value gains and losses on 
equity instruments in other comprehensive income there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value 
gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
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	 Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired 
or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of 
ownership. Assets or liabilities that are not contractual in nature and that are created as a result of 
statutory requirements imposed by the Government are not the financial instruments of the Company.

	 The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its 
financial assets carried at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income. The 
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit 
risk. For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach, which requires expected 
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. The Company recognises in 
profit or loss, as an impairment gain or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is 
required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date.

2.3.4.2	 Financial Liabilities

	 All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially measured at fair value 
minus transaction costs. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at 
fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the profit or loss. 

	 Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective yield method.

	 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or 
expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange and 
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, 
and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit or loss.

								      
2.3.4.3	 Impairment of financial assets							     
								      
	 The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with 

its financial assets. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk. The Company applies the simplified approach to recognise lifetime 
expected credit losses for trade and other receivables.

2.3.4.4	 Off-setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

	 A financial asset and financial liability is off-set and the net amount is reported in the statement of 
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the transaction and also there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.3.5	 Loans, advances and deposits

	 These are stated at cost less estimates made for any doubtful receivables based on a review of 
all outstanding amounts at the reporting date. Balances considered doubtful and irrecoverable are 
written off when identified.

	 Long term loans are initially carried at cost as the effect of carrying these balances at amortised cost 
would not be material in the overall context of these financial statements.
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2.3.6	 Trade debts and other receivables

	 Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is 
unconditional, unless they contain significant financing component in which case such are recognised 
at fair value. The Company holds the trade debts with the objective of collecting the contractual cash 
flows and therefore measures the trade debts subsequently at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. Impairment of trade debts and other receivables is described in note 2.3.4.3

2.3.7	 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting 

	 The Company designates derivative financial instruments as either fair value hedge or cash flow hedge.

	 Fair value hedge

	 Fair value hedge represents hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a firm 
commitment. Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value 
hedges are recorded in the statement of profit or loss, together with any changes in the fair value of 
the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. The carrying value of the hedged 
item is adjusted accordingly.

	 Cash flow hedge

	 Changes in fair value of derivative hedging instruments designated as a cash flow hedge are recognised 
in the statement of comprehensive income to the extent that the hedge is effective. To the extent the 
hedge is ineffective, changes in fair value are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

	 Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to the statement of profit or loss in the periods in 
which the hedged item will affect the statement of profit or loss. 

2.3.8	 Taxation

	 Current	

	 Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation, after 
considering rebates and tax credits available, if any, and taxes paid under the Final Tax Regime. The 
charge for current tax also includes adjustments where necessary, relating to prior years which arise 
from assessments framed / finalised during the year.

	 Deferred

	 Deferred tax is recognised using the statement of financial position liability method, on major temporary 
differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that the temporary differences will reverse in the future and taxable 
income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part for 
the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the 
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019
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2.3.9	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in 
hand, bank balances, bank deposits net of running finances and short term investments having a 
contractual maturity of three months or less. The cash and cash equivalents are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash and are therefore subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.  

2.3.10	 Trade and other payables

	 Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost, which is the fair value of the 
consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services, whether or not billed to the Company.

2.3.11	 Provisions

	 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a 
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are 
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

2.3.12	 Warranty obligations							     
								      
		  The Company recognises the estimated liability, on an accrual basis, to repair or replace products 

under warranty at the reporting date, and recognises the estimated product warranty costs in the 
statement of profit or loss when the sale is recognised.

2.3.13	 Staff retirement benefits							    
								      
	 Defined contribution plan - Provident Fund

	 The Company operates a recognised provident fund for its permanent employees. Equal monthly 
contributions are made to the Fund by the Company and the employees in accordance with the rules 
of the Fund. The Company has no further payment obligation once the contributions have been paid. 
The contributions made by the Company are recognised as an employee benefit expense when they 
are due.

	 Defined benefit / contribution plan - Pension Fund

	 The Company also operates an approved funded pension scheme for its permanent employees.

	 The employee pension is governed by two sets of Rules, ‘New Rules’ - Defined contribution plan and 
‘Old Rules’ - Defined benefit plan. The New Rules are applicable to all members of the Fund with effect 
from July 1, 2008. However, the Old Rules continue to apply to all persons whose employment with 
the Company ceased before July 1, 2008 and who are entitled to pension from the Fund. In addition, 
the Old Rules also apply to existing employees who have not opted to be governed by the New Rules. 

	 In accordance with the New Rules an actuarial balance was determined by the actuary as at June 
30, 2008 in respect of all members of the Fund who were in the service of the Company as of that 
date and opted to be governed by the New Rules which was credited to the members’ individual 
accounts. With effect from July 2008 the Company is required to make a fixed monthly contribution 
to the Fund based on the basic salary of the employees which is credited into the individual account 
of each member. The Company has no further payment obligation once these monthly contributions 
have been paid to the Fund. Profit earned on the investments maintained by the Fund is also allocated 
into the individual account of each member. 

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019
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	 The pension liability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of members governed 
by the Old Rules is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the statement of financial 
position date less the fair value of plan assets attributed to these members. Contributions are made 
to cover the pension obligations in respect of the members governed by the Old Rules on the basis of 
actuarial recommendations.

	 The amount arising as a result of remeasurement is recognised in the statement of financial position 
immediately, with a charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. 

	 The Projected Unit Credit Method is used for the valuation of pension liability in respect of members 
governed by the Old Rules as at June 30, 2019, using significant assumptions as stated in note 22 to 
these financial statements.

2.3.14	 Employees’ compensated absences

	 The Company accounts for compensated absences on the basis of unavailed earned leave balance 
of each employee at the end of the year.

2.3.15	 Dividend distribution and transfer between reserves

	 Dividend declared and appropriations to reserves made subsequent to the reporting date are 
considered non-adjusting events and are recognised in the financial statements in the year in which 
they are approved.

2.3.16	 Revenue recognition

	 Revenue is recognised when or as performance obligations are satisfied by transferring control of a 
promised goods or service to a customer under contract.

	 Return on bank deposits, term deposit receipts and mark-up on advances to suppliers and contractors 
are accounted for on an accrual basis.

	 Agency commission is recognised when shipments are made by the principal.

	 Unrealised gains / losses arising on re-measurement of investments classified as ‘financial assets at 
fair value through profit or loss’ are included in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which 
these arise.

	 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established. 

	 Income on Market Treasury Bills and Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs) is accrued using the effective 
interest rate method.

2.3.17	 Foreign currency transactions and translation

	 Foreign currency transactions are recognised or accounted for in Pakistani Rupees using the exchange 
rate prevailing on the date of  the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are 
translated into Pakistani Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing on the reporting date. Exchange 
gain / loss on foreign currency translations are included in income / equity along with any related 
hedge effects.
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2.3.18	 Functional and presentation currency

	 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani 
Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

2.3.19	 Accounting estimates and judgments							     
								      
	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards 

as applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires 
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. 
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience, including 
expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas 
where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company’s financial statements or 
where judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

	 i)	 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment (notes 2.3.1 and 3.2)

		  The Company reviews the useful lives of fixed assets on a regular basis. Any change in estimates 
in future years might affect the carrying amounts of respective items of operating fixed assets with 
a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

	 ii)	 Provision for slow moving stores and spares (notes 2.3.2 and 7)

		  The Company exercises judgment and makes provision for slow moving stores and spares based 
on their future usability. 

	 iii)	 Provision for slow moving stock-in-trade (notes 2.3.3 and 8)

		  The Company exercises judgment and makes provision for slow moving stock-in-trade based on 
their future usability and recoverable value. 

	 iv)	 Provision for doubtful debts (notes 2.3.6 and 9)

		  The Company makes provision for doubtful debts using the simplified approach on the basis of 
changes in credit risk.

	 v)	 Classification and valuation of investments (notes 2.3.4 and 14)

		  The Company takes into account its intention for classification of investments as mentioned in 
note 2.3.4.1 at the time of purchase. The valuation of investments is done based on the criteria 
mentioned in the same note.

	 vi)	 Income taxes (notes 2.3.8 and 33)

		  The Company takes into account the current income tax law and the decisions taken by the 
appellate authorities. Instances where the Company’s view differs from the view taken by the 
Income Tax Department at the assessment stage and where the Company considers that its views 
on the items of material nature is in accordance with the law, the amounts are shown as contingent 
liabilities. Deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profits will be available against which the asset may be utilised.
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	 vii)	 Warranty obligations (notes 2.3.12 and 20.4)

		  The Company exercises professional judgment, based on the history of warranty claims entertained, 
number of cars eligible for warranty and its internal risk assessment while making assessment in 
respect of the warranty obligations.

	 viii)	 Staff retirement benefits (notes 2.3.13 and 22)

		  The Company has post retirement benefit obligations, which are determined through actuarial 
valuations as carried out by an independent actuary using various assumptions as disclosed in 
note 22 to these financial statements.

	  ix)	 Contingencies and commitments (note 24)

		  The Company uses assumptions and estimates in disclosure and assessment of provision for 
contingencies as disclosed in note 24.

2.3.20	 Segment reporting 

	 The Company uses ‘management approach’ for segment reporting, under which segment information 
is required to be presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes. Operating 
segments have been determined and presented in a manner consistent with the internal reporting 
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The Company has determined operating segments 
on the basis of business activities i.e. manufacturing and trading activities. Segment assets have not 
been disclosed in these financial statements as these are not reported to the chief operating decision-
maker on a regular basis.

2.3.21	 Deferred revenue

	 Amount received on account of sale of extended warranty services against vehicles is recognised 
initially as deferred revenue and credited to the statement of profit or loss in the relevant period 
covered by the warranty.

Note 2019 2018
------(Rupees in ‘000)------

3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT & INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 3.1 13,804,509  7,224,839 
Intangible assets 3.2  93,524  86,540 

13,898,033  7,311,379 
3.1 Property, plant and equipment

Tangible operating assets 3.2 13,360,788  6,933,371
Capital work-in-progress 3.6  443,721  291,468 

13,804,509  7,224,839 
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3.3 Leasehold land, on which the factory building, plant and warehouse are situated, is spread across an 
area of 107.5 acres. It is located at Plot No. NWZ/1/P-1 & W2/1/1-3, Port Qasim Industrial Estate, Bin 
Qasim, Karachi.

3.4 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Note 2019 2018
------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Cost of sales - own manufactured 26  1,986,409  1,800,608 
Distribution expenses 27  39,842  37,727 
Administrative expenses 28  64,787  53,543 

 2,091,038  1,891,878 

3.5 Particulars of tangible operating assets having a net book value exceeding Rs 500,000 disposed off 
during the year are as follows:

Particulars Cost
Accumulated 
depreciation

Net book 
value

Sale proceeds /
receivable from 

sale of operating 
fixed assets

Gain / (loss) Mode of disposal Particulars of buyer

---------------------------------(Rupees in '000)----------------------------------

Motor vehicles

 5,399  (1,260)  4,139  5,123  984 Bidding Mr. Mohamamd Arif Khan - Karachi

 2,129  (319)  1,810  2,102  292 --do-- Mr. Muhammad Muzammil - Karachi

 2,129  (319)  1,810  2,079  269 --do-- Mr. Muhammad Muzammil - Karachi

 3,749  (1,625)  2,124  2,955  831 --do-- Mr. Syed Yasir Ahmed - Karachi

 1,919  (1,279)  640  1,838  1,198 --do-- Mr. Muhammad Muzammil - Karachi

 4,956  (743)  4,213  4,100  (113) --do-- Mr. Maaz Saleem - Karachi

 5,399  (1,800)  3,599  6,250  2,651 --do-- M/s. Augmentech Business Solution - Karachi

 4,399  (1,466)  2,933  4,555  1,622 --do-- M/s. Toyota Central Motors - Karachi

 2,129  (461)  1,668  2,150  482 --do-- M/s. Augmentech Business Solution - Karachi

 2,679  (357)  2,322  2,183  (139) --do-- Mr. Muhammad Yamin - Karachi

 2,379  (198)  2,181  2,450  269 --do-- M/s. Augmentech Business Solution - Karachi

 1,250  (188)  1,062  1,090  28 Employee Scheme Mr. Azam Khan (Executive)

 2,209  (700)  1,509  1,951  442 --do-- Mr. Muhammad Aslam (Executive)

 1,391  (371)  1,020  1,224  204 --do-- Mr. Muhammad Rafique (Employee)

 1,265  (148)  1,117  1,139  22 --do-- Mr. Atif Ahmed (Executive)

 1,391  (394)  997  1,214  217 --do-- Mr. Rehan Ahmed Khan (Employee)

 1,391  (417)  974  1,066  92 --do-- Mr. Shahab Ghouri (Employee)

 1,391  (298)  1,093  1,224  131 --do-- Mr. Kashif Akhlaq (Executive)

 1,528  (153)  1,375  1,463  88 --do-- Mr. Umer Farooq (Employee)

 1,129  (565)  564  847  283 --do-- Mr. Kamran Khan (Executive)

 1,391  (487)  904  1,172  268 --do-- Mr. Abdul Rafay (Executive)

 1,391  (394)  997  1,204  207 --do-- Mr. Fahad Iftikhar (Executive)

Others
Items having 
net book value 
of less than Rs 
500,000 each  111,139  (108,782)  2,357  21,418  19,061 Various Various

2019  164,132  (122,724)  41,408  70,797  29,389 

2018  187,494  (129,894)  57,600  101,243  43,643 

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
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Note 2019 2018
------(Rupees in ‘000)------

3.6 Capital work-in-progress

Leasehold Land 3.6.1  81,000  -   
Civil works  2,387  27,703 
Plant, machinery, tools and equipment  351,940  256,748 
Computer and related accessories  8,394  7,017 

 443,721  291,468 

3.6.1 This represents payment made in respect of land measuring 2 acres, located at W2/9, Port Qasim 
Industrial Estate, Karachi. The legal formalities for the transfer of the title of land in name of the Company 
are in process and will be finalised in due course.

Note 2019 2018
------(Rupees in ‘000)------

3.7 Movement in capital work-in-progress

Opening balance  291,468  1,067,088 
Additions during the year  8,522,720  2,543,545 
Transferred to operating fixed assets (8,370,467)  (3,319,165)
Closing balance  443,721  291,468 

4 LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good
Loans to employees - secured

Executives 4.2  31,003  37,101 
Others  19,949  9,336 

4.1  50,952  46,437 
Advances to suppliers - unsecured  -    30,000 

 50,952  76,437 
Less: Recoverable within one year; shown under current assets
Loans due from - secured

Executives 10  21,853  19,673 
Employees 10  13,193  8,239 

 35,046  27,912 
 15,906  48,525 

4.1 These represent house building and personal loans granted to executives and other employees. These 
are granted in accordance with the terms of their employment and are secured against their balances 
with the Provident Fund. The loans are repayable over a period of 12 to 24 months. House building and 
personal loans to management employees carry interest at the rate of 3.00% to 3.50% (2018: 3.00% to 
3.50%) per annum. Non-management employees are entitled to personal loans which carry no interest 
as per the approved loan policy.

4.2 These include loan, in excess of Rs 1 million, to a key management personnel named Mr. Muhammad 
Arif. The maximum aggregate amount of such loans outstanding at the end of any month during the year 
was Rs 2.380 million (2018: Rs 23.223 million).

2019 2018
5 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Deposits
Utilities  7,450  7,450 
Others  3,679  1,993 

 11,129  9,443 
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6 DEFERRED TAXATION - net 2019 2018
------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Deferred tax liability arising on taxable temporary differences:
In respect of revaluation of derivatives and unrealised gain on mutual funds  -    (51,362)
Due to accelerated tax depreciation  (526,033)  -   

Deferred tax asset arising on deductible temporary differences:
In respect of provisions for slow moving stock-in-trade, stores 

and spares and other provisions  104,531  61,685 
In respect of revaluation of derivatives and unrealised gain on mutual funds  (3,188)  -   
Due to accelerated tax depreciation  -    4,266 

Deferred tax (liability) / asset - net  (424,690)  14,589 

Note 2019 2018
7 STORES AND SPARES ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Stores  310,569  226,332 
Spares  574,924  345,776 

 885,493  572,108 
Less: Provision for slow moving stores and spares  341,488  270,854 

 544,005  301,254 
8 STOCK-IN-TRADE

In hand

Manufacturing stock
Raw material and components  6,307,657  3,429,736 
Less: Provision for slow moving stock-in-trade  38,181  60,166 

8.1  6,269,476  3,369,570 

Work-in-process  683,469  518,329 

Finished goods (vehicles – own manufactured) 8.2  117,347  201,619 
Less: Provision for slow moving stock-in-trade  1,162  258 

 7,069,130  4,089,260 
Trading stock

Vehicles 8.2  924,741  1,364,969 
Less: Provision for slow moving stock-in-trade  110,038  3,003 

 814,703  1,361,966 

Spare parts 8.3  486,621  448,828 
Special service tools and publications  8,036  6,289 
Less: Provision for slow moving stock-in-trade  84,635  86,405 

 410,022  368,712 
In transit

Raw material - manufacturing stock  4,903,060  5,086,106 
Trading stock  363,478  244,692 

13,560,393 11,150,736 

8.1 This represents the net amount of raw material and components after recording write offs amounting to 
Rs 6.230 million (2018: Rs 65.360 million). 

8.2 These include vehicles amounting to Rs 751.826 million (2018: Rs 918.208 million) held with the 
Company's authorised dealers.

8.3 This includes an amount of Rs Nil million (2018: Rs 16.909 million) representing stock-in-trade of motor oil.
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2019 2018
------(Rupees in ‘000)------

9 TRADE DEBTS - UNSECURED

Considered good
Government organisations  1,562,331  825,580 
Others  985,584  628,090 

 2,547,915  1,453,670 
Considered doubtful  978  -   

 2,548,893  1,453,670 
Less: Provision for doubtful debts  (978)  -   

 2,547,915  1,453,670 

9.1 As at June 30, 2019, Rs 324.274 million (2018: Rs 112.755 million) are overdue but not impaired in 
respect of trade debts. These balances relate to various customers, primarily government organisations, 
for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade debts is as follows:

Note 2019 2018
------(Rupees in ‘000)------

1 to 6 months  323,978  18,340 
More than 6 months  296  94,415 

 324,274  112,755 
10 LOANS AND ADVANCES

Current portion of long-term loans and advances - considered good
Loans due from - secured

Executives 4  21,853  19,673 
Employees 4  13,193  8,239 

 35,046  27,912 
Advances – considered good

Suppliers and contractors - unsecured  155,761  52,359 
Employees - unsecured  19,672  13,717 
Collector of Customs - secured 10.1  1,400,860  2,196,088 
Margins held with banks against imports - secured 10.2  2,116,687  1,424,578 

 3,692,980  3,686,742 

 3,728,026  3,714,654 

10.1 This represents advance amount paid to the Collector of Customs in respect of the imports of stock-
in-trade. An amount of Rs 902.072 million (2018: Rs 2,159.455 million) was subsequently adjusted in 
respect of imported goods received.

10.2 This represents cash held with various banks as a regulatory requirement against letters of credit 
for import of items of stock-in-trade. An amount of Rs 1,645.409 million (2018: Rs 1,331.806 ) was  
subsequently settled on receipt of invoices and documents relating to the imported goods at the end 
of the year. This includes an amount of Rs Nil (2018: Rs 448.051 million) held with Habib Metropolitan 
Bank Limited - a related party, at the end of the year.

 Note 2019 2018
11 SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Rent  7,473  2,300 
Insurance 11.1  10,560  9,026 
Others  13,913  3,313 

 31,946  14,639 

11.1 This includes an amount of Rs 1.841 million (2018: Rs 1.788 million) paid to Habib Insurance Company 
Limited - a related party.
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 Note 2019 2018
12 ACCRUED RETURN ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Accrued return on Term Deposit Receipts (TDRs) 
and bank deposits 12.1  34,846  120,016 

12.1 This includes an amount of Rs 12.619 million (2018: Rs 42.923 million) receivable from Habib Metropolitan 
Bank Limited - a related party.

 Note 2019 2018
13 OTHER RECEIVABLES ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Considered good
Warranty claims and other receivables due from related

parties - Toyota Tsusho Corporation and its affiliates 13.1  32,204  21,003 
Agency commission - receivable from a related party - 

Toyota Tsusho Asia Pacific PTE. Limited 13.2  361,615  380,083 
Warranty claims due from local vendors  9,260  4,352 
Earnest money  42,700  61,802 
Insurance claims receivable from a related party - Habib 

Insurance Company Limited 13.3  53,055  28,274 
Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 13.4  7,964  7,079 
Receivable against sale of operating fixed assets  31,351  29,131 
Sales tax refundable - net  2,548,920  -   
Net unrealised gain on revaluation of foreign exchange

contracts - fair value hedge  10,994  14,013 
Others  11,486  10,547 

 3,109,549  556,284 

13.1 The maximum aggregate amount due at the end of any month during the year was Rs 65.686 million 
(2018: Rs 62.063 million).

13.2 The maximum aggregate amount due at the end of any month during the year was Rs 361.615 million 
(2018: Rs 380.083 million).

13.3 The maximum aggregate amount due at the end of any month during the year was Rs 63.064 million 
(2018: Rs 40.645 million).

Note 2019 2018
------(Rupees in ‘000)------

13.4 Workers’ Profit Participation Fund

Opening balance  7,079  37,265 
Allocation for the year 30 (1,019,115) (1,235,186)

(1,012,036) (1,197,921)
Amount paid during the year  1,020,000  1,205,000 
Closing balance  7,964  7,079 

14 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Amortised cost
Term Deposit Receipts (TDRs) 14.1 19,000,000 35,000,000 

At fair value through profit or loss
Government securities - Market Treasury Bills 14.2  4,402,464  - 
Listed mutual fund units 14.3  -    9,071,931 

 4,402,464  9,071,931 
Held to maturity

Government securities - Market Treasury Bills 14.2  -   10,959,172 

23,402,464 55,031,103 
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14.1 As at June 30, 2019, the Company holds term deposit receipts carrying profit rates ranging between 
13.50% to 15% per annum (2018: 6.55% to 7.15% per annum). The term deposit receipts are due to 
mature maximum by July 29, 2019. Balances in term deposit receipts include an amount of Rs 8,500 
million (2018: Rs 10,000 million), held with Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - a related party.

14.2 These securities have varying maturities ranging from August 15, 2019 to September 12, 2019. The 
yield on these securities is 12.57% to 12.75% per annum  (2018: 6.17% to 6.76% per annum).

14.3 These units are held with the following mutual funds:
2019 2018

------(Rupees in ‘000)------
Name of Fund
ABL Cash Fund  - 1,529,310
Alfalah GHPMoney Market Fund  - 406,873
ABL Government Securities Fund  - 252,434
HBL Cash Fund  - 1,017,354
HBL Money Market Fund  - 509,386
UBL Liquidity Plus Fund  - 1,278,603
NAFA Money Market Fund  - 1,789,637
NAFA Government Securities Liquid Fund  - 503,734
MCB Cash Management Optimizer  - 1,532,655
First Habib Cash Fund  - 251,945

- 9,071,931

15 TAXATION - net

The income tax assessments of the Company have been finalised by the Income Tax Department or 
deemed to be assessed under section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 up to the year ended 
June 30, 2018 (i.e TY 2018).

Note 2019 2018
16 CASH AND BANK BALANCES ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Cash in hand  5,513  2,872 

Balances held with banks in:
current accounts  338,425  323,505 
deposit accounts 16.1  2,937,844  1,874,395 

 3,276,269  2,197,900 

 3,281,782  2,200,772 

16.1 These include an amount of Rs 1,200.126 million (2018: Rs 1,426.653 million), held with Habib 
Metropolitan Bank Limited - a related party.

17 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2019 2018 2019 2018
(Number of shares) ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

 78,600,000 78,600,000 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each fully paid in cash  786,000  786,000 
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17.1 Ordinary shares of the Company held by related parties as at the year end are as 
follows:

2019 2018
Note (Number of shares)

Toyota Motor Corporation
Percentage of holding 25% (2018: 25.00%) 17.1.1  19,650,000  19,650,000 

Toyota Tsusho Corporation
Percentage of holding 12.5% (2018: 12.50%) 17.1.2  9,825,000  9,825,000 

Habib Insurance Company Limited
Percentage of holding 0.05% (2018: 0.05%)  43,015  43,015 

Thal Limited
Percentage of holding 6.22%% (2018: 6.22%)  4,890,000  4,890,000 

Mohamedali Habib Welfare Trust
Percentage of holding 0.01% (2018: 0.01%)  5,000  5,000 

17.1.1 Toyota Motor Corporation (TMC) is incorporated in Japan. The registered address of TMC is 1 Toyota-
Cho, Toyota City, Aichi Prefecture 471-8571, Japan. TMC is primarily engaged in the production and 
sale of automobiles. The President of TMC is Mr. Akio Toyoda. The latest available audited consolidated 
financial statements of TMC are for the year ended March 31, 2019. The auditors have expressed an 
unmodified opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

17.1.2 Toyota Tsusho Corporation (TTC) is incorporated in Japan. The registered address of TTC is 9-8, Meieki 
4-Chome, Nakamura-ku, Nagoya 450-8575, Japan. TTC is primarily engaged in production and sale of 
automobiles and provision of related services. The President and Chief Executive Officer of TTC is Mr. 
Ichiro Kashitani. The latest available audited consolidated financial statements of TTC are for the year 
ended March 31, 2019. The auditors have expressed an unmodified opinion on these consolidated 
financial statements.

Note 2019 2018
18 RESERVES ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Capital reserve
Share premium 18.1  196,500  196,500 

Revenue reserves
General reserve

Balance brought forward  27,451,050  23,451,050 
Transferred from unappropriated profit  4,500,000  4,000,000 

 31,951,050  27,451,050 

Unappropriated profit  7,111,759  8,310,792 
 39,259,309  35,958,342 

18.1 This reserve can be utilised by the Company only for the purposes specified in section 81 of the 
Companies Act, 2017.

Note 2019 2018
19 LONG TERM LOAN ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

 Loan under financing scheme 19.1  80,540  -   

19.1 This represents loan obtained under the SBP financing scheme for investment in Plant and Machinery 
for renewable energy projects. At the year end, the Company has drawn Rs 80.540 million and a sum of 
Rs 338.460 million is further available under the scheme. The financing already made carries mark-up at 
the rate of 3.25% per annum and is secured by way of hypothecation charge over plant and machinery 
against which the facility is available. The loan is repayable on a quarterly basis in 40 equal installments 
commencing from September 12, 2020.
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2019
19.2  Following is the movement in long term financing: (Rupees in ‘000)

Opening balance as at July 1, 2018  -   
Disbursements  80,540 
Repayments  -   
Amortisation of arrangement fee  -   
Closing balance as at June 30  80,540 

Note 2019 2018
------(Rupees in ‘000)------

20 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND PROVISIONS

Trade creditors
Associated undertakings / related parties  190,530  293,998 
Others  2,447,067  1,964,451 

Bills payable to a related parties 20.1  3,034,996  3,292,331 
Accrued liabilities 20.2  4,974,351  3,902,881 
Royalty payable to associated undertakings / related parties 20.3  889,713  735,720 
Deposits from dealers  239,550  156,550 
Retention money  71,550  67,257 
Workers’ Welfare Fund  439,401  503,115 
Technical fee  4,081  6,075 
Warranty obligations 20.4  1,443,982  1,237,520 
Payable to dealers  1,242,599  963,140 
Payable to customers  148,674  111,398 
Mark-up on advances received from customers  13,658  208,993 
Markup on Long term loan  72  -   
Sales tax – net  -    1,055,440 
Withholding income tax payable  215,427  479,370 
Payable to Pension Fund – net 20.5  9,689  9,118 
Other government levies payable  584,863  743,884 

 15,950,203  15,731,241 

20.1 This represents amounts payable to the following related parties:

Toyota Tsusho Asia Pacific PTE. Limited  3,002,907  3,284,355 
Toyota Motor Asia Pacfic PTE. Limited  31,639  15 
Daihatsu Motor Company Limited  450  -   
Toyota Tsusho Corporation  -    1,305 
Toyotsu Machinery Corporation  -    6,656 

20.2 These include an amount of Rs 106.551 million (2018: Rs 75.985 million) payable to the related parties.

20.3 These represent interest free deposits received from dealers in accordance with the terms of the 
dealership agreements. These deposits have been utilised for the purpose of the Company's business, 
based on agreement with dealers.

Note 2019 2018
20.4 Warranty obligations ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Opening balance  1,237,520  1,070,973 
Charge for the year 27  297,136  263,383 

 1,534,656  1,334,356 
Utilisation during the year  (90,674)  (96,836)
Closing balance  1,443,982  1,237,520 

20.5 Payable to pension Fund – net

Payable to Pension Fund - Defined Benefit Plan 22.2  9,689  9,118 
 9,689  9,118 
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21 ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS AND DEALERS

These represent advances received by the Company from customers and dealers in respect of sale of 
vehicles and parts.

22 DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN - Approved Pension Fund

As mentioned in note 2.3.13, the Company operates an approved pension fund for its permanent 
employees who are governed under the Old Rules. The latest actuarial valuation of the Company's 
pension fund, based on Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method, was carried out as at June 30, 
2019. The pension fund exposes the Company to the following risks:

Mortality risks
The risk that the actual mortality rates are different. The effect depends on the beneficiaries’ service / 
age distribution and the benefit.

Investment risks
The risk of the investments underperforming and not being sufficient to meet the liabilities.

Final salary risks
The risk that the final salaries at the time of cessation of service are greater than what was assumed. 
Since the benefit is calculated on the basis of final salary of an employee, the amount of the benefit 
increases with any increase in the final salary.

Withdrawal risks
The risk of higher or lower withdrawals than assumed. The final effect could go either way depending 
on the beneficiaries’ service / age distribution and the benefits payable.

The Company has recognised the following amounts in these financial statements for its obligations 
towards the respective members.

22.1 Principal actuarial assumptions  2019  2018 
(% per annum)

Discount factor used 14.50 11.25
Expected rate of salary increase 13.50 10.25
Expected rate of return on plan assets 13.90 13.90
Expected rate of increase in lonwg term pension 7.50 6.25

Note 2019 2018
22.2 The amounts recognised in the statement of financial --------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

position are determined as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation 22.4  42,726  42,856 
Fair value of plan assets 22.3 & 22.4  (33,037)  (33,738)

 9,689  9,118 

22.3 Plan assets consist of the following:

2019 2018
Quoted Non-Quoted Quoted Non-Quoted

----------------------------- Rupees '000 --------------------------

Balances with banks - 3,192 - 4,363
Equity instruments 7,221 - 8,024 -
Debt instruments - Government - 20,030 - 20,694
Others - 2,594 - 657

7,221 25,816 8,024 25,714
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22.4 The movement in the net defined benefit obligation over the year is as follows:

 2019 
Present 
value of 
defined 
benefit 

obligation

Fair value 
of plan 
assets

Total

----------------(Rupees in '000)----------------

At July 1  42,856  (33,738)  9,118 
Current service cost   2,935  -    2,935 
Interest expense / (income)  4,966  (3,993)  973 

 50,757  (37,731)  13,026 
Remeasurements:

Loss on plan assets, excluding amounts 
included in interest expense  -    6,786  6,786 

Gain from change in financial assumptions  (7,479)  -    (7,479)
 (7,479)  6,786  (693)
 43,278  (30,945)  12,333 

Contribution  -    (2,644)  (2,644)
Benefit payments  (552)  552  -   
At June 30  42,726  (33,037)  9,689 

 2018
Present 
value of 
defined 
benefit 

obligation

Fair value 
of plan 
assets

Total

----------------(Rupees in '000)----------------

At July 1  31,355  (27,873)  3,482 
Current service cost   1,936  -    1,936 
Interest expense / (income)  3,377  (3,875)  (498)

 36,668  (31,748)  4,920 
Remeasurements:

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts 
included in interest expense  -    2,387  2,387 

Gain from change in financial assumptions  6,740  -    6,740 
 6,740  2,387  9,127 

 43,408  (29,361)  14,047 
Contribution  -    (4,929)  (4,929)
Benefit payments  (552)  552  -   
At June 30  42,856  (33,738)  9,118 

2019 2018
------(Rupees in ‘000)------

22.5 Charge for defined benefit plan recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss

Current service cost  2,935  1,936 
Net interest expense / (income)  973  (498)

 3,908  1,438 
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22.6 The sensitivities of the net defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions 
are as under:

Amount of net defined benefit 
obligation

Change in 
assumption

Increase in 
assumption

Decrease in 
assumption

--------(Rupees in '000)--------

Discount rate 1%  36,567  50,346 
Long term salary increases 1%  45,973  39,760 
Pension increase rate 1%  46,876  39,134 

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions 
constant. When calculating the sensitivity of the net defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial 
assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the 
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating 
the pension liability recognised within the statement of financial position.

22.7 The weighted average duration of the net defined benefit obligation is 15.29 years.

22.8 Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted net defined benefit obligation for the pension fund is as 
follows:

At June 30, 2019
Less than

 a year
Between 
1-2 years

Between 
2-4 years

Over 4 
years

Total

--------------------------------- Rupees '000 ---------------------------------

Pension  644  727  1,914  15,868  19,153 

22.9 The expected return on plan assets is determined by considering the expected long-term returns 
available on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yield on fixed interest 
investments are based on gross redemption yield as at the statement of financial position date. 
Expected returns on equity are based on long-term real rates experienced in the stock market.

22.10 The expected charge for the defined benefit plan for the year ending June 30, 2020 is Rs 4.160 
million.

22.11 The charge for the year in respect of pension amounts to Rs 36.789 million (2018: Rs  36.227 million), 
which includes Rs 32.881 million (2018: Rs 34.789 million) in respect of members covered under New 
Rules and Rs 3.908 million (2018: Rs 1.438 million) in respect of members covered under Old Rules.

23 SHORT-TERM RUNNING FINANCES

As at June 30, 2019, the Company has unutilised short-term running finance facilities under mark-up 
arrangements aggregating Rs 3,500 million (2018: Rs 3,550 million) available from various commercial 
banks carrying mark-up rates based on 1 month KIBOR as benchmark rate plus 25 basis points 
(2018: 1 month KIBOR plus 25 basis points). The above facilities include an amount of Rs 300 million 
(2018: Rs 300 million) available from Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - a related party.

The Company also has facilities for opening letters of credit and bank guarantees under mark-up 
arrangements as at June 30, 2019 amounting to Rs 48,650 million (2018: Rs 43,900 million) from 
various commercial banks, including Rs 9,500 million (2018: Rs 9,500 million) available from Habib 
Metropolitan Bank Limited - a related party. The unutilised balance as at June 30, 2019 is Rs 22,329 
million (2018: Rs 25,216 million).

The above mentioned short-term running finance facilities and bank guarantees are secured by pari 
passu hypothecation charge on movable assets and receivables of the Company.
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24 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

24.1 The Company, during the years 2005-2006 and 2006-2007, received demand notices from the 
Collector of Customs, claiming short recovery of Rs 480.311 million in aggregate on account of 
customs duty amounting to Rs 305.426 million and sales tax amounting to Rs 174.885 million on 
royalty payment to the Joint Venture Partner, Toyota Motor Corporation. The demand had been 
raised based on the view that royalty value should be included as part of imported CKD kits which 
is opposed to the view of the Company based on factual position that the royalty pertains to locally 
deleted parts.

During year ended June 30, 2008, the Customs, Excise and Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal (the Appellate 
Tribunal) decided the case in the Company's favour and accordingly, the demand to the extent of 
Rs 370.373 million (customs duty of Rs 235.775 million and sales tax of Rs 134.598 million) had 
been reversed. During the year ended June 30, 2010, an appeal was filed by the Custom Authorities 
before the Sindh High Court against the decision the Appellate Tribunal, which is pending. Appeals 
are pending before the Collector of Customs Appeal for Rs 69.651 million and before the Appellate 
Tribunal for Rs 40.287 million.

During year ended June 30, 2018, the Company received a show cause notice from the Collector 
of Customs, claiming short recovery of  Rs 2,232.149 million (custom duty of Rs 1,135.778 million, 
sales tax of Rs 795.319 million and income tax of Rs 301.052 million) on royalty payment to the Joint 
Venture Partner, Toyota Motor Corporation. The Company has filed a petition against the same before 
the Sindh High Court, which is pending for hearing.

In respect of pending appeals at various appellate forums, a similar favourable decision as made by 
the Appellate Tribunal in the past is expected as the facts are common and involve identical question 
of law. Therefore, no provision has been made by the Company in these financial statements against 
the above mentioned claims as the management is confident that the matters will be decided in 
favour of the Company.

24.2 During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Company received an Assessment Order from the Punjab 
Revenue Authority, claiming that the Company was required to pay sales tax on franchise services 
provided in the province of Punjab, as per the Second Schedule of the Punjab Sales Tax on Services 
Act, 2012. The order further stated that the Company was required to pay Punjab Sales Tax amounting 
to Rs 461.716 million along with penalty amounting to Rs 111.918 million relating to the period from 
April 2013 to December 2016.

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Company received show cause notices from the Punjab 
Revenue Authority for recovery of Punjab Sales Tax amounting to Rs 77.698 million for the period 
from January 2017 to June 2017. Based on legal advice and merits of the case, the Company has 
obtained stay orders against the demands and expects a favourable outcome. Hence, no provision 
has been made in these financial statements.

24.3 During the year, the Company received various notices from Government of Pakistan Model 
Customs Collectorate of Appraisement (East) Custom House, claiming that the Company availed 
self-assessment facility for clearing 9 units of Toyota Hiace Ambulances imported vide numerous 
shipments under HS code 87.02, whereas the ambulances should have been classified under HS 
code 87.03 and advised the Company to pay the short-levied amount of Custom Duty and Federal 
Excise Duty collectively amounting to Rs 204.839 million. The management of the Company, based 
on the advice of its legal counsel, expects a favourable outcome. Hence no provision has been made 
in these financial statements.
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24.4 As at June 30, 2019, the claims not acknowledged as debts by the Company, other than those 
separately disclosed above, amount to Rs 1,437.109 million (2018: Rs 1,137.611 million).

Note 2019 2018
------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Cases filed by the dealers  -    300,000 
Cases filed by government authorities  519,879  485,016 
Others  917,230  352,595 

24.4.1  1,437,109  1,137,611 

24.4.1 The above cases represent legal proceedings initiated against the Company by various parties 
therefore pending adjudication in various courts and legal forums of Pakistan since many years. A 
few cases have been added during the current year. The management of the Company is of the view 
that the Company has a strong position in these cases and these cases will be decided in the favour. 
Hence, no provision has been recorded in respect of these cases in these financial statements.

24.5 Commitments 2019 2018
------(Rupees in ‘000)------

24.5.1 Outstanding bank guarantees  18,141,215  13,234,038 

Outstanding bank guarantees include an amount of Rs 6,080.385 million (2018: Rs 5,287.496 million) 
in respect of bank guarantees from Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - a related party.

24.5.2 Commitments in respect of capital expenditure as at June 30, 2019 amounted to Rs 5,517.255 
million (2018: Rs 3,028.016 million).

24.5.3 Commitments in respect of letters of credit, other than for capital expenditure, amounted to 
Rs 4,559.860 million (2018: Rs 3,244.144 million). The above letters of credit include an amount of 
Rs Nil (2018: Rs 1,411.699 million) availed from Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - a related party.

24.5.4 Commitments in respect of land rent and maintenance charges against leasehold land from Port 
Qasim Authority as at June 30, 2019 amounted to Rs 199.228 million (2018: Rs 205.443 million).

Year 2019 2018
------(Rupees in ‘000)------

2019-2020  -    6,215 
2020-2021  6,525  6,525 
2021-2022  6,852  6,852 
2022-2023  7,194  7,194 
2023-2024  7,553  7,553 
2024 onwards  171,104  171,104 

 199,228  205,443 
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25 OPERATING RESULTS

Manufacturing Trading Total

Note 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

----------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----------------------------------------------

Revenue from contract

with customers 25.1 179,590,445 158,491,245 11,793,172 10,336,558 191,383,617 168,827,803 

Sales tax (26,084,198) (22,729,667) (1,319,938) (1,161,204) (27,404,136) (23,890,871)

Federal excise duty (903,873)  -    -    -   (903,873)  -   

25.2 152,602,374 135,761,578 10,473,234 9,175,354 163,075,608 144,936,932 

Commission (3,896,367) (3,983,232) (457,343) (327,097) (4,353,710) (4,310,329)

Discounts (9,278) (8,516) (508,097) (410,563) (517,375) (419,079)

Compensation on advances

from customers (208,311) (492,095)  -    -   (208,311) (492,095)

Net sales 148,488,418 131,277,735 9,507,794 8,437,694 157,996,212 139,715,429 

Cost of sales 26 (131,850,814) (110,061,113) (6,953,724) (5,769,658) (138,804,538) (115,830,771)

Gross profit 16,637,604 21,216,622 2,554,070 2,668,036 19,191,674 23,884,658 

Distribution expenses 27 1,248,668 1,143,656 154,943 140,233 1,403,611 1,283,889 

Administrative expenses 28 1,325,181 1,432,098 84,852 91,702 1,410,033 1,523,800 

(2,573,849) (2,575,754) (239,795) (231,935) (2,813,644) (2,807,689)

14,063,755 18,640,868 2,314,275 2,436,101 16,378,030 21,076,969 

Other operating expenses 29 (220,837) (181,968) (14,140) (11,652) (234,977) (193,620)

Workers' Profit Participation 

Fund and Workers' Welfare Fund 30 (1,406,379) (1,704,557)  -    -   (1,406,379) (1,704,557)

12,436,539 16,754,343 2,300,135 2,424,449 14,736,674 19,178,792 

Other income 31 4,306,662 3,900,685 

 19,043,336 23,079,477 

Finance cost 32     (67,407) (80,311)

Profit before taxation  18,975,929 22,999,166 

25.1 This includes an amount of Rs 7.974 million ( 2018: Rs. Nil ) in respect of export sales of auto parts.

25.2 The gross sales, net of sales tax, for 'Trading' segment include an amount of Rs 1,813.044 million 
(2018: Rs 1,409.185 million) in respect of sales of motor oil.

25.3 Other operating expenses, administrative expenses and distribution expenses (excluding warranty 
claims, pre-delivery inspection and service charges, development expenditure, transportation and 
running royalty), are allocated between manufacturing and trading activities on the basis of net sales. 
Warranty claims, pre-delivery inspection and service charges, development expenditure, Workers' Profit 
Participation Fund and Workers' Welfare Fund are allocated to manufacturing activity. Under Selling 
expenses, Running royalty and transportation charges are allocated to trading activity.
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Note 2019 2018
------(Rupees in ‘000)------

26 COST OF SALES

Raw materials and vendor parts consumed
Opening stock  8,515,842  7,500,220 
Purchases  123,648,690  101,424,363 
Closing stock 8  (11,210,717)  (8,515,842)

 120,953,815  100,408,741 

Stores and spares consumed  1,886,361  1,449,886 
Salaries, wages and other benefits 26.1 & 26.2  1,796,938  1,881,184 
Rent, rates and taxes  16,218  4,366 
Repairs and maintenance  443,235  562,585 
Depreciation 3.4  1,986,409  1,800,608 
Legal and professional  2,540  2,717 
Travelling  30,048  28,523 
Transportation  9,893  8,647 
Insurance  42,558  33,552 
Vehicle running  21,381  17,881 
Communication  4,082  4,219 
Printing, stationery and office supplies  3,550  3,049 
Subscription  2,274  729 
Fuel and power  565,843  447,968 
Running royalty 26.3  3,343,967  2,634,003 
Supervisor fee 155,344  39,663 
Technical fee  8,964  35,130 
Staff catering, transport and uniforms  563,828  442,824 
(Reversal) / provision for slow moving stock-in-trade  (21,081)  3,299 
Provision for slow moving stores and spares  70,634  21,603 
Others  44,881  12,621 

 10,977,867  9,435,057 
 131,931,682  109,843,798 

Add:  Opening work-in-process  518,329  516,783 
Less: Closing work-in-process 8  683,469  518,329 

 131,766,542  109,842,252 
Opening stock of finished goods - own manufactured  201,619  420,480 
Closing stock of finished goods - own manufactured 8  (117,347)  (201,619)
Cost of sales - own manufactured  131,850,814  110,061,113 

Opening stock of finished goods - trading  2,064,778  1,014,483 
Finished goods purchased  6,566,557  6,807,503 
Closing stock of finished goods - trading 8  (1,782,876)  (2,064,778)
Provision for slow moving stock-in-trade  105,265  12,450 
Cost of sales - trading  6,953,724  5,769,658 

 138,804,538  115,830,771 

26.1 These include an amount of Rs 39.786 million (2018: Rs 34.390 million) in respect of charge against 
provident fund and Rs 24.923 million (2018: Rs 22.752 million) in respect of charge against pension 
fund.

26.2 The investments by the provident fund in collective investment schemes, listed equity and debts 
securities have been made in accordance with the conditions specified in section 218 of the Companies 
Act, 2017 and rules specified thereunder.
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26.3 This includes royalty paid to the following parties:

 Name Address
Relationship 

with the 
Company

2019 2018

------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Toyota Motor 1 Toyota-Cho, Toyota City, Aichi Associate  2,860,130  1,700,862 
Corporation  Prefecture 471-8571, Japan"

Toyota Daihatsu 99 Moo 5, T. Ban-Ragad, A. , 
Engineering & Bank-bo Samutprakran, 105060, Group company  10,726  9,702 
Manufacturing Kingdom of Thailand"
Company Limited

Note 2019 2018
27 DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Salaries, wages and other benefits 27.1 & 26.2  267,436  289,837 
Rent, rates and taxes  4,305  4,393 
Repairs and maintenance  4,953  3,520 
Depreciation 3.4  39,842  37,727 
Advertising and sales promotion  478,948  436,415 
Travelling  31,852  28,155 
Vehicle running  17,675  16,590 
Communication  2,432  3,010 
Printing, stationery and office supplies  7,542  6,570 
Staff training  14,639  10,201 
Staff transport and canteen  28,119  21,527 
Subscription  193  362 
Warranty claims 20.4  297,136  263,383 
Pre-delivery inspection and service charges  67,208  52,878 
Development expenditure  23,169  17,789 
Utilities  61  120 
Transportation  69,564  61,069 
Running royalty 27.2  30,239  27,322 
Provision for doubtful debts 9  978  -   
Late delivery charges  12,905  -   
Others  4,415  3,021 

 1,403,611  1,283,889 

27.1 These include an amount of Rs 7.853 million (2018: Rs 7.976 million) in respect of charge against 
provident fund and Rs 1.538 million (2018: Rs 5.504 million) in respect of charge against pension fund.

27.2 This includes royalty paid to the following parties:

 Name Address
Relationship 

with the 
Company

2019 2018
------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Toyota Motor 1 Toyota-Cho, Toyota City, Aichi Associate  26,496  18,842 
Corporation Prefecture 471-8571, Japan
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Note 2019 2018
------(Rupees in ‘000)------

28 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits 28.1 & 26.2  525,561  680,995 
Rent, rates and taxes  3,615  4,316 
Insurance  41,213  40,408 
Repairs and maintenance  78,986  87,023 
Depreciation 3.4  64,787  53,543 
Amortisation 3.2  30,018  31,856 
Travelling  61,265  56,988 
Legal and professional  196,160  230,200 
Director's fee  1,500  1,125 
Vehicle running  20,673  18,519 
Communication  21,883  23,330 
Printing, stationery and office supplies  4,595  4,635 
Staff training  207,883  151,901 
Staff transport and canteen  43,425  49,297 
Security  43,739  39,722 
Subscription  34,920  5,234 
Utilities  421  329 
Share registrar and related expenses  9,426  8,875 
Others  19,963  35,504 

 1,410,033  1,523,800 

28.1 These include an amount of Rs 13.444 million (2018: Rs 11.122 million) in respect of charge against 
provident fund and Rs 10.328 million (2018: Rs 7.971 million) in respect of charge against pension fund.

Note 2019 2018
29 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Auditors’ remuneration 29.1  4,985  3,090 
Donations 29.2  229,992  190,530 

 234,977  193,620 
29.1 Auditors’ remuneration

Audit fee  1,725  1,575 
Interim review and other certifications  1,586  868 
Others 29.1.1  1,134  -   
Out-of-pocket expenses  540  647 

 4,985  3,090 
29.1.1 This represents services relating to business process improvement.

29.2 Donations

29.2.1 Donations in which a Director or his spouse is interested are as follows:

Name of  Interest in Name of Donee 2019 2018
Director(s) Donee ----------(Rupees in ‘000)----------

1. Mr Ali S. Habib Trustee Mohamedali Habib Welfare Trust  3,500  3,000 
2. Mr Ali S. Habib and 

Mr Mohammedali R. Habib Trustee Habib Education Trust  1,500  7,944 
3. Mr Ali S. Habib,

Mr Mohammedali R. Habib
and Mr Parvez Ghias Director Habib University Foundation  95,000  90,500 
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29.2.2 The names of donees, other than those disclosed above, to whom the donation amount during 
the current year exceeds Rs 500,000 are The Citizen Foundation, Indus Hospital, Toyota Citizen 
Foundation (Toyota Goth Education Program), Sindh Institute of Urology & Transplantation (SIUT), 
Ghulaman-e-Abbas Education & Medical Trust, Thar Foundation, Shaukat Khanum Cancer Hospital, 
WWF Pakistan and The Supreme Court of Pakistan and The Prime Minister of Pakistan Diamer-
Bhasha and Mohmand Dams Fund.

Note 2019 2018
--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

30 WORKERS' PROFIT PARTICIPATION FUND AND WORKERS' 
WELFARE FUND

Workers’ Welfare Fund  387,264  469,371 
Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 13.4  1,019,115  1,235,186 

 1,406,379  1,704,557 
31 OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
Return on bank deposits  1,497,866  1,897,142 
Interest income on Market Treasury Bills  399,787  745,430 
Amortisation income on Market Treasury Bills  -    116,764 
Interest income on Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs)  -    26,214 
Gain on sale of Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs)  308,105  60,422 
Net gain against investments in listed mutual fund units  426,076  125,255 
Gain on sale of investments in Market Treasury Bills  986,418  -   
Unrealised gain on revaluation of listed mutual fund units  -    182,540 

Income from other than financial assets
Agency commission, net of commission expense 

of Rs 5.036 million (2018: Rs 55.030 million)  138,858  262,371 
Exchange gain on agency commission and exports  82,055  30,333 
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 3.5  29,389  43,643 
Liabilities no longer payable written back  209,592  78,734 
Freight and other charges income - net of expenses  184,116  297,050 
Certification income  45,692  34,893 
Realised exchange loss - net  (3,853)  (344)
Others  2,561  238 

 4,306,662  3,900,685 

2019 2018
--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

32 FINANCE COST

Interest on long term loan facility  72  -   
Bank charges  67,335  80,311 

 67,407  80,311 
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Note 2019 2018
--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

33 TAXATION

Current - for the year  4,856,528  7,182,319 
 - for prior years  (34,652)  (17,042)

 4,821,876  7,165,277 

Deferred - for the year  439,078  62,029 
33.1  5,260,954  7,227,306 

33.1 Relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit 

Profit before taxation  18,975,929  22,999,166 

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 29% (2018: 30%)  5,503,019  6,899,750 
Tax effect of permanent differences and super tax  452,965  807,343 
Tax effect of income taxable at lower rates and tax credit on
   plant and machinery  (507,791)  (239,401)
Tax effect of income assessed under final tax regime  (152,587)  (227,653)
Tax effect of change in tax rate for future periods  -    4,309 
Prior years' reversal  (34,652)  (17,042)

 5,260,954  7,227,306 
33.2 Management assessment of sufficiency of provision for income taxes

In the opinion of the management, sufficient tax provision has been made in these financial statements. 
Comparisons of tax provision as per the financial statements viz-a-viz tax assessments for the last three 
years is as follows:

2018 2017 2016
----------------(Rupees in '000)-----------------

Tax assessed as per the most recent tax assessment  6,420,549  5,469,376  5,612,810 

Provision in accounts for income tax  7,147,667  6,119,915  6,073,923 

The Company has made provisions for taxation in its financial statements based on applicable tax 
laws and decisions of appellate authorities on similar matters. Provisions in respect of super tax and 
other matters have been made in the respective years, against which petitions have been filed by the 
Company before the Sindh High Court.

34 EARNINGS PER SHARE

34.1 Basic

Basic earnings per share has been computed by dividing the profit for the year after taxation by the 
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

2019 2018
------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Profit after taxation  13,714,975  15,771,860 

(Number of shares)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding

during the year  78,600,000  78,600,000 

(Rupees)

Basic earnings per share  174.49  200.66 

34.2 Diluted

There are no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding as at June 30, 2019 and 2018.
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Note 2019 2018
------(Rupees in ‘000)------

35 CASH (UTILISED IN) / GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 

Profit before taxation  18,975,929  22,999,166 

Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:
Depreciation 3.2  2,091,038  1,891,878 
Amortisation 3.2  30,018  31,856 
Provision for doubtful debts 9  978  -   
Provision for slow moving stores and spares 7  70,634  21,603 
Provision for slow moving stock-in-trade 8  84,184  15,749 
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 3.5  (29,389)  (43,643)
Gain on sale of Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs) 31  (308,105)  (60,422)
Net gain against investments in listed mutual fund units 31  (426,076)  (125,255)
Gain on sale of investments in Market Treasury Bills 31  (986,418)  -   
Unrealised gain on revaluation of listed mutual fund units 31  -    (182,540)
Net unrealised gain on revaluation of foreign exchange

contracts - fair value hedge 13  3,019  3,225 
Return on bank deposits 31  (1,497,866)  (1,897,142)
Interest income on Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs) 31  -    (26,214)
Interest income on Market Treasury Bills 31  (399,787)  (745,430)
Amortisation income on Market Treasury Bills 31  -    (116,764)
Charge in respect of Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 30  1,019,115  1,235,186 
Charge in respect of Workers’ Welfare Fund 30  387,264  469,371 
Compensation on advances received from customers 25  208,311  492,095 
Interest on Long term loan 32  72  -   
Working capital changes 35.1  (25,569,703)  6,430,208 

 (6,346,782)  30,392,927 
35.1 Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores and spares  (313,385)  (119,028)
Stock-in-trade  (2,493,841)  (1,848,602)
Trade debts  (1,095,223)  (694,798)
Loans and advances  (13,372)  (2,061,748)
Short-term prepayments  (17,307)  6,200 
Other receivables  (2,553,179)  (160,267)

 (6,486,307)  (4,878,243)
(Decrease) / increase  in current liabilities

Current portion of deferred revenue  (633)  3,933 
Trade payables, other payables and provisions  478,632  6,002,271 
Advances from customers and dealers  (19,561,395)  5,302,247 

 (19,083,396)  11,308,451 
 (25,569,703)  6,430,208 

36 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise of the following:

Note 2019 2018
------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Cash and bank balances 16 3,281,782 2,200,772 
Term Deposit Receipts (TDRs) 14 19,000,000 35,000,000 
Government securities - Market Treasury Bills 14 4,402,464 10,842,407 

26,684,246 48,043,179 
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37 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2019 2018
Chief 

Executive
Directors Executives

Chief 
Executive

Directors Executives

------------------------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------------------------

Managerial remuneration *  54,842  19,574  352,918  42,046  11,438  274,966 
Retirement benefits  3,485  -    25,580  3,059  -    20,696 
Medical expenses  303  -    -    211  -    -   

 58,630  19,574  378,498  45,316  11,438  295,662 

Number of persons  1  2  57  1  2  49 

* This includes bonus, house rent, utilities and other allowances.

37.1 The Chief Executive, directors and some executives have been provided free use of Company maintained 
cars, residential telephones and club facilities.

37.2 During the year, an amount of Rs 1.5 million (2018: Rs 1.125 million) has been paid to a non-executive 
director, as fee for attending board and other meetings.

38 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS / RELATED PARTIES

The associated undertakings / related parties comprise of associated companies, staff retirement funds 
and key management personnel. The Company considers its Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial 
Officer, Company secretary and directors as key management personnel.Transactions carried out 
with associated undertakings / related parties during the year, not disclosed elsewhere in the financial 
statements are as follows:

2019 2018
With associated undertakings / related parties: ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Sales  423,117  213,068
Purchases  86,425,128  63,842,123
Insurance premium  98,047  76,118
Agency commission  143,894  317,402
Running royalty  3,156,136  2,577,372
Rent expense  1,304  1,244
Return on bank deposits and TDRs  641,196  729,901
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets / insurance claim  550  4,324
Supervisor fee  155,344  39,663
Bank charges  46,551  58,908
LC charges  5,593  7,963

With key management personnel:
Salaries and benefits  97,094  86,553
Post employment benefits  5,181  5,364
Sale of operating fixed assets  -    1,410

38.1 Contribution to and accruals in respect of staff retirement benefits are made in accordance with actuarial 
valuations / terms of contribution plan as disclosed in the respective notes to these financial statements.

38.2 The status of outstanding balances with associated undertakings / related parties as at June 30, 2019 
are included in the respective notes to the financial statements.



130

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

38.3 The names of related parties (other than those that have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these 
financial statements) with whom the Company has entered into transactions or had agreements / 
arrangements in place during the year are as follows:

Basis of relationship

Common directorship Name
Percentage of 
shareholding (%)

Particulars of Common director(s)

Dawood Hercules 

  Corporation Limited Nil Mr Parvez Ghias

Shell Pakistan Limited Nil Mr Parvez Ghias

Shabbir Tiles & Ceramics Limited Nil Mr Ali S. Habib

Cherat Cement Company Limited Nil Mr Azam Faruque

Thal Limited 6.22% Mr Ali S. Habib and Mr Mohamedali R. Habib

Habib Insurance Company Limited 0.05% Mr Mohamedali R. Habib

Habib Metro Pakistan 

  (Private) Limited Nil Mr Ali S. Habib

Mohamedali Habib Welfare Trust 0.01% Mr Ali S. Habib being trustee

 Habib Education Trust Nil Mr Ali S. Habib and Mr Mohamedali R

Habib being trustees

Habib University Foundation Nil Mr Ali S. Habib, Mr Mohamedali R.

Habib and Mr Parvez Ghias

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited Nil Mr Ali S. Habib and Mr Mohamedali R. Habib

Group companies Name
Percentage of 
shareholding (%)

Relationship with the Company

Toyota Tsusho Corporation 12.50% Associated Company

Toyota Motor Corporation 25.00% Associated Company

Toyota Motor Asia Pacific 

  PTE. Limited Nil Subsidiary of Toyota Motor Corporation

Toyota Tsusho (Thailand) 

  Company Limited Nil Subsidiary of Toyota Tsusho Corporation

Toyotsu Machinery 

  Corporation Nil Subsidiary of Toyota Tsusho Corporation

Toyota Daihatsu Engineering &

   Manufacturing Company Limited Nil Subsidiary of Toyota Motor Corporation

Toyota Tsusho Asia Pacific 

  PTE. Limited Nil Subsidiary of Toyota Tsusho Corporation

Daihatsu Motor Company Limited Nil Subsidiary of Toyota Motor Corporation

Hinopak Motors Limited Nil Subsidiary of Toyota Tsusho Corporation
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2019 2018
39 PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION  Number of units 

Capacity based on double shift basis 66,000 54,800
Production 65,346 62,886

The Company has been operating on a double shift basis from March 2003 based on market demand. 
The capacity has been calculated based on average normal working hours in a year, whereas actual 
production may vary in response to market demand.

2019 2018
(Number of staff) 

40 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Total number of employees as at June 30 3,349 3,266

Total number of factory employees as at June 30 2,889 2,795

Average number of employees during the year 3,314 3,034

Average number of factory employees during the year 2,853 2,585

41 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

---------------As at June 30, 2019---------------

 Amortised 
cost

 Fair value 
through profit 

or loss
 Total 

----------------(Rupees in ‘000)-----------------

Financial assets
Loans and advances  50,952  -  50,952 
Long-term deposits  11,129  -  11,129 
Trade debts - unsecured  2,547,915  -  2,547,915 
Accrued return  34,846  -  34,846 
Other receivables  552,665  -  552,665 
Investments  19,000,000  4,402,464  23,402,464 
Cash and bank balances  3,281,782  -  3,281,782 

 25,479,289  4,402,464  29,881,753 

------As at June 30, 2019------

 Financial 
liabilities at 
amortised 

cost

 Total 

--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

Financial liabilities 
Long term loan  80,540  80,540 
Unclaimed dividend  174,538  174,538 
Unpaid dividend  121,059  121,059 
Trade payables, other payables and provisions  13,266,530  13,266,530 

 13,642,667 13,642,667
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---------------As at June 30, 2018---------------

 Amortised 
cost

 Fair value 
through profit 

or loss
 Total 

----------------(Rupees in ‘000)-----------------
Financial assets
Loans and advances  60,154  -  60,154 
Long-term deposits  9,443  -  9,443 
Trade debts  1,453,670  -  1,453,670 
Accrued return  120,016  -  120,016 
Other receivables  549,205  -  549,205 
Investments  45,959,172  9,071,931 55,031,103
Cash and bank balances  2,200,772  -  2,200,772 

50,352,432  9,071,931 59,424,363

------As at June 30, 2018------
 Financial 

liabilities at 
amortised 

cost

 Total 

Financial liabilities 
Unclaimed dividend  182,437  182,437 
Unpaid dividend  60,445  60,445 
Trade payables, other payables and provisions 11,711,912 11,711,912

11,954,794 11,954,794

42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company's activities expose it to certain financial risks. Such financial risks emanate from various factors 
that include, but are not limited to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company currently finances its operations through equity and management of working capital with a 
view to maintain an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimise risk. The Company's risk 
management policies and objectives are as follows:

42.1 Credit risk exposure and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter party fails to discharge its obligation and causes 
the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit 
exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties and continually assessing the creditworthiness 
of counterparties.

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities 
or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly 
affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicates the 
relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

Credit risk arises from derivative financial instruments, investments (except for the investments in Government 
securities) and balances with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers, 
employees including trade debts, other receivables and committed transactions with the group companies. 
Out of the total financial assets of Rs 29,881.753 million (2018: Rs 59,424.363 million), the financial assets 
which are subject to credit risk amounted to Rs 25,473.776 million (2018: Rs 48,462.319 million), including 
trade receivables from government agencies.

Out of the total trade debts amounting to Rs 2,548.893 million (2018: Rs 1,453.670 million), an amount of 
Rs 985.584 million (2018: Rs 825.580 million) relates to direct customers. 

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019
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For trade debts, internal risk assessment process determines the credit quality of each customer, taking 
into account their financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based 
on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the management. The utilisation of credit 
limits is regularly monitored. Accordingly, the management believes that the credit risk is minimal and in the 
opinion of the management, the Company is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk. 

42.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to meet its funding requirements. To guard against 
this risk, the Company has diversified funding sources and assets are managed with liquidity in mind, 
maintaining a healthy balance of cash and cash equivalents. The maturity profile of trade debts is monitored 
to ensure adequate liquidity is maintained. The management forecasts the liquidity of the Company on the 
basis of expected cash outflows considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet such outflows. 

The maturity profile of the Company's liability based on contractual maturities is disclosed in note 42.3.2 
to these financial statements. 

42.3 Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risks: currency risk, interest rate risk 
and other price risk.

42.3.1 Currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into 
in foreign currencies. The Company manages its exposure against foreign currency risk by entering into 
foreign exchange contracts where considered necessary.

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into in 
foreign currencies. The Company primarily has foreign currency exposures in US Dollars (USD), Japanese 
Yen (JPY), Thai Bhat (THB) and Singapore Dollars (SGD). The net foreign currency exposure at June 30, 
2019 is USD 13.556 million (2018: USD 6.103 million), JPY 993.303 million (2018: JPY 1,383.229 million), 
THB 5.092 million (2018: THB 6.481 million) and SGD 0.167 million (2018: SGD Nil).

Out of the total bank balance and TDRs of Rs 22,276.269 million million (2018: Rs 37,197.900 million) 
placed with banks, amounts aggregating to Rs 21,730.928 million (2018: Rs 37,186.551 million) have 
been placed with banks having credit rating of AA+ and above, whereas the remaining amounts are placed 
with banks having long term minimum credit rating of AA.

Due to the Company’s long standing business relationships with its counterparties and after giving due 
consideration to their strong financial standing, management does not expect non–performance by these 
counter parties on their obligations to the Company.

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
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42.3.2 Interest rate risk

Interest / mark-up rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes 
in the market interest / mark-up rates. Sensitivity to interest / mark-up rate risk arises from mismatches 
of financial assets and financial liabilities that mature or reprice in a given period. The Company manages 
these mismatches through risk management strategies where significant changes in gap position can be 
adjusted. The Company is exposed to interest / mark-up rate risk in respect of the following:

------------------------------------------------------------------------2019------------------------------------------------------------------------

Effective 
interest / 
mark-up 

rate

Interest / mark-up bearing Non-interest / mark-up bearing Total

Maturity upto 
one year

Maturity after 
one year

Sub-total
Maturity upto 

one year
Maturity after 

one year
Sub-total

June 30,
 2019

% ----------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------------------------------------------
On statement of financial 

position financial instruments

Financial assets 
Loans and advances 3.00-3.50 27,328 15,906 43,234 7,718  -   7,718 50,952 
Long-term deposits  -    -    -    -    -   11,129 11,129 11,129 
Trade debts  -    -    -    -   2,547,915  -   2,547,915 2,547,915 
Accrued return  -    -    -    -   34,846  -   34,846 34,846 
Other receivables  -    -    -    -   552,665  -   552,665 552,665 
Investments 12.30-15 23,402,464  -   23,402,464  -    -    -   23,402,464 
Cash and bank balances  10.25-11.25 2,937,844  -   2,937,844 343,938  -   343,938 3,281,782 

26,367,636 15,906 26,383,542 3,487,082 11,129 3,498,211 29,881,753 
Financial liabilities
Long term loan  3.25  -   80,612 80,612  -    -   80,612 
Unclaimed dividend  -    -    -    -   174,538  -   174,538 174,538 
Unpaid dividend  -    -    -    -   121,059  -   121,059 121,059 
Trade payables, other payables and 

 provisions  -    -    -    -   13,266,530 13,266,530 13,266,530 
 -    -    -    -   13,562,127  -   13,562,127  13,642,739 

------------------------------------------------------------------------2018------------------------------------------------------------------------

Effective 
interest / 
mark-up 

rate

Interest / mark-up bearing Non-interest / mark-up bearing Total

Maturity upto 
one year

Maturity after 
one year

Sub-total
Maturity upto 

one year
Maturity after 

one year
Sub-total

June 30,
 2018

% ----------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------------------------------------------

On statement of financial 
  position financial instruments

Financial assets 
Loans and advances 3.00-3.50 21,819 18,525 40,344 19,810  -   19,810 60,154 
Long-term deposits  -    -    -    -    -   9,443 9,443 9,443 
Trade debts  -    -    -    -   1,453,670  -   1,453,670 1,453,670 
Accrued return  -    -    -    -   120,016  -   120,016 120,016 
Other receivables  -    -    -    -   549,205  -   549,205 549,205 
Investments  6.17-7.15 55,031,103  -   55,031,103  -    -    -   55,031,103 
Cash and bank balances  2.40-6.05 1,874,395  -   1,874,395 326,377  -   326,377 2,200,772 

56,927,317 18,525 56,945,842 3,879,939 9,443 3,889,382 59,424,363 
Financial liabilities
Unclaimed dividend  -    -    -    -   182,437  -   182,437 182,437 
Unpaid dividend  -    -    -    -   60,445  -   60,445 60,445 
Trade payables, other payables and 

provisions  -    -    -    -   11,711,912  -   11,711,912 11,711,912 
 -    -    -    -   11,954,794  -   11,954,794 11,954,794

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
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a) Sensitivity analysis of variable rate instruments

As at June 30, 2019, the Company holds market treasury bills which are classified as financial assets 
at fair value through profit or loss' exposing the Company to fair value interest rate risk. In case of 100 
basis points increase / decrease in rates announced by the Financial Markets Association of Pakistan 
for market treasury bills and with all other variables held constant, the net profit before tax for the year 
of the Company would have been lower / higher by Rs 44.025 millon.

b) Sensitivity analysis of fixed rate instruments

Fixed rate instruments comprise of TDRs, balances with banks and loans to employees. The income 
from these financial assets are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates except for 
changes, if any, as a result of fluctuation in respective fair values. The Company's income from these 
financial assets does not have any fair value impact.

42.3.3 Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as 
a result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk) 
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its 
issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. 

42.3.4 Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or liability settled, between 
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Consequently, differences can arise 
between carrying values and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern without 
any intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction 
on adverse terms.

Financial assets which are traded in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on 
the reporting date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities is considered 
not significantly different from their carrying values as the items are either short term in nature or 
periodically repriced.

International Financial Reporting Standard 7, 'Financial Instruments: Disclosure' requires the Company 
to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the 
inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);

- inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly (i.e., current market prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from current market prices) (level 
2); and

- inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) 
(level 3).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement of a financial instrument is 
categorised in its entirety shall be determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant 
to the fair value measurement of that financial instrument.

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
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-------- As at June 30, 2019 ------- -------- As at June 30, 2018 -------- 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
---------------------------------- Rupees in '000 --------------------------------- 

Financial assets 'at fair value
through profit or loss'
- Listed mutual fund units  -    -    -   9,071,931  -    -   
- Government securities - Market Treasury Bills  -   4,402,464  -    -    -    -   
- Derivative financial instruments  -    -   10,994  -    -   14,013 

43 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue 
as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and 
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Company is currently financing 
its operations primarily through equity and working capital. The Company has no material gearing risk 
in the current year nor any in the prior year.

44 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS DURING THE CURRENT YEAR

a) During the year, the Company has made significant capitalisations in buildings and plant and 
machinery on the completion of multiple projects. Further, the Company also has ongoing projects in 
its plan for which the Company has entered into significant capital commitments.

b) The Company imports significant portion of raw materials, trading stock and spare parts in foreign 
currency. Consequently, the Company's financial performance including gross profit margin has been 
significantly affected on account of significant devaluation of functional currency to foreign currency 
by approximately 36%.

45 NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on August 27, 2019 has proposed a cash dividend in respect 
of the year ended June 30, 2019 of Rs 27.5 (2018: cash dividend of Rs 45) per share. This is in addition 
to the interim cash dividend of Rs 87.5 (2018: Rs 95) per share resulting in a total dividend for the year 
of 115 (2018: Rs 140) per share. The Directors have also announced appropriation of Rs 4,500 million 
(2018: Rs 4500 million) to general reserve. These appropriations will be approved in the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting. The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019 do not include the 
effect of these appropriations which will be accounted for in the financial statements for the year ending 
June 30, 2020.

46 GENERAL

Figures in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest thousand Rupees.

47 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for the purpose of 
better presentation and comparison.

48 DATE OF AUTHORISATION
 
These financial statements were authorised for issue on August 27, 2019 by the Board of Directors of 
the Company.

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

Aqeel Loon
Chief Financial Officer

Ali Asghar Jamali
Chief Executive

 Yuji Takarada
Vice Chairman & Director
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Number of Shareholders Shareholdings’Slab Total Shares Held

1,003 1 to 100 48,298
2,262 101 to 500 1,000,065
309 501 to 1000 274,681
354 1001 to 5000 841,834
64 5001 to 10000 473,853
28 10001 to 15000 336,558
13 15001 to 20000 235,306
7 20001 to 25000 157,164
13 25001 to 30000 368,708
4 30001 to 35000 132,353
11 35001 to 40000 414,970
5 40001 to 45000 205,674
3 45001 to 50000 143,800
3 50001 to 55000 158,518
2 55001 to 60000 110,555
1 60001 to 65000 63,020
2 65001 to 70000 136,410
1 75001 to 80000 79,532
1 85001 to 90000 87,280
3 95001 to 100000 293,070
1 105001 to 110000 105,415
1 110001 to 115000 113,480
2 115001 to 120000 235,200
1 120001 to 125000 121,560
1 125001 to 130000 130,000
1 130001 to 135000 135,000
1 140001 to 145000 141,740
1 145001 to 150000 150,000
1 160001 to 165000 162,040
1 175001 to 180000 179,800
1 180001 to 185000 181,000
1 240001 to 245000 243,750
4 255001 to 260000 1,032,667
2 270001 to 275000 545,801
1 275001 to 280000 276,660
1 295001 to 300000 298,640
1 305001 to 310000 307,560
1 365001 to 370000 366,346
1 380001 to 385000 383,750
1 385001 to 390000 385,740
2 430001 to 435000 867,387
1 550001 to 555000 552,685
1 595001 to 600000 600,000
1 655001 to 660000 657,360
1 700001 to 705000 704,460
1 1080001 to 1085000 1,084,910
1 1325001 to 1330000 1,327,670
1 4890000 to 4890000 4,890,000
1 9825001 to 9825000 9,825,000
1 19650001 to 19650000 19,650,000
1 27382730 to 27382730 27,382,730

4,126  78,600,000 

Pattern of Shareholding
As of June 30, 2019
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NO. Categories of Shareholders
 Number of 
Shares Held 

 Category 
Wise No. of 
Folios / CDC 

Accounts 

 Category 
Wise Shares 

held 
Percentage

1 Directors and their spouse(s) and
minor children

ALI S. HABIB  135,000  8  307,882 0.39%
MOHAMEDALI R. HABIB  130,000 
ALI ASGHAR JAMALI  38,000 
AZAM FARUQUE  500 
PARVEZ GHIAS  501 
IMRAN A. HABIB  1,000 
AISHA ZEBA GHIAS  280 
MUNIZEH ALI HABIB  2,601 

2 Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties
THAL LIMITED  4,890,000  3  4,938,015 6.28%
HABIB INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED  43,015 
MOHAMEDALI HABIB WELFARE TRUST  5,000 

3 Executives  9  4,259 0.01%
4 Public Sector Companies and Corporations  4  561,873 0.71%
5 Banks, development finance institutions, non-banking

finance companies, insurance companies, takaful, 
modarabas and pension funds  16  627,592 0.80%

6 Mutual Funds
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP VALUE FUND  90  13  549,285 0.70%
CDC - TRUSTEE AKD INDEX TRACKER FUND  3,069 
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA STOCK FUND  19,270 
CDC - TRUSTEE NBP BALANCED FUND  1,220 
CDC - TRUSTEE NIT-EQUITY MARKET OPPORTUNITY FUND  51,720 
CDC - TRUSTEE NBP SARMAYA IZAFA FUND  1,330 
CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST  366,346 
CDC - TRUSTEE PIML VALUE EQUITY FUND  3,960 
CDC - TRUSTEE NIT ISLAMIC EQUITY FUND  97,870 
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL MULTI - ASSET FUND  1,300 
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP STOCK FUND  60 
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ALPHA FUND  50 
CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST CAPITAL MUTUAL FUND  3,000 

7 Foreign Investors / Companies  72  63,398,109 80.66%
Holding 5% or more voting interest

OVERSEAS PAKISTAN INVESTORS AG  27,382,730 
TOYOTA MOTOR CORPORATION  19,650,000 
TOYOTA TSUSHO CORPORATION  9,825,000 

8 General Public
a. Local  4,627,439  3,459  4,890,649 6.22%
b. Foreign  263,210  442 

9 OTHERS  100  3,322,336 4.23%
TOTAL 4,126  78,600,000 100.00%

Pattern of Shareholding
As of June 30, 2019

Detail of trading of shares by Executives / Directors and their spouse during the period from
July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2019.

Name of Executive / Director  No. of Shares purchased 
Mrs. Munizeh Ali Habib W/o Mr. Ali S. Habib  2,000 
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Ten Years Performance Indicators

Financial Summary 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Income Statement
Net revenue Rs in ‘000 157,996,212 139,715,429 111,942,544 108,758,668  96,516,322  57,063,622  63,829,075  76,962,642  61,702,677  60,093,139 
Gross profit Rs in ‘000  19,191,674  23,884,658  19,492,589  17,731,299  14,244,230  5,793,582  5,857,037  6,561,854  4,089,135  4,856,514 
Profit before taxation Rs in ‘000  18,975,929  22,999,166  19,140,767  17,397,446  14,132,569  5,016,497  4,969,775  6,312,267  4,011,455  5,242,539 
Profit after taxation Rs in ‘000  13,714,975  15,771,860  13,001,265  11,454,940  9,110,251  3,873,452  3,357,545  4,302,715  2,743,384  3,443,403 
Dividends Rs in ‘000  9,039,000  11,004,000  9,039,000  7,860,000  6,288,000  2,318,700  1,965,000  2,515,200  1,179,000  1,179,000 

Balance Sheet
Share capital Rs in ‘000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000 
Reserves Rs in ‘000  39,259,309  35,958,342  30,410,962  26,843,609  23,249,520  19,129,652  16,907,291  16,227,858  13,333,648  11,801,615 
Fixed Assets Rs in ‘000  13,898,033  7,311,379  6,345,444  4,938,277  5,193,477  6,033,264  2,742,140  3,472,906  4,225,710  3,324,333 
Net current assets Rs in ‘000  26,679,161  29,383,117  24,762,671  17,473,164  13,861,221  14,062,278  14,775,801  13,693,056  10,326,779  9,566,387 
Long term liabilities Rs in ‘000  558,920  22,711  3,933  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Investor Information
Gross profit ratio % age 12.15 17.10 17.66 16.30 14.76 10.15 9.18 8.53 6.63 8.08
Net profit ratio % age 8.68 11.29 11.61 10.53 9.44 6.79 5.26 5.59 4.45 5.73
Earnings per share Rs 174.49 200.66 165.41 145.74 115.91 49.28 42.72 54.74 34.90 43.81
Inventory turnover Times 11 11 11 13 15 8 8 11 11 12
Debt collection period Days 5 3 3 3 4 10 8 7 9 10
Average fixed assets turnover Times 14.90 22.89 19.90 21.47 17.19 13.01 18.32 19.99 16.34 16.56
Breakup value per share Rs 509.48 467.49 396.91 351.52 305.80 253.38 225.11 216.46 179.64 160.15
Market price per share 

- as on June 30 Rs 1,203.92 1,421.46 1,793.60 939.54 1,249.00 537.92 311.00 245.08 220.00 262.38
- High value during the period Rs 1,589.90 1,980.00 2,110.00 1,313.00 1,320.00 549.00 364.60 305.00 309.73 278.00
- Low value during the period Rs 1,030.62 1,300.00 935.00 884.75 520.00 300.00 237.00 187.00 205.51 107.10

Price earning ratio Times 6.90 7.08 10.84 6.45 10.78 10.92 7.28 4.48 6.30 5.99
Dividend per share Rs 115.00 140.00 115.00 100.00  80.00  29.50  25.00 32.00 15.00 15.00
Dividend yield % age 9.55 9.85 6.41 10.64  6.41  5.48  8.04 13.06 6.82 5.72
Dividend payout % age 65.91 69.77 69.52 68.62  69.02  59.86  58.52 58.46 42.98 34.24
Dividend cover Times 1.52 1.43 1.44 1.46  1.45  1.67  1.71 1.71 2.33 2.92
Return on equity % age 34.25 42.92 41.67 41.46 37.90 19.45 18.98 25.29 19.43 27.36
Debt to equity Ratio 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1
Current ratio Ratio 2.1:1 1.63:1 1.76:1 1.58 : 1 1.53 : 1 3.35 : 1 2.99 : 1 2.32 : 1 1.84 : 1 1.67 : 1 

Other Information
Units sold Nos.  66,211  64,000  60,586  64,584  57,387  34,470  38,517  55,060  50,943  52,063 
Units Produced Nos.  65,346  62,886  59,945  64,096  56,888  33,012  37,405  54,917  50,759  50,557 
Manpower Nos.  3,349  3,266  2,849  2,765  2,322  2,091  2,225  2,292  2,187  1,948 
Contribution to National Exchequer Rs in ‘000 52,307,841 48,843,141 38,959,490 37,325,754 32,076,453 19,261,559 21,267,303 24,725,706 22,043,581 20,332,421
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Financial Summary 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Income Statement
Net revenue Rs in ‘000 157,996,212 139,715,429 111,942,544 108,758,668  96,516,322  57,063,622  63,829,075  76,962,642  61,702,677  60,093,139 
Gross profit Rs in ‘000  19,191,674  23,884,658  19,492,589  17,731,299  14,244,230  5,793,582  5,857,037  6,561,854  4,089,135  4,856,514 
Profit before taxation Rs in ‘000  18,975,929  22,999,166  19,140,767  17,397,446  14,132,569  5,016,497  4,969,775  6,312,267  4,011,455  5,242,539 
Profit after taxation Rs in ‘000  13,714,975  15,771,860  13,001,265  11,454,940  9,110,251  3,873,452  3,357,545  4,302,715  2,743,384  3,443,403 
Dividends Rs in ‘000  9,039,000  11,004,000  9,039,000  7,860,000  6,288,000  2,318,700  1,965,000  2,515,200  1,179,000  1,179,000 

Balance Sheet
Share capital Rs in ‘000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000 
Reserves Rs in ‘000  39,259,309  35,958,342  30,410,962  26,843,609  23,249,520  19,129,652  16,907,291  16,227,858  13,333,648  11,801,615 
Fixed Assets Rs in ‘000  13,898,033  7,311,379  6,345,444  4,938,277  5,193,477  6,033,264  2,742,140  3,472,906  4,225,710  3,324,333 
Net current assets Rs in ‘000  26,679,161  29,383,117  24,762,671  17,473,164  13,861,221  14,062,278  14,775,801  13,693,056  10,326,779  9,566,387 
Long term liabilities Rs in ‘000  558,920  22,711  3,933  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Investor Information
Gross profit ratio % age 12.15 17.10 17.66 16.30 14.76 10.15 9.18 8.53 6.63 8.08
Net profit ratio % age 8.68 11.29 11.61 10.53 9.44 6.79 5.26 5.59 4.45 5.73
Earnings per share Rs 174.49 200.66 165.41 145.74 115.91 49.28 42.72 54.74 34.90 43.81
Inventory turnover Times 11 11 11 13 15 8 8 11 11 12
Debt collection period Days 5 3 3 3 4 10 8 7 9 10
Average fixed assets turnover Times 14.90 22.89 19.90 21.47 17.19 13.01 18.32 19.99 16.34 16.56
Breakup value per share Rs 509.48 467.49 396.91 351.52 305.80 253.38 225.11 216.46 179.64 160.15
Market price per share 

- as on June 30 Rs 1,203.92 1,421.46 1,793.60 939.54 1,249.00 537.92 311.00 245.08 220.00 262.38
- High value during the period Rs 1,589.90 1,980.00 2,110.00 1,313.00 1,320.00 549.00 364.60 305.00 309.73 278.00
- Low value during the period Rs 1,030.62 1,300.00 935.00 884.75 520.00 300.00 237.00 187.00 205.51 107.10

Price earning ratio Times 6.90 7.08 10.84 6.45 10.78 10.92 7.28 4.48 6.30 5.99
Dividend per share Rs 115.00 140.00 115.00 100.00  80.00  29.50  25.00 32.00 15.00 15.00
Dividend yield % age 9.55 9.85 6.41 10.64  6.41  5.48  8.04 13.06 6.82 5.72
Dividend payout % age 65.91 69.77 69.52 68.62  69.02  59.86  58.52 58.46 42.98 34.24
Dividend cover Times 1.52 1.43 1.44 1.46  1.45  1.67  1.71 1.71 2.33 2.92
Return on equity % age 34.25 42.92 41.67 41.46 37.90 19.45 18.98 25.29 19.43 27.36
Debt to equity Ratio 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1
Current ratio Ratio 2.1:1 1.63:1 1.76:1 1.58 : 1 1.53 : 1 3.35 : 1 2.99 : 1 2.32 : 1 1.84 : 1 1.67 : 1 

Other Information
Units sold Nos.  66,211  64,000  60,586  64,584  57,387  34,470  38,517  55,060  50,943  52,063 
Units Produced Nos.  65,346  62,886  59,945  64,096  56,888  33,012  37,405  54,917  50,759  50,557 
Manpower Nos.  3,349  3,266  2,849  2,765  2,322  2,091  2,225  2,292  2,187  1,948 
Contribution to National Exchequer Rs in ‘000 52,307,841 48,843,141 38,959,490 37,325,754 32,076,453 19,261,559 21,267,303 24,725,706 22,043,581 20,332,421
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 30th Annual General Meeting of INDUS MOTOR COMPANY LIMITED will be 
held on Tuesday, October 8, 2019 at 9:00 a.m. at the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan situated 
at Chartered Accountants Avenue, Clifton, Karachi, to transact the following business:

A)	ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.	To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended June 30, 2019, together with the Report of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2.	To approve cash dividend (2018-2019) on the ordinary shares of the Company. The directors have 
recommended a Final Cash dividend at 275% i.e. Rs 27.50 per share. This is in addition to the 
combined Interim Dividend of 875% i.e. Rs. 87.5 per share already paid. The total dividend for 2018-
2019 will thus amount to 1150% i.e. Rs. 115 per share.  

3.	To appoint auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending June 30, 2020. The present auditors 
M/s. A.F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible have offered themselves 
for re-appointment.

4.	To present any other business with the permission of the Chairman.

B)	SPECIAL BUSINESS

5.	To obtain consent from the members of the Company in terms of Notification No. S.R.O. 470(1)/2016 
dated May 31, 2016 issued by Securities of Exchange Commission of Pakistan for the transmission of 
annual audited accounts, notice of the general meetings and other information contained therein of the 
Company either through CD or DVD or USB instead of transmitting the same in hard copies.

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 REGARDING 
THE SPECIAL BUSINESS

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the special business, given in agenda item No. 5 of 
the notice, intended to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting. 

Item # 5 of the Notice
The Directors of the Company have recommended that the members of the Company be provided 
the option to receive annual balance sheet, profit & loss account, auditor’s report and directors’ report 
etc. (“annual audited accounts”) through CD/DVD/USB at their registered address and to accordingly 
implement the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan’s directive communicated through 
Notification No. SRO 470(I) 2016 dated 31st May 2016.  

Accordingly the Board of Directors of the Company has recommended that the following ordinary 
resolutions be passed at the Annual General Meeting convened for Tuesday, October 8, 2019:

“RESOLVED that the consent and approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded for transmission of annual reports including annual audited accounts, auditor’s report 
and director’s report, notices of annual general meetings and other information contained therein 
of the Company to the members for future years through CD/DVD/USB instead of transmitting 
the same in hard copies.

FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chief Executive Officer or the Company Secretary of the Company 
be and is hereby authorized to do all acts, deeds and things, take or cause to be taken all necessary 
actions to comply with all legal formalities and requirements and the file necessary documents as 
may be necessary or incidental for the purposes of implementing this resolution.”

By order of the Board

Karachi.	 Muhammad Arif Anzer
August 27, 2019	 Company Secretary
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NOTES:
1.	 Closure of Share Transfer Books

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from October 02, 2019 to October 08, 2019 (both days inclusive) for 
the purpose of the Annual General Meeting and payment of the final dividend. Transfer requests received by CDC Share Registrar 
Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block “B”, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400. Tel: 0800-23275, UAN: 111-
111-500, Email: info@cdcsrsl.com at the close of business on October 01, 2019 will be treated in time for the purpose of determining 
above entitlement to the transferees for payment of final dividend and to attend the Annual General Meeting.

2.	 Proxy
A member entitled to attend and vote at this General Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend, speak and vote in his place 
at the Meeting. Instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at least forty eight hours 
before the time of the meeting.

To facilitate identification for right to attend the Annual General Meeting, Shareholder whose holdings are on the Central Depository 
System (CDS) or his Proxy should authenticate his identity by showing his original CNIC or original Passport at the time of attending 
the meeting; along with the Participant’s Identity Number and Shareholder’s account number allocated by the Central Depository 
Company.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall be 
produced at the time of the meeting.

3.	 Change of Address
The Shareholders are requested to promptly notify change in their address, if any, to the Company’s Share Registrar.

4.	 Submission of copies of CNIC not provided earlier
Individual Shareholders are once again reminded to submit a copy of their valid CNIC, if not provided earlier to the Company’s Share 
Registrar, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited. In case of non-availability of a valid copy of the Shareholders’ CNIC in the 
records of the Company, the company shall withhold the Dividend under the provisions of Section 243 of the Companies Act 2017.

5.	 Withholding Tax on Dividend
Currently, the deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the companies under section 150 of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001, is as under:
(a)	 For persons appearing in Active Tax Payer List (ATL):	 15%
(b)	 For persons not appearing in Active Tax Payer List (ATL):	 30%

Shareholders who have filled their return are advised to make sure that their names are entered into latest Active Tax Payers List (ATL) 
provided on the website of FBR at the time of dividend payment, otherwise they shall be treated as persons not appearing in ATL and 
tax on their cash dividend will be deducted at the rate of 30% instead of 15%.

6.	 Withholding tax on Dividend in case of Joint Account Holders
In order to enable the Company to follow the directives of the regulators to determine shareholding ratio of the Joint Account 
Holder(s) (where shareholding has not been determined by the Principal shareholder) for deduction of withholding tax on dividend 
of the Company, shareholders are requested to please furnish the shareholding ratio details of themselves as Principal shareholder 
and their Joint Holders, to the Company’s  Share Registrar, enabling the Company to compute withholding tax of each shareholder 
accordingly. The required information must reach the Company’s Share Registrar by October 01, 2019, otherwise each shareholder 
will be assumed to have equal proportion of shares and the tax will be deducted accordingly.

7.	 Payment of Cash Dividend Electronically (E-mandate)
In accordance with the provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Companies (Distribution of Dividend) Regulations, 
2017, it is mandatory that dividend payable in cash shall only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account 
designated by the entitled shareholder. Notice in this regard has already  been published earlier in newspapers as per Regulations. 
All shareholders are once again requested to provide details of their bank mandate specifying: (i) title of account, (ii) account number, 
(iii) IBAN number (iv) bank name and (v) branch name, code & address; to Company’s Share Registrar. Shareholders who hold shares 
with Participants / Central Depository Company of Pakistan (CDC) are advised to provide the mandate to the concerned Broker / 
CDC.

8.	 Distribution of Annual Report through Email (Optional)
Pursuant to the provision of section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017, the companies are permitted to circulate their annual financial 
statements, along with auditor’s report,  directors’  review report etc.  (“Annual Report”) and the notice of annual general meeting 
(“Notice”), to its shareholders by email. Shareholders of the Company who wish to receive the Company’s Annual Report and Notices 
of annual general meeting by  email  are  requested to provide the completed Electronic Communication Consent Form (available on 
the Company’s website), to the Company’s Share Registrar.

9.	 Consent for the Facility of video-link
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 2017, the company may on the demand of members at least 7 days before the 
general meeting, residing in a city, who hold at least 10% of the total paid up capital of the Company, provide the facility of video- link 
to such members enabling them to participate in its annual general meeting. If you wish to take benefit of this facility, please fill the 
form available on the Company’s Website and submit it to the Company at its registered address at least 10 days prior to the date 
of the meeting.

The Company will intimate members the venue of the video conference facility, if required criteria have been fulfilled, at least 7 days 
before the date of general meeting along with complete information necessary to enable them to access such facility.
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]¬ñßwƒ**e34/õ XG

JX 48 ƒäÐÁZiÁ

ÅY+$Ðºm™Š{¥ƒ®gZ»ƒ.$�Æ‚B CDS çwe0*iR,~Ä)Ïe~Zö(~Z»ƒ.$Æqï‰c*§yc*ZyÆHg™Š{úÒ}ÃZ°k¬x~Ñ•cÑ•Æz‰ÜZL0*g&4k54jè
HGFGIEW[+&454-ö GJGEH�Zzg

ZCZ-ÛR,Z,̂eÙ!»gec*Z-0*7ĝŠ3**ÑiòƒÇX
Ug**);Š\Æ%äÔZ°kÆz‰Ü7™**ÑiòƒVÐX / Ë»gz!*g~ZŠZg}ÅúÒÏÅßg]~**'×Š�ÛŠÃZL1geWseZ],IiÅŒÛZgŠZŠ

XíÅp~ 3

‰c*§yÐŠgpZ„ìāZLgZeeZuÆí~Ëp~Æ0vÃ¥gZZgÃ',z‰Üi™Š,X
ÅÝwÅ�ÛZb)Ñiò( CNICX4

¥gZZguzw™~¦™ZN)Z¤/¬¦:™ZðƒÂ(X CDC ÅÜvÆ¥gZZg CNIC ‰c*§yÐŠgpZ„ìāz{‡âãçZ*Åz™,Zzg¯YË@*íZL
Æ�e-i+&+gzuáÏX 243 Æv 2017 Å»gWæÜÅ°xŠø7!Åßg]~gZl CNIC vZLgkge~Ë‰c*CÆ

Xe-i+&+6,zŠƒ®8-L 5

~gÅY+$Ðe-i+&+ÅZŠZ56,zŠƒ®8-LÅÍCcŠg`fsÑjV»çHŠHìX 150 Æv 2001 ZåLWge¼
15% (~÷áï÷ ATL) )Z³(z{Z�ÛZŠ�ZÁLŠyÇyÅdwz„
30% (~÷áï7 ATL) )[(z{Z�ÛZŠ�ZÁLŠyÇyÅdwz„

(~Zp!WgÅzd$‚V$6,ñ�Šz„~o«ÅZŠZ5Æz‰Ü ATL) (¦™ZŠØ÷ÔZyÐ*Zglìāz{Zk!*]ÃD¯NāZy»**xqDdwLŠyÇyÅz„ Return) z{¥ƒ®giMVäÍØZg}
ÅÑbÐL»^1Y¨X 30% Å( 15% (~÷áï7ìZzgZyÆ×o«~Ð ATL) ÷áïìÔzg]Švz{ZyZ�ÛZŠÆîg6,ŒYNÐX»**xdwLŠyÇyÅz„

Xœā3"5å GGZgzVÅßg]~e-&+&+6,zŠƒ®8-L 6

‰c*§yÐ*ZglÅYCìāz{6,±‰c*CÆîg6,ZKZzgZLœā3"5å GGZgzVÅ‰c*qÆÚƒÅ¬]�ÛZë™,@*āve-&+&+ÐLÅÍCcœā3"5å GGZgzVÅ‰c*qÆÚƒÆç
J-2019 ZÆ', 1 c)Zkßg]~Z#‰c*qÆÚƒ»ç6,±‰c*Cä:Hƒ(gc{iÅ@Zc*]Åz™nZzgZkÆ_.CÙ‰c*CÆzŠƒ®8-L»ˆ[ÎnX¬]vÆ¥gZZgÃ

ñßwƒY**e34/õ XG
JÔzg]Švtây1Y¨āCÙ‰c*CÆ0*k)z~Ñb~‰ñ�Š÷ÔZzgZÏˆ[ÐLuHY¨X

XZ¼Z8-îg6,×o«ÅZŠZ5)Z~�f$( 7

Å<VÆ_.tÑiòìā×~ZŠZƒäzZáo«ÃÜsZ¼Z7-§i»gÐ',Z{gZ„¥́ƒ®gÆ³™Š{JZ»ƒ-$~vH 2017 Zzgg)e-i+&+Å„(gcÉ4n.ç GIEE 242 Æv 2017 gZl
�IBAN Y¨XZkK~̧Z°Æ_.âF!Z¶gZ]~÷áùHY[ìXÓx‰c*§yÐZq-!*gQŠgpZ„ìāz{ZL´JZ»ƒ.$Å¬]T~)1(N*?WsZ»ƒ.$Ô)2(Z»ƒ.$�)3(

)4(J»**x)5(',Zõ»**xZzg)6(ñ!*b�ÔÃŠZzgØv¥gZZgÆ0*k¦™ZNXçwe0*iñ~vWs0*Îy)Ïe~Ï(~‰gppzZá¥ƒg®giÃtg{Šc*Y@*ìāz{́',z™&Ïe~ÏÃ@Ze$�ÛZë
6,Šø7[ìÔ&¥ƒ®gi6,™ÆvgZZgÃŸMh÷X website ™,XZ¼Z7-e-i+&+ÃgxvÅ

XZ~éÆfg=‚Ñ:g7g^Å„)Z(g~( 8

Æ�µVÃZYi]Š~ìāWeñg7ĝÔeZ],IY,̂{g7g^z){)‚Ñ:g7g^(Zzg‚Ñ:âFÆ‚BâàÒ**]Ô‚Ñ:¾w))âF(¥ƒ®giÆZ~é6,ÈYñXz{ 223(6) ÅŠi 2017 gZl
(�zd$‚V$6,Ìñ�ŠìÃ6,™Æv¥gZZgÆ0*k¦ Electronic Communication Consent Form ÓxvÆ¥ƒ®gi�tÓxg7gFZ~é6,qÝ™**eT÷z{åñZ&CgŸq~)

™ZNX

Xzi+-„ÅœªÅgŸq~)Z(g~( 9

‚ƒÔzi+-„Åœª�ÛZëÅYNÏTÐz{‚Ñ: 10 gzi¬Z,MZyÃÔXÆ0*kvÆù¦uât»g~» 7 Å<VÆ_.à~g;ö5+k,vMZyÆ_c6,¬xZ°kÐÁZiÁ 2017 gZl
-xIvÃZkÆgZeØ6,ŠgpZ„Zg‚w™,X 10 Z°k¬x~záÃXZ¤/W\ÌZkœªÐÃZ+{ZV**eT÷Â',Z{™xvÅzd$‚V$6,Šø7[ÃgxÃ6,™,ZzgZ°kÅ@*gõÐÁZiZÁ

-xIzi+-»Ð÷ÅœªÆ!*g}~ZzgZk§bÅœªJ-g‚ðÆ‡.Þ¯äc¢zg~@Zc*]ZzgWÇ„�ÛZë™}ÏX 7 MZyÃv¬xZ°kÐ
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Z&+kñR,v™
âF',Zñ‚Ñ:Z°k¬x

WZ3ŴsegR,eZ»ƒ"5454ø
EHGEHWs0*Îy®xegR,eZ»ƒ"5454ø

EHGEHZ-EÔ’™Zc~ 9 ',ziáð 2019 ZÆ', 8 zZV‚Ñ:Z°k¬x 30 qïBZÃiHY@*ìāZ&+kñR,v™»
ÂHYñÇT~Šg`fs»gz!*g6,ŸGYNÐ:

)Z³(Àò»gz!*g

YÃZ!x5+k,âà‚wcvÅ‚Ñ:We^”{â1CÒ**];eZ],IiZzgWeñig7g^6,̈gZzgàg~X 2019 �y 30 1X

gz9° 87.50 ‚œā̂g~o«ª 875 gz9Å\glÅìXt 27.50 ‚ª°¥ 275 Åàg~XeZ],Iiäî×o« (2018-2019) 2XvÆ¬x‰6,×o«
gz9°¥o«ƒÇX 115 ‚ª 1150 cù¦îg6, 2018-2019 ‰�¬„ZŠZHY[ìā́z{ìXZk§b

ÔegR,eZ»ƒ"5454ø
EHGEHÅæ]gð],ƒäZzgZq M/s. A. F. Ferguson & Co YÃ»ƒäzZáâà‚wcWeñiÅ½g~ZzgZyÆçz2»çXñ�Š{Weñi 2020 �y 30 3X

Æ!*)̄pŠÃŠz!*g{½g~c7HìX

4Xç}ÅZYi]ÐŠv»gz!*g~ç5]X

)[(Sà»gz!*g

TÆ�‚Ñ:WeQ+Z»ƒÛÔ‚Ñ:Z°k¬x»âFZzgvÅŠv¥â];ge»8Å( 2016#16 ñgQ 470(1)/2016 5XcgúZÞâzWs0*ÎyÆâ5�ZöWgZz
&+g=Ïe~Ôe~z~e~ÔZzg-Zö!�ÛZë™äcvÆMZyÅgŸq~qÝ™**X

Æ�Òy™Š{Sà»gz!*g 134 (3) Æv 2017 gZl

~ªCÙHŠHìÔ�‚Ñ:Z°k¬x~cgWæcìX 5 ZkÒy~Sà»gz!*gÐ0âŠ~›ë»çHŠHìÔtâFÆZ¤{�

5 âF»Wx�

ZkŒÛZgŠZŠ~vÆeZ],IiÅ\glÆ_.MZy»ZŸtƒÇāz{‚Ñ:äÅLÔ6,ZÅZhÑkZ»ƒÛÔWeñig7g^ÔeZ],Iig7g^)‚Ñ:We^g7g^(z){Ã�gúZh
Å@Zc*]Æ_.&+g=Ïe~Ôe~z~e~c*-Zö!~gZeØ6,qÝ™Mh÷X SRO 470(I)2016 ÃYg~™Š{â5� 2016#31 ZÞâzWs0*ÎyÅ

eZ],Iiqgz!*Ñ»gz!*g~',Z{gZ„c*!*ßZôŠp7gnpÔÎZñZyÅuât»g~ÅuJ-ā�eZ],IiÅg7g^ÐÝ‰ŠZg~~,ÐÒyÅ̂ìX

ÃƒäzZá‚Ñ:Z°µ¬x~7ÅYñÏX 2019 ZÆ', 8 !*ßZôÔvÆ1geWseZ],IiÅ§sÐ?m,Š~ˆìāqgz!*ÑÀòŒÛZgŠZŠ

?m,Æ_.vÆMZyÅgŸq~Zzgàg~Ð‚Ñ:We^Z»ƒÛÔWe^g7g^ÔeZ],Iig7g^Ô‚Ñ:¾w)ÆâFZzgvÅŠv¥â]w~MZyJ-;ge»8Å(
Ïe~Ôe~z~e~ÔZzg-Zö!Æfg=�ÛZëÅYñÏX

'×h+têHŠHāvÆrZhÐWWc*vÆóñ~Zk!*]ÆWfƒVÐāZkŒÛZŠZŠÃiYezäcËÌnÅ‡âã»ggzZðÔ¢zgc*]Ã7gZ™äc*XŠ*zm,Z]Å
¢zg]ƒVZk6,‡âyÆ_.cgWæ™ä»Z(ggnp÷X

™Zc æ1ge
2019 Z~ 27 ·¬gsZÃ

vóñ~

عام  اجلاس  30واںسالانہ  برائے  نوٹس 

ا �ی
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‰ŠZg~»§$þGL»g

J-Šg`ìX ____ Ð ____ YJ-vÅ‰ŠZg~»§$þGL»g™ 2019 �y 30

vÆ‰Åyh+z�Ûz|#

YÃ»ƒäzZá‚wÆŠzgZy 2019 �y 30 ‰ŠZg~Æ§$þGL»g~Òy™Š{Æ´z{
eZ],IiÔZhÁiZzgZyÆZ3ÿXL{:ävÆ‰ÅËnÅyh+z�Ûz|#7ÅìX

Zëp´VZzgÇ

â1CÍØZgzVc*g7g^3åXWEZ~Òy™Š{Æ´z{Z+ÃðZëp´V7ƒð÷c*Z,Ãð
Ç7K‰÷�vÆâà‚wÆZ!xZzgäÅLZzgg7g^Å@*gõÆŠgxy
vÅâ1C£xÃOW,™,X

WeñiÅ½g~

Z}Zp�ÛÍÍZhv)egR,eZ»ƒ&454ø
EHEH

(�āgð],ƒ` M/s  vÆñ�Š{Weñi
Z}Zp M/s ÷ÔZKZqÅãCŠ6,Šz!*g{ZK}.â]7™äÆZI÷XeZ],Iiä

YJ-WeñiÆîg6,Šz!*g{½g~ÅWeŵÅ 2020 �ÛÍÍZhv)egR,eZ»ƒ&454ø
EHEH

(Å
\glÅÂ}ÅìX

�́Û¢ÐAŠ+
�́Û¢Æ‚BÓxAŠ+̧Z°zçZ*Æ_.Åˆ÷ZzgZkÅ¬]´
âFÆ�â1CÍØZgzV~ªCÙ™Š~ˆ÷X

ã~W6,|Zzgâ1Ceð

6,f™HŠHìX ____ Ð ____ ã~W6,|Zzgâ1Ceð‚Ñ:g7g^Æ™�

ÏZzÏY6,cgWæÅg7ĝ

Y6,åîg6,cgWæHì 2017 väÅk5åHHg)ÃeWs»g7gf$Íg›(gcÉ4n.ç GIEE

J-ÝHŠHìX _____Ð ____ &g7g^Æ‚B™

ç}»Y,̂{

vÆeZ],IivÅù¦»g™ŠÏÔwÅ7À.ïGLiÔ1geÅ»g™ŠÏZzģW,e$Ð
0ç}ÆY,̂{ÆqgY]ÅÂ}™D÷X

WÐ(,"Å7À.ïGLi

w~WÐ(,"Å7À.ïGLiÆ�W\ÅväI-N*Ð5Zzg÷á0+Zg¡¬]he»
µ/¯c*ìTÐ™g@ÃzWZN[ÅœªÅ�ÛZbZzg0*GZgF,¹ÃD¯äÆ
añ�Š{¡¬]Ã¾e$qÝƒÏX

5Ó#ÖÅúÆˆ…ÂµìāZOŠ~dZyÐÖÆa0*åV¯ðYNÏZzg
o~uât»g~~ZŸ†Zzg£òØVÅj,Z‚ÛZðÆaZŠZâ]QVñYNÐX

Z‹Zs

øg~¡¬]ÅÚ×e$6,ëZL™g@Æ]¦/Zg÷Zzg7g~Z&+kšøwøg}
Z6sÔzhgiÔe’iZzgÓx»gz!*g~ÑZ•ÅZÓÃ@V»Z‹Zs™D÷ZzgZyÅ

Ú×e$ÅpZ;V÷X

ëZv¬\Æu$gBð EEŠ÷ZzgZkÐ„',ÆVZzggÉðÆn™¬Í÷X

™Zc
Y2019 Z~ 27

-YN*»gZeZ ZZû)à
**T$ç} rZhÁ

137138

140141

8485
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1geä§zlƒäzZáeZ],IÆ‡&ÿELŠg™ŠZgÃyZ•d7HZzg6eZ],IÃpl
Wæh+¹X

1geÅÌV
1geäqgzfsÌVúŠ,XÅ,Šg`fsì:

1geWeŵ .1

»[ZWÃgztÔwç} (1

»[·ZWgÔ (2

»[/ZyZ}Ô (3

»[6,zm,#_ (4

ÎÎñâ@eZ »[ (5

 "54ið HGHc*Zm,zò »[ (6

1geZK̈ãz‚bZzgçz£w .2

»[ZWÃgztÔwç} (1

»[ZZöÔ (2

-YN*»gZeZ »[ (3

»[6,zm,#_ (4

»[ZZû)à (5

1geZÜ¹w .3

»[6,zm,#_Ôwç} (1

»[ZZû)à (2

»[/ZyZ}Ô (3

)ZhÁeZ],IiÆaçz£Å0*ŒÅúc*VS:]

1ge)ZhÁeZ],IiÅ§sÐv~}.â]»Z‹Zs™@*ìZzgñ�Š{ßg�w~1ge
ÆCÙZ°kc*ZkÅwÆZ°k~Ñ•Zzgq¢~Æa):Åæ¾ÅYg„
ìXt:ZyÅ}.â]»çz£CÙ¦/7ìÉj,Z‚ÛZð™äÅ?ÏìX)ZhÁ

eZ],IièÃg{!*ÑZ°ÎV~q¢~ZzgÑ•ÆaZk§bÆçz2Ãzßw™äÆ
ZLhÐŠSnŠZgƒMh÷X

YÃZ!x5+k,ƒäzZá‚wÆavÆÏZ~ZzZzgeZ],Ii»çz£ 2019 �y 30

6,Šg`ìX _____ ™�

ãCŠ~ç{Zzg)DqÑ]

¦/¸',ÎVÐvÅâ1C»g™ŠÏ)©àg„ìX@*ëgz9ÅŠg~Ú¶Ô
©wÅZ�ÛZ¹igZzg¬@ZâñpgŠzâlÅ†V~ZŸ†z{ZëÁÜƒVÐ�w~

vÅâ1Cqª6,ZW,Z0+ZiƒMh÷XÓ#ÖÅ§sÐƒVZzge-kV~ZŸ±
ÆË~¡¬]Å†V~ZŸ†ƒZìTÐÅÆwOW,ƒVÐX

YÆ�¼Š6�ÛhVäuât»g-VÅµ/ 2016-2021 WIñkezC0*Œ
È~ÅìXÅ$+zª£òâgL~5¡¬]”gsƒVÏXv6)Vâjw
»ílx™CìÔ@*ë0*GZgF,¹ÆaÓä0*ÎVÆöÆ‚B‚BƒÃ7V
ñZµÅ�ÛZbÌ¢zg~ìX

Z0+gzãNzw

vä±§jÐv»ZOx`äÔZLZU*XY]ÆDZzggkgeÆ_.Šg\o
Zzg‚ÄÃôp¯äÆaZq-¸W,ÂxúŠc*ƒZìX[Å§sÐŠN¸wZzg
Y,̂{Z0+gzãNzwÆÂxÆZëK÷X[ä-Yõ7,@*wZzgY,̂{Åf)ŠZg~
ZÚ9WeñiÆ4Š™g¿ìX

1ge',ZÓgZ„c*ZKˆVÆfg)Z0+gzãNzwÅu¤/ñVÃD¯@*ìX1gezM
zMÐ̂g~Z»ƒÛÔg7gFÔo«»Y,̂{ZzgŠvâàZzgÑgc*C¥â]Æfg)v
Æâ1CZñgZzgw»ÌY,̂{©8ìX

§‹[

WðZ*ÏÆ0*kzWF,(ÏZzg–GzZ)îâjwÆÚø~Šg7çZ]»Y,̂{he
Æa§‹[»Âxñ�ŠìX§‹[Âx0*Œ‚i~ÔZíïçZ*Ôâ1]Ô

W6,¾Ô‚ÄZzg0*GZge$ÃŠg7çZ]Å¶K0+„™CìX»WðZ*ÏÅ»gz!*g~
u¤/ñVÐmìX[wZyçZ]Æ‚B‚BZŠZg{YC£œÔZ@ZsZzg
»g™ŠÏ»ÌY,̂{gìX¶K0+„™Š{çZ]ÆZW,Z]ÃÁ™äÆaoƒ0*åV

úŠ~YC÷ZzgZy6,¿ŠgWæHY@*ìX

väI-N*Å§sÐZ(gK‰¬@§i»g6,FF§‹[Z7š1geúŠc*
ìT»Ñ»gz!*gÐ´çZ]ÐÎŠWiâƒäZzgvÅF,¹ÃWÐ(,J**ìX

â1CÍØZg}

â1CÍØZgzVÅ»g~~ZÚD+̧g7gãZœgei)WðZpWgZö(�0*Îy
YÆ�Š~ˆÑZ_Zzg@Zc*]6,¿ŠgWæHŠHÔ²g 2017 ~‡&ÿEL¿ìZzggZl

Y2017 YÆ�ÑZ_Zzg@Zc*]WðZpWgZöÐZ÷ÔgZl 2017 Zl
Æ�ÑZ_Zzg@Zc*]6,¿ŠgWæHŠHX

Z}Zp�ÛÍÍZhvÔegR,eZ»ƒ&454ø
EHEH

ÔävÆâ1CÍØZgzV M/s vÆWeñi
»We^HZzgMiÃ)æzog7g^Yg~ÅX

1geä§zlƒäzZáeZ],IÆ‡&ÿELŠg™ŠZgÃyZ•d7HZzg6eZ],IÃpl
Wæh+¹X

1geÅÌV
1geäqgzfsÌVúŠ,XÅ,Šg`fsì:

1geWeŵ .1

»[ZWÃgztÔwç} (1

»[·ZWgÔ (2

»[/ZyZ}Ô (3

»[6,zm,#_ (4

ÎÎñâ@eZ »[ (5

 "54ið HGHc*Zm,zò »[ (6

1geZK̈ãz‚bZzgçz£w .2

»[ZWÃgztÔwç} (1

»[ZZöÔ (2

-YN*»gZeZ »[ (3

»[6,zm,#_ (4

»[ZZû)à (5

1geZÜ¹w .3

»[6,zm,#_Ôwç} (1

»[ZZû)à (2

»[/ZyZ}Ô (3

)ZhÁeZ],IiÆaçz£Å0*ŒÅúc*VS:]

1ge)ZhÁeZ],IiÅ§sÐv~}.â]»Z‹Zs™@*ìZzgñ�Š{ßg�w~1ge
ÆCÙZ°kc*ZkÅwÆZ°k~Ñ•Zzgq¢~Æa):Åæ¾ÅYg„
ìXt:ZyÅ}.â]»çz£CÙ¦/7ìÉj,Z‚ÛZð™äÅ?ÏìX)ZhÁ

eZ],IièÃg{!*ÑZ°ÎV~q¢~ZzgÑ•ÆaZk§bÆçz2Ãzßw™äÆ
ZLhÐŠSnŠZgƒMh÷X

YÃZ!x5+k,ƒäzZá‚wÆavÆÏZ~ZzZzgeZ],Ii»çz£ 2019 �y 30

6,Šg`ìX _____ ™�

ãCŠ~ç{Zzg)DqÑ]

¦/¸',ÎVÐvÅâ1C»g™ŠÏ)©àg„ìX@*ëgz9ÅŠg~Ú¶Ô
©wÅZ�ÛZ¹igZzg¬@ZâñpgŠzâlÅ†V~ZŸ†z{ZëÁÜƒVÐ�w~

vÅâ1Cqª6,ZW,Z0+ZiƒMh÷XÓ#ÖÅ§sÐƒVZzge-kV~ZŸ±
ÆË~¡¬]Å†V~ZŸ†ƒZìTÐÅÆwOW,ƒVÐX

YÆ�¼Š6�ÛhVäuât»g-VÅµ/ 2016-2021 WIñkezC0*Œ
È~ÅìXÅ$+zª£òâgL~5¡¬]”gsƒVÏXv6)Vâjw
»ílx™CìÔ@*ë0*GZgF,¹ÆaÓä0*ÎVÆöÆ‚B‚BƒÃ7V
ñZµÅ�ÛZbÌ¢zg~ìX

Z0+gzãNzw

vä±§jÐv»ZOx`äÔZLZU*XY]ÆDZzggkgeÆ_.Šg\o
Zzg‚ÄÃôp¯äÆaZq-¸W,ÂxúŠc*ƒZìX[Å§sÐŠN¸wZzg
Y,̂{Z0+gzãNzwÆÂxÆZëK÷X[ä-Yõ7,@*wZzgY,̂{Åf)ŠZg~
ZÚ9WeñiÆ4Š™g¿ìX

1ge',ZÓgZ„c*ZKˆVÆfg)Z0+gzãNzwÅu¤/ñVÃD¯@*ìX1gezM
zMÐ̂g~Z»ƒÛÔg7gFÔo«»Y,̂{ZzgŠvâàZzgÑgc*C¥â]Æfg)v
Æâ1CZñgZzgw»ÌY,̂{©8ìX

§‹[

WðZ*ÏÆ0*kzWF,(ÏZzg–GzZ)îâjwÆÚø~Šg7çZ]»Y,̂{he
Æa§‹[»Âxñ�ŠìX§‹[Âx0*Œ‚i~ÔZíïçZ*Ôâ1]Ô

W6,¾Ô‚ÄZzg0*GZge$ÃŠg7çZ]Å¶K0+„™CìX»WðZ*ÏÅ»gz!*g~
u¤/ñVÐmìX[wZyçZ]Æ‚B‚BZŠZg{YC£œÔZ@ZsZzg
»g™ŠÏ»ÌY,̂{gìX¶K0+„™Š{çZ]ÆZW,Z]ÃÁ™äÆaoƒ0*åV

úŠ~YC÷ZzgZy6,¿ŠgWæHY@*ìX

väI-N*Å§sÐZ(gK‰¬@§i»g6,FF§‹[Z7š1geúŠc*
ìT»Ñ»gz!*gÐ´çZ]ÐÎŠWiâƒäZzgvÅF,¹ÃWÐ(,J**ìX

â1CÍØZg}

â1CÍØZgzVÅ»g~~ZÚD+̧g7gãZœgei)WðZpWgZö(�0*Îy
YÆ�Š~ˆÑZ_Zzg@Zc*]6,¿ŠgWæHŠHÔ²g 2017 ~‡&ÿEL¿ìZzggZl

Y2017 YÆ�ÑZ_Zzg@Zc*]WðZpWgZöÐZ÷ÔgZl 2017 Zl
Æ�ÑZ_Zzg@Zc*]6,¿ŠgWæHŠHX

Z}Zp�ÛÍÍZhvÔegR,eZ»ƒ&454ø
EHEH

ÔävÆâ1CÍØZgzV M/s vÆWeñi
»We^HZzgMiÃ)æzog7g^Yg~ÅX

1geä§zlƒäzZáeZ],IÆ‡&ÿELŠg™ŠZgÃyZ•d7HZzg6eZ],IÃpl
Wæh+¹X

1geÅÌV
1geäqgzfsÌVúŠ,XÅ,Šg`fsì:

1geWeŵ .1

»[ZWÃgztÔwç} (1

»[·ZWgÔ (2

»[/ZyZ}Ô (3

»[6,zm,#_ (4

ÎÎñâ@eZ »[ (5

 "54ið HGHc*Zm,zò »[ (6

1geZK̈ãz‚bZzgçz£w .2

»[ZWÃgztÔwç} (1

»[ZZöÔ (2

-YN*»gZeZ »[ (3

»[6,zm,#_ (4

»[ZZû)à (5

1geZÜ¹w .3

»[6,zm,#_Ôwç} (1

»[ZZû)à (2

»[/ZyZ}Ô (3

)ZhÁeZ],IiÆaçz£Å0*ŒÅúc*VS:]

1ge)ZhÁeZ],IiÅ§sÐv~}.â]»Z‹Zs™@*ìZzgñ�Š{ßg�w~1ge
ÆCÙZ°kc*ZkÅwÆZ°k~Ñ•Zzgq¢~Æa):Åæ¾ÅYg„
ìXt:ZyÅ}.â]»çz£CÙ¦/7ìÉj,Z‚ÛZð™äÅ?ÏìX)ZhÁ

eZ],IièÃg{!*ÑZ°ÎV~q¢~ZzgÑ•ÆaZk§bÆçz2Ãzßw™äÆ
ZLhÐŠSnŠZgƒMh÷X

YÃZ!x5+k,ƒäzZá‚wÆavÆÏZ~ZzZzgeZ],Ii»çz£ 2019 �y 30

6,Šg`ìX _____ ™�

ãCŠ~ç{Zzg)DqÑ]

¦/¸',ÎVÐvÅâ1C»g™ŠÏ)©àg„ìX@*ëgz9ÅŠg~Ú¶Ô
©wÅZ�ÛZ¹igZzg¬@ZâñpgŠzâlÅ†V~ZŸ†z{ZëÁÜƒVÐ�w~

vÅâ1Cqª6,ZW,Z0+ZiƒMh÷XÓ#ÖÅ§sÐƒVZzge-kV~ZŸ±
ÆË~¡¬]Å†V~ZŸ†ƒZìTÐÅÆwOW,ƒVÐX

YÆ�¼Š6�ÛhVäuât»g-VÅµ/ 2016-2021 WIñkezC0*Œ
È~ÅìXÅ$+zª£òâgL~5¡¬]”gsƒVÏXv6)Vâjw
»ílx™CìÔ@*ë0*GZgF,¹ÆaÓä0*ÎVÆöÆ‚B‚BƒÃ7V
ñZµÅ�ÛZbÌ¢zg~ìX

Z0+gzãNzw

vä±§jÐv»ZOx`äÔZLZU*XY]ÆDZzggkgeÆ_.Šg\o
Zzg‚ÄÃôp¯äÆaZq-¸W,ÂxúŠc*ƒZìX[Å§sÐŠN¸wZzg
Y,̂{Z0+gzãNzwÆÂxÆZëK÷X[ä-Yõ7,@*wZzgY,̂{Åf)ŠZg~
ZÚ9WeñiÆ4Š™g¿ìX

1ge',ZÓgZ„c*ZKˆVÆfg)Z0+gzãNzwÅu¤/ñVÃD¯@*ìX1gezM
zMÐ̂g~Z»ƒÛÔg7gFÔo«»Y,̂{ZzgŠvâàZzgÑgc*C¥â]Æfg)v
Æâ1CZñgZzgw»ÌY,̂{©8ìX

§‹[

WðZ*ÏÆ0*kzWF,(ÏZzg–GzZ)îâjwÆÚø~Šg7çZ]»Y,̂{he
Æa§‹[»Âxñ�ŠìX§‹[Âx0*Œ‚i~ÔZíïçZ*Ôâ1]Ô

W6,¾Ô‚ÄZzg0*GZge$ÃŠg7çZ]Å¶K0+„™CìX»WðZ*ÏÅ»gz!*g~
u¤/ñVÐmìX[wZyçZ]Æ‚B‚BZŠZg{YC£œÔZ@ZsZzg
»g™ŠÏ»ÌY,̂{gìX¶K0+„™Š{çZ]ÆZW,Z]ÃÁ™äÆaoƒ0*åV

úŠ~YC÷ZzgZy6,¿ŠgWæHY@*ìX

väI-N*Å§sÐZ(gK‰¬@§i»g6,FF§‹[Z7š1geúŠc*
ìT»Ñ»gz!*gÐ´çZ]ÐÎŠWiâƒäZzgvÅF,¹ÃWÐ(,J**ìX

â1CÍØZg}

â1CÍØZgzVÅ»g~~ZÚD+̧g7gãZœgei)WðZpWgZö(�0*Îy
YÆ�Š~ˆÑZ_Zzg@Zc*]6,¿ŠgWæHŠHÔ²g 2017 ~‡&ÿEL¿ìZzggZl

Y2017 YÆ�ÑZ_Zzg@Zc*]WðZpWgZöÐZ÷ÔgZl 2017 Zl
Æ�ÑZ_Zzg@Zc*]6,¿ŠgWæHŠHX

Z}Zp�ÛÍÍZhvÔegR,eZ»ƒ&454ø
EHEH

ÔävÆâ1CÍØZgzV M/s vÆWeñi
»We^HZzgMiÃ)æzog7g^Yg~ÅX

معاوضے  کے  ڑز 
� ڈائر�ی و 

ٹ ز�ی
� ا�ی
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…g°ZtW!*Š~Íḡ²g~ZjwÆaå¢›é EOwÛR,2‡ì™ä»Z³ZiÌ
qÝìX

8Z�m6,z¤/Zx - I-N*

aèZK̈ãF,¹øg~Â<îEO»ãCŠ~%œ/ìZkaëâ�ZâVÔSué S�çÙZ±gÐ$zg
4]ÐmgnpƒVÔÅ&6VÃ6,zZymJgì÷XI-N*8Z�m6,z¤/Zx

2000 Zq-»g7gf$ZŠZxÅnÆîg6,ÑzqHŠHåT~WðZ*Ïä (T-TEP)

&‚! T-TEP Y~ÑƒgÆZq-zzåR,“çÆaR,“;gez*�ÛZëHåX
WIñâeøâìT~â�ZâVÃÇh-VÐ0½7gWÇ„qÝƒCìTÅ
$+zªz{Å~»x[P*i¯Mh÷Xñ�Š{îg6,WðZ*Ï™ZcÔÑƒgZzgZsxW!*Š

R,“ZXkF`g„ì@*ā¥ÃZK}&&6,zZymJäZzg TTEP ~eg
0*ÎyÅWIñkÅÃL¯ä~™ŠZgZŠZ™äÆaZq-SàPÃgx�ÛZëƒX

4,397 ZyZXkF~Çh-VÐ0Z‡V~Yì½Š~YCìX@*qw
"5½54n.ç
HGEGIEEÃF,šMŠ~Y_ìX~ÐZÒ0*Îy~I-N*,Mzgu~',açLgziÇg÷X
Z,Óx»gWæ{qZ�ÛZŠÅæ¾z«Æ̃´~Ì¹â8-ìX

…Zk6,z¤/ZxÆŠÎ,‚w~ŠZ4ƒDƒñ¹pÙCkƒg„ìTä
0*ÎyÆ!*&¢Aâ�ZâVÃWIÅ~&zgZ:F,¹Æa£/YìF,šMÐ

¦/gäZzgSàQ{I»ñµŠc*X

¡Æ̂Æaçz-$

�|ZXkŴs-gzßYZhR,Z$k5Õä
E

F.$Æaçz-$ .1

ÑÄgz9» 75 Ã (SUIT) Z&+kñR,v�|ZXk^Ws-gzßYZhR,Z$k5Õä
E

F.$
»g7gf$¾Šc*@*āz{'×h+¸W,Z0+Zi~»x™ÃXZŠZg{°æ

YNŠ}ÆZ%Zn~2Z�ÛZŠÃ
´`ZzgR,Z$k5Õä

E
FãÅ£g~œ1]�ÛZë™äÆa»ŠZU*XY]ZzgZ¦ZŠ»qïìX

ÆeZËZŠd$gç~äZ&+kñR,Åçz-$Zzgù¦îg6,vÆ�YZŠZâ]Å SIUT

ÆtBïGL¬)Å].h+F,+ SIUT °pÅXZrVä¢Š;ã™ZðāZkçz-$Ð
œ1]�ÛZë™äÆ³xÅŠÃ'×h+–gZAÇX

Z&+khwÆÂVµ"Æaçz-$ .2

tBïGL¬)0*ÎyÆƒÐic*Š{)]ÐŠzeg‡V~ÐZq-ìTÃÂzÅZ”
¢zg]ìXhwù¦̧ò¡ÆÂx»%œ/~NƒD÷XZ&+khwÁ%Z¬]c*C
6Æa¡Åœ1]Å�ÛZb~ñ�ŠÜÃ%æFN™ä~‡&ÿELd™ŠZgZŠZ™g;ìZzg

WðZ*ÏZkÑ~Zk»æŠÇgìX

Z&+khwÆÂVµ1V~çz-$Zzg¾d$Zzg¢zgÇ%ÉVJ-î~™ŠZgZŠZ
�gz9»¾Šc*ìX 10 ™äÆaZ&+kñR,vä

»gz!*g~QñgZzǵÒ**]

1geÅF,KM

YÃ1geWseZ],Ii 2019 �y 30

ì�āqgzfsì: 10 ®ÿ NeZ],IiÅ®ZŠ -1

10 Z³X%Š:
[XpZ&:

eZ],IiÅˆÆÒpÐ®ZŠŠg`fsì: -2

01 Z³XpŠUgeZ],I:
06 [X)ZhÁeZ],I:
03 `XZhÁeZ],I:

YÆ_.Z&+kñR,v»1geÔTÅ 2017 Åk5åHHg)ÃeWs»g7gf$Íg›(gcÉ4n.ç GIEE

Y~Z!x5+k,ƒÏÔA$J-1ge~Zq-{ÂyeZ],IZzg 2020 ZÆ', 31 ñ�Š{$åO]
Zq-äðpŠUgeZ],Ii»ƒ**¢zg~ìX

1geWseZ],IiÆZ°k

(05) â{ÆŠzgZy®ÿ N0*õ 12 YJ-Æ 2019  �y 30 YÐ 2018 �Ñð 01

1geWseZ],IiÆZ°kÂƒñXeZ],IiÆ**x)�ŠzgZÈ‚wLÌeZ],Igì
ƒV(Zzg›Z°ÎV~QyÅq¢~Šg`fsì:

q¢~Å®ZŠ  eZ],I**x �Ñg
5 »[ZZöÔ)ç}( 1

5 )**T$ç}ZzgeZ],I(  »[-YN*»gZeZ 2

4 »[ZZû)à)ÏZ~Zz( 3

5 »[‡ZÂÙ»Ù;gZ 4

5 [ �ŠweZ],I - »[Î-Ù;µ543ð
Y

GEGZ ] »[ÎÎñâ@eZ 5

4 / �ŠweZ],I - »[zZðzÇN* ] »["54ið HGHc*Zm,zò
[ ‚—�ŠweZ],I - »[ÆÎIzZ

6

4 »[·ZWgÔ 7

3 )»[�ÛqŠfzZ3g‚—eZ],I( / »[/ZyZ}Ô 8

5 »[ZWÃgzt 9

5 »[6,zm,#_ 10

eZ],IiÅp~
YÃ 2019 �Ûzg~ 26 ŠzgZÈ‚w1ge~Zq-¬gèëCÅˆX»[�ÛqŠfzZ3gä

eZ],IÅwÐZ±Šc*Zzg»[/ZyZ}ÔÃQÏ@*gõÐeZ],IHg™Šc*ŠHX

-
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Zzgr=Æ-',ZñyŠc*÷¸÷áZzgVe*Æaeg™zhgz9Š�‰X0*ã
)Z&+kÁzg™i-2(Ìøg} CBA ÆdZyÅZÌ»Zˆk™Dƒñøg~

‚B÷áïƒ̂Zzg-2ÆpÆ&]ZzzgN*ìÆ',Z',âq»¾Šc*X

(:zg®JÅà II- Y| 2019 ÝZh¤/+egZÇ 5S ) bk54è
HGEZ"5ÿ GE; (3)

™ZcÅœg7g^Æ_.ZkàÃ™âj1C{»‚oìT~cðÔiF̂Ô
W!Zzg«g~WßŠÏ÷áï÷X»(,Zzš}Æ**oƒMqÆ!*)̄ƒ@*ìX̂k

‚Z\™ÆšZ,-VJ-v7HY@*;ic*Š{F,šZväÆagh 60 š}»
Šc*Y@*ìc*°c*Y@*ìTÐŠx̃UzZÑ$+1ŠZgŠðZV{g`ƒ@*ìZzg!3}ÿ

GO´̧VÃZK
�~á©8ìX

Y» 2018 Zy**pÎZg¬]Ãf‚~gnpƒñZ&+kñR,vä™Zc~Ìðî
W¸iHT~Z+YZziÔzc*Ôà-VZzggŸ»gZ:»g.VÃÌ÷áïHŠHXZkî»Ñ
tåāúZxZzgSué Sâ�ZâV~0*ÎyÆàzVÃZCKÆ_."Zzggz�Ã�ÛzrŠc*
Yñ@*āZ¹ZŠgZuƒāz{çÑ}~Hµ™ŠZgZŠZ™Mh÷Xbk54è

HGEZ"5ÿ GE;î
200 0*ÎyÆ‚BZ·Zu~Z[ÌYg~ìTÆ�™ZcÆ WWF 

ZjßVÃ@s¯c*ŠHìXZkî»Ñ™ZcÆúZx~Zk_."Ã�ÛzrŠbìātøgZ
ZCàìÔZkÅ§søg~¼f)ŠZg~ìZzgZkÃ™s_ZgppÆaëƒ�÷X

ZßwÌZkî~÷áïK‰÷@*ā�Ìâj1CDÆÑÃZC** 5S I-N*Æ
eìz{ZyZßßVÆfg)ic*Š{¸W,Z0+Zi~»x™nX

YIYÆazdç×9)Ãçz-$: 2020 cZ»S

Start Your Impossible Z&+kñR,vä0*Îy~I-N*Æ¬@»g7gf$ZŠZx
»!*‡°{W¸iHìT»ÑvÆZâKÔ0*gìiZzg™g@ÃOW,™**ZzgvÅãCŠ~

ZŠZgÆ‚BZyÃ%1o™**ìXI-N*»,ìāÜzw•Çh-VÐzWF,Ãtì;t
ZŠZxZy Start Your Impossible )]6,‡10*™pZ1VÃ7gZ™ä6,”ìX

ZŠZgÅ?Ï™@*ìZzgƒÃÜzw•ÅWiZŠ~�ÛZë™äÆvÆÑÃúc*V™@*
ìX

Z&+kñR,väÄ~„kOãÔ™ZLÆ£òîh~ÔZzgi5M',•Ô̧òzdç
YIY~0*ÎyÅúÒÏ™äÆa 2020 9)ÅZz»SZzgcZ»S

çz-$™ä»ÇHì@*āz{Í®z¨“W»pZ[7gZ™ÃXWðZ*ÏÅ§sÐ
» Start Your Impossible ŠzâVîh-VÆatçz-$øg}¬@ZŠZx

zì�Zz»ZzgcZ»Æj,Z‚ÛZðÔ½ZzgF,¹Æ_.1VÅ?Ï™CìXZk¬@
ZŠZxÆfg)v»g»zIVÐ0*uçÑ{‡ì™ä»uúc*Vƒ@*ìÔZzg¬b~
Z(g™äÔœ™äÔ)]6,‡10*äZzgL;g:â+ÅvÅZŠZgÃ'×h+¾e$Q
ìX

Ô-Eg;Ãƒ&+c

½»�ÛzrZK̈ãZzgçÑCp~ÆaZq-Yì§iìXÔ-Eg;Ãƒ&+c»
ŠZ],ï»gZd½Ô½Æˆ~ïZzgâ�ZâVÅF,¹6,”ìXÔ-Eg;»Ñg¬@
£gÆqïÔó»x6,FFÔZ&+g¤/�f$ZŠZg}~ƒ@*ìT»ÑZå,œ~ÆZë
F,+{»‚o™**ìXt0*Îy~_wWgFZzg‚®»%œ/ì�¥ÃÇp~

Š/�ÛZë™@*ìX-Eg;»uìāCÙ:©ÐmgppzZá÷¥Ã i³Ã×ùÛo Zz!
½�ÛZëÅYñZzgïz½Æˆ~àéqÃ�ÛzrŠc*Yñ@*āz{çÑ}Æ‡.ÞZzg

¥Ë:Ë̂~âàçz-$qÝ™gì÷ 90% f)ŠZg¥ÁFX-Eg;Æ½"5é GES
ÐiZZ+Ze°mŠ~YC÷X 100 ZzgCÙ‚w

Z&+kñR,v»Ãtìāøg}â�Zy„$Óë NÃgz×F,wÅ§sáYNÐÔZzg
Zq-f)ŠZg»gz!*g~ZŠZg{ƒäÅwÐëZyÆauât»g~™D÷XWðZ*Ï
äZk‚wÌZq-(,~g¶¾Å@*ā=zŠZøÃÃéu™äzZáâjw~!&¢AÔ
(WiZŠ~ZzgnŠ!YìwÃ�ÛzrŠ¶~™ŠZgZŠZ™ä»ŸYg~gÇX

�YF,¹

Z&+kñR,v»³xìāZq-f)ŠZg»gz!*g~ZŠZg{¶Ô{mîg6,Zy´̧V~�ZkÆ
ŠZ],ï¿~WD÷Xëä£òW!*Š-VÆaSàîg6,�YF,¹»6,z¤/ZxúŠc*
ìTÆŠzÑ÷ÔTÆfg)ëeT÷āøg}7,zÏplƒVÔic*Š{áZiy
ƒVZzgZyÅgzi%{i0+Ï'×h+!*Ñ¶Xøg~ñ‹uzk!3}ÿ

GOW!*Š-VÆçÑC
ŠJg}Ð{g`ƒYäÆZÆaZiˆl™CìXªÑZyÅ¡»ìw
ǵìÔZzgZkÆaëCÙ‹£g~åƒZ3**Zzggpy~ZâñpgŠzâl�ÛZë™D
÷ÔZzg&£â]6,jßzZg?H',ZñZz8e~²Šz£â]6,CÙâ{~Šzj
;C?H»ZÈx™D÷X

Æ (T-GEP) ÍJZ�m6,z¤/Zxóó - Y~W¸i™Š{LLIc*N* 2008 ŠzuZÑtìā
�ãCŠ~Ð²g~J-½Å�ÛZbÆfg)!3}ÿ

GOW!*Š-V~g�zZá”VÃf6z
gzqãZ‚ÛzŠÏÆaZjw−6,ÂzŠ~YñZzgZkÆa7À.ïGLiF,KMŠ~YñX

Z}zyZzgZ}¤/i+~¢au0*k™[ì²ŠzuZ batch Zk6,z¤/ZxÆ�¥»ª
ZJy~»x!qÝ™Æ(,~¯w~VŠHìZzgZkÆ¥%æFN�lâ�Zy batch 

“WÆ»̂W¸i™`÷XWðZ*Ï%æFN³xìā6,ZÇf$»œVz){~ZyÅZd½
Æa½7gçz-$Yg~gÇ@*ā¼²áˆZ#t&zgZ:i0+Ï~»x[ƒVÂ

ZKñ‹~p~Ñä»fg=0YNX

Zq-»Š�Y#k6,z¤/ZxìTÐnƒäzZßVÆ£§i0+Ï~ZzgZk TGEP

ÆË~ZyÆ§„̄Zzggzi%{i0+Ï~‡&ÿELf™4~WðìX{mîg6,”V~¹
F,¹ƒðìZzg…7gZ¢ìāz{p~ÆÉFÐX”VÃZjwÐïwhec*
±YVÃZjw:−ÆgDy~¹¶WðìXzZ−+ÅZK@VÅ¢÷áŠ~ÅpZé
Z[gz×wÅQy~psƒg„ìXëB÷āTñ‹ÐënƒD÷t
ZkÃÃZ+{àä»ZY§iìYèZkÐ&éELsy¾"$ÅR~¶WñÏX´z{Zi,Ô
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0*ÎVZzg§hVÃ4¯ä6,ÚÂ<îEOŠ¶Å¢zg]ìXSk‚wWðZ*ÏäZq-
»Šz!*g{Y,̂{á™ZkÃ4¯c*ì BCP / DRP �ÛxÅæŠÐZL Big4 czs

wÌZ�xŠ~XZyZŠZâ]Ð1geZzg‰c*§yÃ¢Š;ã DR ZzgZq-»x[
¯g~¿Æa»gìXö.$Å_5½3ð GGgKÃ4¯ä BCP / DRP ƒðāWðZ*Ï»

Nzw§&»gzäHŠHì@*āD¯c*Y ]m³ÓŠô‹ c*ZèVÆ¶Ky6,FF RFID Æa
nāÓxg‚ðZ(gÆ‚BìX

w»©

WðZ*ÏÅWðK7À.ïGLi~ãCŠ~ZÌL@eÞ"3ï JGHóª™g@Ã4+Š"Å�ÛZb
ÃqÝìXe´R,Z$i¨é EEgÂÆyZy~ëTÐgëgÐ(,|gì÷Qk~

qÝ™äZzgàÅ 4Most ),÷~ 2025 ZŸ±ÅÃlYg~g÷ÏXI-N*zjy
4+v0™çÑ}~™ŠZgZŠZ™äÅ!*]™@*ìXƒÐic*Š{™g@ÅqïÔ
ƒÐic*Š{o«¾äzZàÔƒÐic*Š{)VZzgƒÐic*Š{7åEO]§Ziv“WÆ

ZkzjyÆ”wÆaWðZ*ÏWðKZq-Zëfg=U*"$ƒÇX

Çh-VÐWÐ—F,„ (CSR) »g7gf$�Yf)ŠZg~

�Y»g™ŠÏ:f)ŠZg»gz!*g~ZŠZg{

ZßwÆ_.ZK UNGC Z&+kñR,vZLZÍA£œÔuÔãCŠ~ZŠZgZzg
u¤/ñVZzg»ñVÆåŠZ],ï»g~åf)ŠZgZ:gzØ»bCÙ{™CìX

Z&+kñR,väâè~½7g�Yuât»g~Åì�Zg»YÅoiwð™CƒðW`Zq-
F,¹5+k,çÑ}Åë7VZzg)]ÐëW}÷Xë½Ô¡ÔgzéZzg
âj1]zñA]Æ‡V~zWeä6,ZŠZâ]Åçz-$™D÷Zzg…¢¢
ìātZŠZâ]çÑ}ÅF,¹ÆaãCŠ~y~ZbZY�ÛZë™D÷X

QßwzçZ*Æ!*‡°{W¸iÆˆÐväZLW6,:Zzg CSR Y~ 2002

Åñ�Š{ßg�wÆ!*‡°{Y,̂zVZzg�Z!ZŠZâ] CSR e’’,Mzgu~
Æfg)Zq-.ÎaZzgëW}7À.ïGLizä™äÆa½7gZ0+Zi~»xHìX

ëB÷āË),÷Å»x!ZzgZkÅçÑCf)ŠZg~÷á:tK:º÷XOçë
çÑ}ÅF,¹Ã�ÛzrŠ¶Æa£/%ZiÅ¸W,úZzgŠ~™ŠZgZŠZ™äÅ

Z�ÛZŠ~¢ðGO]Æ‚B¼Š#kµ1V»z‘W / ½7gÃÒ™D÷XëZL5i}
÷@*āçÑC0V»‚o™,Zzgúc*Vp~ÑÃXZq-Çh~‚iZŠZg{ƒäÅ
wÐZ&+kñR,Àòîg6,Zq-DIZ:çÑ}ÃúŠ¶Zzg{mîg6,ñŠp~
ÐÎŠWiâƒä~Zë™ŠZgZŠZ™$ËìX

çÑ}Æa!©5å NE
Gµ1VÅŠÆavä³Æ‚BZ·ZuHìT»

ÑZK¥â]Zzg,Mzg¾Ã'×h+¸W,¯**ì˜Vtµ"ic*Š{Ðic*Š{µZW,

Y~ 2018-19 %A$™Mh÷XçÑ}~p~Æ¿ÃÃéu¯äÆa
ZŠZâ]K‰: CSR qgzfsZë

âj1CzñACD

âj1CX¬@R6,ŠzŠJg~ŒZg0ŠHì;ZÏa™*Æ¼Š̃´âj1]ZzgñŠ
p~Æ)b6,¤ÏÆ‚B̈g™gì÷ZzgmãCŠzV6,Zkßg�wÐÖÅÃÒ
™gì÷XÍ]ÅÉðÆ´z{Qu¤/xVZzg¡¬]ÌâjwÃOW,™C÷X

ñŠp~Æ™*6,™ZW,Z]%A$ƒD÷XÇp~ÑäÆa…ZÐZŠ~™ŠZgZŠZ
™äÆ´z{Z½¦îg6,ÌÃÒ™ãƒÏXëZgïÅ¸W,e$~ZŸ†Zzg!¸ç NELâœzV
ÆZyZ`~¶Æa"u%æFN³x÷ÔZzgZ¼$¨»4jè GEGIEZzgÃ8-ÆDIZ:§hV
6,»gÈg÷Ð@*āñŠp~Æ)bÐÖ~ZC™ŠZgZŠZ™ÃXëäZL
»g{âVZzg$Óë N½~ñÌÐ´ZW,Z]ÃÁ™äÆa—Z@ZsHg™ÆpŠÃ½
HìT~&(,~uât»g-VÅ¿,Šg`fsì:

YóÆK~Z&+kñR,‚w½ 2050 :LI-N*âj1C½ ŠkÑÄŠg|#ÎäÅî (1)

6,”Sàu¤/ñVÆfg)âjwŠz„çÑ}ÆaF,¹IZ:Z0+Zi~gZ{ûZg
Y2018 ™äÆa%æFN³xìXf)ŠZg»gz!*g~ZŠZg{ƒäÅwÐëäŠc

~ŠkÑÄŠg|#ÎäÅî»W¸iHXZkî»!*‡°{Z¶bZq-½d$~HŠHT~
W!*Š~Å 1% 7gÄøg}$Óë NÅ CSR £a™Zc»[z®ZºäÑ•ÅXt

³¤/Zxâj1C»g0eZð 23 çz-$Æa»°ƒÏYèZq-Šg|#¬xîg6,½"5é GES
W‚àÃ_.[™@*ìX»g0eZðW‚àÆZyZ`Åˆ°ZzgZk~¶ÔZzgøg}
»g{äÆZ±gÐZkZyZ`Æå{8Æ@sÆ”wÅÃÒ~¼ŠZŠZâ]
KYgì÷X

Zkî~øg~7À.ïGLiÆ�Zk!*]ÃD¯c*Y@*ìā£ò7ŠzV»Šg„ZN[™
ÆZ¹Šg„£x6,Îc*YñÔZzg£òW!*Š-VÃÌÑ•ÆaâbHYñ@*ā7Š}
’YZzg›úÆ%ZiÐ¦/g™Šg|#FXZkîÃ̧W,¯äÆaëä}çz-$Zzg

0*ÎyÆ‚BZ·ZuHìX WWF ZZlxÆ£g~7ŠzVÅ�ÛZbÆa
ZkÐ…ZKg‚ðzW™ä~æŠQìZzgZq-)Y—Zg�Û&Ðøg~�YÃ@V
ÅÂ}ÌƒCìX

:W!*Š~ZzgQ7gÄÆ(,_ƒñŠ!*ƒÆ Šc*÷¸÷áZzgVe*Åy~™ŠZg (2)

!*)̄0*ãÅâ8-~ZŸ†ƒ[ìXt0*Îy»ŠzuZãCŠ~X0ŠHì;ŒV0*ã»
dZy’gó]åIO]Z(g™@*Yg;ìXÛ0*ã:Üs’ñ§]Æa¢zg~ìÉ
çÑCzçÙF,¹ÆaÌQÚ„ZëìXOç'×h+f{],Zzg0*ãÆZOxÅ¸W,7À.ïGL

iz‰ÜÅZë¢zg]÷X

$ÓÀö N¢zgÂVÅ]åIO]Æ&4øFGILÃ̧ò¬Æ_."»bCÙ{™DƒñWðZ*ÏäŠk
™zhgz9¾™ä»ÇHì�‚Ñ:ÇV~Š�YNÐXŠzgZÈ‚wzik,ZW
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HXt»x!@*g]ZÌÅqïìYètªñµìā0*ÎyÐÑ•ÃJwHŠH
]4h¾æ EB 233 ØVÐ 25 ˜´Zzg 37 SâzcZ-ZgeiÆa SAP ìXz

ñßwƒN�R[J-ÅƒÐ(,~®ZŠìX

Â<îEOÆã~U

W9,̂cÆfg)aðuZzgÑ8k5½ø EH:ÅW6,¾Z
$¨4h4gö
GEGIE S/4 HANA

»].h+F,+zgjyZ(gHXtªZŠZg{ SAP S/4 HANA Y~WðZ*Ïä 2016

ZÚ:Å�ÛZë™Š{g"5ÿ GJN*ìeðZbāÅ&¢AÆ FIORI ÆZ0+gzã SAP å�
šäaðuZzg7g^�Æ‚B$ÿ L™Nz² SAP ‚B!3�ç EEL¬x6,Wc*XWðZ*ÏÅ

Å¸W,e$~'×h+ZŸ†HìXZk‚w SAP Æ!*pÎfZzg!*ÑWIÂÆfg)
»W¸iHŠHT~g"5ÿ GJN*ìZEgR,rgÃW@*ìX (IPOS) ZàgQ+0*gFWgeg8-Ä

ZkÄÆfg)6,zëö)šÃŠgWæ”{0*gFZzǵ4ø LHÅ',z‰ÜWæÅŠg„7|
Zzgµ/È~™ä~çz-$qÝƒðìTÆË~Çh-VÅ',z‰Ü»g~Zzg
eCg~ÃD¯c*ŠHìXZkÆ´z{z*;ƒk[ÃZkZ0+Zi~úŠc*ŠHìāz{#èELE

ãCŠ6,¸W,§jÐZEw™nXZkÅ$+zªWðZ*ÏÅ§sÐ FIFO ß2iÃ
c*geÅZ¦ZŠZzg‚âyÆ4ZOxÃD¯c*YñÇX

WðZ*Ïe’m~Ẑi�Ûz|#Å̂e+C45Õä
GEGH,̂c

WðZ*ÏÔWðKÅÂz»%œ/“WzZÑZq-»xe’m~ˆZi�Ûz|#ˆÅ¸W,e$~
ZŸ†ìTÆfg)™g@ÆŠ"Ã4¯c*YnXZkK~7454mø EGEG),÷7gTÞ~

Y~HŠHåZzgZk»ãCŠ~Ñ 2016 Zëµp´VÅˆ÷X7
454mø EGEG»W¸iZ’ZYê

WðZ*ÏZzg7g}0*Îy~ZkÅe’mÆ,MzguÆŠgxy»gz!*g~�â]Ã
pŠ»g¯**åXSk‚wÅ»xçV~ñe-²»W¸i!5Õä

IS0*gFÅWgeg8-Ô
÷áï÷XZyñe-² (RSR) grÆ - 7g^  - §"2.ç FGJ  Zzg (FIR) gZV$ - S^ - ¡½ø

EL

ÆZŸ±ÐzZg‹Æ¿ÃWÐ(,JäZzg%æFNi{Y]Wgeg™äÅ¸W,e$~‡&ÿELf™
4~ƒðìTÆË~™g@ÆZEyÅR—ƒðìX

û&ëEN6,ZùÃé¯äÅ(,~7gÄ

û&½5ë ENEY6,ZªÆz‰ÜÃÁ™äÅÃÒ~e’’ÅR6,e+C45Õä
GEGH,̂cÆ¼ŠZŠZâ]

K‰÷XZ+„Zq-ÃÒ�qw„~åƒðz{e’m6,ûŠ*zm,Z]Åe~
çÞ,̂”{Z]½545ë GEE

YìXZk6,Z�»Ñ;BÐZ�xŠ�YäzZá»ñVÆ
z‰ÜÃÁ™**ZzgŠ*zm,Z]Åg"5ÿ GJN*ì¤&Æ¿»W¸i™**ì@*āZk!*]ÃD¯c*Yñ

āøg}™g@ÃÇh~¢Zi¢àðYnX

(ßYÆfg)7|6,FF%#Özbà (IOT)
(Ÿ5¾æ
GLEYE - Ws - ZÚ,M

»ggzZÇVÅ¸W,e$~ZŸ±ÅÃÒ~WðZ*Ïä¼ŠZŠZâ]QVñ÷X»

Ñ6,ZªeðÅ%áZzg‡&ÿELZOŠ»g™ŠÏÃ4¯**ìX7|6,FF%#ÖzbàQy
ÅWiâöÅYg„ìZzgZkÆÂ¯ZZ+~á IOT ‡V~ÐZq-ì˜V

yZ[ƒäÅc*ŠŠ;ãÆÃéu�â]Ðá™%æFNizVÅ�ÛÎŠÏÅgzuåxÆfg)
‡&ÿELf™Y÷áï÷X

gz1&ëHL6,ZªWIÂ)Wg8Z}(ÃÃu™Æf�ZŠZg{“WÅ§s
Ç'×y
gz1&ëHL6,ZªWIÂLWg8Z}óZq-Q½Cƒð(ßYìTÆ»Ñ™CÙZñYä
zZáZzg)ŠN»ñVÆa‚Åz*gz1FÃZEw~Ñ**ìXLWg8Z}ó»Zq-

»ñVÆaÃgrHYYìX value-added ZëF,+ÃZ+{tìāZK̈ãz‚bÃ
- Ws - Z»ñVÆaLWg8Z}óÃñizVŒÛZgŠc*ŠHìZzgñ�Š{îg6,6,zs

»$h454ø
E

GFHYg~÷X

»wçZzgWðz~Wg~4~Æfg)™g@Ð¢F,gZ‚

WðZ*ÏÆûZhâgÌÔ@�Û†Zzg@g˜e0*g¹Ã!*za¯äZzg™g@Ã
WðKä»wçZzgZÚZÁzZõ - 4+Š/�ÛZë™äÆZÝÑÆaWðZ*Ï

g3÷ÄzäHìZzgZÐ4¯c*ìXZkÆfg)z{™g@�ZKÇh~ÅeCg~»
ZOg™gì÷z{»w™ÆeCg~ZzgZâZõÆ¿Åñ�Š{ßg�w¥x™Mh÷X

�eZÜƒ@*ìX PBO ™g@ÃLWðz~WgóÄ~ZC¸òÙ!»ge�Zzg

Wb),÷Ã'×h+‚iÇg¯äÆae7~çR,ñ!*bZx$

WðZ*ÏäI-N*„íWbÆW6,:Ãic*Š{‚iÇg¯äÆaZq-e7~çR,ñ!*b
Z"5Ó»4jè GFGIE”gs™ZðìXZEw~W‚yZÚ:Æ‚BtZx$e7~çR,iÆ
aµ/È~ZzgWðZ*ÏÐWbqÝ™äÆ¿ÃW‚y¯CìX

4Šø7!Æa¯ƒeâÂc

!*gq-|Æ‚Bzä”{;*.çJELe¯ƒe7À.ïGLiÆ�WðZ*Ï¼Š
),÷Z"5Ó»4n.ç GFGIEEÃ¯ƒeÆi%æGL¿ÑðìXZ+Zq-Z"5Ó»4jè GFGIE mission-critical 

ì&e’m~Ẑi�Ûz|#ˆÆa(,}eä6,ZEwHYg;ìX qnßnŠ‹

¯ƒeÅ$+zª™g@Æaøg~ic*Š{Ðic*Š{Šø7!Ô‡&ÿEL Azure âMz‚Å
ZOŠuzkZzggZiŠZg~ÃD¯c*Y@*ìX

eiZ7grg~ö) / (BCP) ZÎgÂ_5½3ð GGgKZzg),÷±3ïEHeÌö)
(DRP) 

Ú(,_ƒñ‚$çZ]ÆZkšzg~ZÎgÂ_5½3ð GGgK»%"uZÌZ(g™ŠH
ìXZŠZgzVÆeðÅgZiŠZg~Ô‡&ÿELZOŠe$ZzgŠø7!ÃD¯äÆaWðK_5½3ð GGgK
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¢4hÍ-ö
E

GHÅÂWÔ6,ZªÅpŠ»g~ZzgAlâew”gs™ZäÆ6,Z85»4ø EGH
6,»x™g„ìX

Zy~ÐZq-6,Z�5Ì¢4hÍ-ö
E

GHì�].h+F,+Ìgz1FÐ:ìXZk5Ì
tgz9ìZzgtÓxÛzãg8-Ì™äÅZ¦ZŠÅ 3.1 ÷á\¢

4hÍ-ö
E

GHÅuât»gZ:Šg
qïìX

WðZ*Ï~].h+F,+Ìgz1F

Z&+kñR,v™™g@ÅŠp',ŒÛZggppZzgZyÐ%1og�Æa!*‡°{ãCŠ6,
tgz9Åuât»g~Ð 2.36 Çh-VÆ6âew”gs™ZCìXZkK~

6,ö÷á\ZzgÑ8k5½ø EHÅqg]ÅÂWÅˆX

»™äÆY0*ã�Æ_.Z”Ô (muda, mura, muri) aZzZg~¿Ð—
�gz9uât»g~Ð÷{Zzg].h+gz1F”gs™Zñ 571 R,Z$g.jè

EIEZzgzN÷á\~
Z

"5Ó»4jè GFGIEÆ¿Ã sealant Z”ZzgR,Z$g.jè
EIEgz1F”gs™Zñ‰@*ā 5 ‰÷X®ÿ N

4-.5ë XGEYgz1F·K‰÷@*ā4-.5ë XGEYÆ¿Ã 18 pŠ»g¯c*YñÔZzgzN÷á\~®ÿ N

pŠ»g¯c*YñXZyF,ªCZŠZxÐZ&+kñR,vÅ6,zë¢4hÍ-ö
E

GHäZLaZzZg~£gÃ
—™äÅY+$ŠxZVc*ìX

Z¨ô^¹ÿ L»"54iï
EHGH

tI-N*"5½54n.ç
HGEGIEEÆa‚Ñ:£¨ìTÃI-N*‰.Þƒ†™@*ìXZ¨ô^¹ÿ L

I-N* 12 ˜´Ð 8 YåðC~ÂƒZT~Z¨ô8Šõ
EOÆ 2019 »"54iï

EHGH

Z�ÛZŠÑq-ƒñX 121 Z$©5Ðö GEGZ"5å GHHµVÐmgppzZá

Z&+kñR,Æ"5½54n.ç
HGEGIEEä£«~Zi%zV~z1Zzg-VZyÃÎZŅ̃ZòPÃgx6,

ZK&¢AZzg{»bCÙ{™ä»ñµ5XZrVäSk‚w0*õzwòTÅ,
Šg`fs:

&e0+~Æzw:Ì́45¾æ GH
Y

~~šMZÔ%iZÔZỐ45¾æ GH
Y

~~š7gc*uZ£ÔZzgÃZy
´45¾æ GH

Y
~~šM¼k,„kX

Šz»́Æzw:6,ö́45¾æ GH
Y

~~š7gW{yÔZzgÃZý45¾æ GH
Y

~~šMqg_¥X

ß̄,̂c

ë£òÅÃ6,zZymJäÅÚ[™D÷@*āøg~Çh-V~ic*Š{Ðic*Š{
£ò0*gFZEwƒVXZ&+kñR,v™ZkÑÆ”w~å»x[ƒðìZzg

w~Ì»x[ƒDg�Æa%æFN³xìXZk¿~:Üs0*gFÅß¯,̂c
É6a],iÅˆlZzgZyÅF,šMÌ÷áïì@*āI-N*Æ¬@R6,czs£gÃ',ŒÛZg

g3YnX

Z&+kñR,v»³xìāI-N*Æ¬@R6,czs£g6,7gZQF,äzZàÇhc*V¯ñXZk
built-in Æa…ZLa],iÐÌZ(„£g�ÛZë™ä»³xŠg»gìXOç

Ã'×h+4¯äÅÃÒÅYñ@*āèÃg{£g6,7gZ (TPS) £gZzgI-N*6,zëÄ
QF,äzZàÕ÷Ð0*u¡¬]»gƒVX

v(SQD) I-N*Æ¬@ZŠZxÆ_.Z&+kñR,v™~Z[a],ÃZyezC
Ìñ�ŠìTÆZ+C42.ç

E
EEGJÄÅëW°Zzga],iÅI-N*Æ¬@£gÅzÃ4¯ä

Zzg™«Ã4¯äÔa],ÃZyZØg÷ 5S Æa{mîg6,F,šMc*C÷XãCŠ~Âz
Š*zm,Z]Å¤&ÔIwZzgeZðÅbàZzg4~ÔáZzgZrœ>Å (SQAM) !543ð GEGw

Åz6,Š~YC Obeya and Asakai µ5Ô.ç GEcZzgbàz4~ÔZzgY0*ãÃ�
ìXøgZ,ìāÕ÷ÃZyÆỲW¸i6,„»HYñÔOñZkÆāẐiZVË

Åz (TPS) Zzg%µc*£gÅYõÆñµ6,ªCÙƒVXZkÆaI-N*6,zëÄ
Zzgzgueg^ZzgÃZysB_54ø

IGH (TPM) ~ZŸ†Ô0VZzgeZKÅITÞ6,zeµ3ðHL
!545454ø GEHEGE

ÅZœgeZ,̂cÅYCìXZ’Zð%µ~Ô�Zq-‚w¬ÑzqƒZÔba],iÃÉ™
ÆZy6,Âz%ÃiÅ̂ÔZzgZë4~™sªCÙ¶X

ZÎgÂ(ßY
z=Å7åEO]6,FFWðK7À.ïGLi

WðZ*ÏÅWðK7À.ïGLi™g@Ã½7guzk�ÛZë™äÆÑÐúŠ~ˆìX
Zq-Y+$I-N*Çh-VÅZq-gzZîvÐYìLñ"5Í-ö EGHóv~psƒg„ìZzgŠzu~
Y+$ZÎgÂ(ßYÅZÌZzg™ŠZg~FkHZŸ†ƒZìXÚ(,fƒð(ßYÔ

Æñ�Š{šzg~²ZN[Æ"ÑgñZµ use-cases Z&½3ð E
GC<ØZzg„CÙ‡&ÿELëC
ñ�Š÷Ôt¢zg~ìāãCŠ~»gz!*g~Zßw6,»gÈg{™(ßYÅZ+œ1]ÉÅ
YN�™g@ÆŠ"Ã4¯NXZÏaI-N*ÅWðK7À.ïGLi»ãCŠ~@s(ßY
~7åEO]ÆOñz=ª™g@ÆaZÃŠe$~7åEO]ìXëeT÷ā¡
(ßY~7åEO]ÅOñ™g@ÆŠ"ÅãCŠ6,z=Zzg7åEO]6,ÌizgŠc*YñYè
(ßYwÐëW}¢zgìpZkÆfg)™g@Å¢zgc*]ÆaZÃŠe$
~özŠZŸ†ƒ@*ìX

§iZ(gHìX¬Ð Agile WðKä(ßYÅ5œ1]Ã”gs™ZäÆa
- cgWæ - ªLµ/È~ Plan-Do-Check-Act (PDCA) Wiâñƒñ

¢zg~ZŠZâ]óÆŠZ],zVÃë]HŠH@*āt¥xHYnā5Q½äzZà - ç¤
(ßØVWðZ*ÏÆf�ZÚ6,Z,̂ƒäÅ%æFN�lpZéÅŠÆa¾uJ-ñizV

gzZc*]÷XÃWð 4.0 Zzg&ëEL
Y

eðWðKÅÅ¼Q½Cƒð IOT ÔRPA ÷X
6,¿HìT»ZÝÑ£gÔ¸W, Proof-of-Concept Z*ÏäZ(gHìc*

»g™ŠÏZzg™g@ÆŠ!*]~4~Ñ**ìX

¬@5+k,Zð

SâzcZ-ZgeqÝ SAP Y~L6,ZªSâzñóÆi%}~‰.Þ 2019 Z&+kñR,vä
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Îc*ìT~].h+F,+LM+!*-g"5¿.ç JGHó WWTP i%æGLyìÔväZq-* (PTED)

ÅZ¦ZŠñ�Š{ÄÐŠztƒÏX* WWTP (ßYZEwƒðìX6 (MBR)

§»CZzg6ðÔŠzâVR,H™}ÇX WWTP 

‡&ÿEL‰h+ÂZ**ð»6,Z�

Z
')4jè GGIEóÃ CO2 YÃ$åLÃgnpƒñLö.$ik,z 2050 väI-N*‰.ÞZeZ],$45ÿ

EH½
ÂZ**ðÆ‡&ÿEL‰h+fg)Å§sÇ'×y™Šc*ìXWðZ*Ï~ñ�Š{îg6,·LÎ°Äó

Ã8-¸́VÃð�ÛZë™@*ìXt - ³zZ^ì�Ã8-Zzg**y 420 ÅZ¦ZŠ
¢4hÍ-ö
E

GH0*gåÔ|Ô»g7gf$ZzgÏ8e~¤8-~·ÅˆìXZ[WðZ*ÏZK‡&ÿEL

~zZ^»Zq-Î°0*zgÄ·™g„ì�ZÆ', 4 ‰h+ÂZ**ð~ÂW™g„ìZzg
YJ-åƒYñÇX 2020

´ZhZeZ],4$4-Ÿø
EG

™«ÆgDyÃ�ÛzrŠ¶»¿7gZ‚wYg~gLìXëäš~™«Ð0
SAFE WORK WÇ„Åj,Z‚ÛZð™äÆá$4-ô

EGoc*XSk‚wøgŹ\
åªŠíZzgyŠzâV(™«XôpF,Yñ»gÆ�ÛzrZzǵÆ  SAFE HOME 

jZáÐZL³xÆZ¬Š}ÆaZu¤/ñV»ZZŠHŠH!5Õä
ISÀò™õZŠZâ]6,

ZâKÆaF,m�ÒÔWvÐ™«ÔË¤c*Wv•Åßg]~qg]{à
ÆŠgxy£Z̈zgZyçZ]Å shops ™äÅ¼ÔçZ]ÅÙ|#Æñçq6,

gzuåxX

CÙ‚w�yÆ¹~ZeZ],4$4-ô
EGoc*Y@*ìXZk»ÑúZx~âj1]ÆjZá

ÐWÇ„aZ™**ZzgZ¹QyÅ�Yf)ŠZg~Åc*ŠŠ;ã™Z**åXZku¤/òÐF,šMZzg
WÇ„Æ´z{ZâKZzgQyÆZ3ÿXL{:ÆaçÑ}~DIZ:§¿̄Z(g

™äÆjZáÐ)VâjwaZƒ@*ìXSkâ{ÂZ**ðZzg0*ãÆfgZùÆDÐ
)gi+-kÔg~-iÔg~‚¡(u¤/ñVÃÂz»%œ/¯c*ŠHXZk 3R 0WÇ„Å�ÛZbZzg

Æ´z{WðZ*ÏÆZ0+gÔ!*CÙZzg7g‡̂ÌÆ´º~Šg|#Îñ‰X

‘ðgÁgk

WðZ*Ïä{qZzg–éqZ�ÛZŠ~¢ðGO]ÃzWeä6,”u¤/ñV~',zñ»gÑä»
ŸYg~g3ìXëäÚ4~Æ_."Æ‚BZLZâKÃ÷{}.â]�ÛZë

™äÅÃÒÅìÔZzgZ�ZxZzgšzguÅZŠZgÆ_.Zq-ZÜ¹Zzgôo»xÅ(ÃD
¯c*ìX

àéqZzgËq

WðZ*Ï~ë–éqZ�ÛZŠ~¢ðGO]Ã',ŒÛZggppZzgÓxZ0sÔSué SpZ&ÔÅŠZ›gZ:
&¢AÃZEw~ÑäÆ³x6,»gÈ÷XZk‚wøg}ŒVpZ&ZâKÅ®ZŠ

ZŸ†ƒZXëäZKpZ&ZâKÃŠg7)]Ã̈gÐ_5é NEZzgŒìÔ 28% ~½"5é GES

ZzgëZŠZg}ÆâjwÃ4¯äÆaWgZYÃẑšïGL¯Æ‚BJw™D÷XOçë
äZLŠí~ÓxZâKÆaœ1]~ZŸ†HìX

ëäZâÎÆ$øFL©ÐmgppzZá!*&¢AZ�ÛZŠÅ}.â]qÝ™ä»
ŸYg~g3ìXZâK½C™äÆjZáÐøgZ,å°x̧&Å0*Œ6,FF
ìTÆ�CÙ¿Ã�ZqÅãCŠ6,&Õä EL$š{ï

GOEY™Y@*ìX

]Þ,nrÛß8 Zâð

ªZâKÃ½7gZ0+Zi~'w™äÃ7g}ZŠZg} ]Þ³,n³rÛß8 WðZ*Ï~Zâð
~ãCŠ~ZÌŠ~YCìXëZÐCÙR6,ZâKÆŠgxy©]¢o™ä»fg=
B÷ZzgZyÆaKZzģmu¤/xV�ÛZë™D÷X

ZKZ�ÛZŠ~¢ðG]»¡oäÆZq-§jÆîg6,ëCÙâ{ZâKÅ‚D{Å½d$»
ZÈx™D÷Xt½â]WðZ*ÏÅgzZe$0ˆ÷X~ZâKZL{mŠyÃ
!*ë$ÿ L7ÿEN™oD÷XWðZ*Ï»xZzgfZCi0+ÏÆKÂZiy6,¢¢gBbìÔOç
ZLZâKZzgZyÆZ3ÿXL{:Æañz~Ø»ZÈx™CìTÐz{¯Z0+ziƒD

÷ZzgW:~£g~z‰Ü¦/ZgD÷X

Zk‚w¼ŠZ7gF£«Âƒñøw¾ZÅÔ¢ïENH!*wZzg™–XZy£V~:
ÐiZZ+ZâKäz1ÉZe0*gÒÅ-VäÌÑ•ÅZzg½â] 500 Üs
ÆZZŠ~Ìz1TÐšzguÆgzZ`Ã�Ûzr5X

øg}ZâKÅyzF,¹

WðZ*ÏZLZâKÅyzF,¹~uât»g~™äÆ³x6,»gÈì@*āz{ZŠZg}Ã
»x!Å§sáYäZzg‚B‚BZLP*ÆZ@ZsqÝ™äÆn»gƒVX
øg}ZâKäZdF,+£òZXkc.ç IEEÆ´z{;gzgeÔz;gHZzgày),÷Zjw‰
¬@îg6,czsZXkc.ç IEE~ÌZ6,z¤/ZñV~Ñ•ÅXëäZLZâKÆ
aZ0+gzÈZŠZg{ZzgÎZŅ̃ZòBV6,ŒF,šM6,¸g~uât»g~ÅìX

Æfg)ZLZâKÃÎ Úö³³ßj³³Ï³³×n³ç7 ëäê7gÔåðCZzgY0*y~Z0+gzÈv
ZŅ̃ZòŠ/�ÛZë™ä»ŸYg~g3ƒZìXZk§bQyÃ].h+{ZzgWÇ„qÝ™ä»
ñµMìTÐZyÆP*Ã6iZz-VÐzÝQìX

apprentices WðZ*ÏäZK̈ãuâñÅF,¹ÆZŠZxÆ�(,~®ZŠ~R,´
½C™ä»ŸYg~g3ƒZì˜VZyÃ{2ñYD÷TÐZ¹4wÅ
y~çz-$qÝƒÏXt6,z¤/Zxâ�ZâVÆaZq-ñµìāz{I-N*Æ¤&
”{R,²iÐ6{J™WðZ*Ï»zFX

W6,:
Z&+kñR,vI-N*zg®Æ£gÔaZzZge$Zzg™õZßw6,7gZQF,äÅÚÃÒ~
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LĹÃåaZzZgÔûZzgoxV6,F,ßŠ~YñÏXóó

´gkge

#¸Zzga^c*Wv•ÆÌÃð (LWD) zgue}ó Loss Zk‚wvÆL
qŠU*]7ƒñÔZzgtZkgkge»ŠZµ‚wìXt»x!4~Ǣg~ZŠZâ]Zzg
¼ŠŠvD+ZÛ!5Õä

ISçZ]ÅÚYõÔgziÇgÅ™«ÆY,̂}ÔZzgF,šMc*CZ�ÛZŠøw
ZdF,+ZOðÅ§sÐ»xÐÝçZ]ÅÙ|#Ô™«ZzgWœŠÏÅôZãÐ
0WÇ„BVÆfg)eƒðX

ZhÃ8-vÅ@Zc*]Æ ]Þ³r³ßnò†Þ- ´z{Zi,ÔWðZ*ÏäI-N*eZðJ@
Ä**Ç™Šc*ìXI-N* (PMR) _.ZL7g}ö.$~́ö.$[grZ],4

ÆÚ4~Æ�Åcz~™DƒñvZŒ‚w¬@™õ£gªWY&4k5ÿ FGIE´
**Ç™ä»ZgZŠ{gBbìX (OSHMS) ƒ[Ä

´R,“

v!*‡°ÏÐZLZâKÆaÀòzSàâÎÆ¼ŠF,m�6,z¤/ZxÂ™C
Z£.$ez�Å\.3ðGøÐãCŠ~™«Zzḡg~?ZæZŠ‰  6 ìXWvu**ÔZ6\

Àò6,z¤/ZñV»ÑìāCÙZâðuòßg�wÐÖZzgqŠU*]ÐvÅD+ZÛ
ÐWÇ{ƒÔ²Sà6,z¤/ZñV!5Õä

ISyZC»xZzg—~6,»xÆŠzgZy™«ÔáÅ
™«ÔŠÃ¦egZÇ8-Zzg6,Zª́ÐHg{Z�ÛZŠnƒD÷X

WðZ*ÏzhgiÔe’iZzg»ÚIiÆaÌ́F,šM»ZÈx™Cì@*āZk!*]ÃD
1794 Y~®ÿ N

2018 ¯c*YnāÓx¥V6,™«ÃZÍAF,ßŠ~YñXâà‚w
ÐiZZ+Z�ÛZŠ~]wç MsƒñX 10,000 Zg»yÃF,šM�ÛZëÅˆZzǵR,“Æa

Skâà‚wð»»x™äzZáZâKZzgaZgzVÆaZq-5F,šMLßzzÉ4-÷
HGEZ¼p

R,“ó»W¸iHŠHZzgZÐÑiòŒÛZgŠ}Šc*ŠHX́Ð0F,šM~Zq-Zzg7gÄ
WvÐ™«Æ\.3ðG{LÃezWóÆaqŠU*]Æ6\.3ðG{i»ZŸ†ìX´z{Zi,Ô
Çi0+Ï~ƒäzZáqŠU*]Æzi+-iZzgŠv1ZŠZgzV~âèÆqŠU*]Ìš
ÆZg»yÃŠ3ñYgì÷@*āôpâjwÅZÌÃ̧W,Z0+Zi~!*zg™Zc*YnX

ŠzgZÈ»xÅœ1]~4~Æfg)ZâK»ìw

WðZ*ÏZLÓxZâK»½7gìwgBbìZzgZkÆaâjw~4~ÆÂx6,
· (AHUs) “uât»g~ÅˆìXSk‚w7g}6,zëjg~Z*í#-Û

K‰÷@*āŠzgZÈ»x»âjwWgZxŠ{ƒXZkÆ´z{CÙ‚wZâKÆa¡ÅôZã
Æ±™ZñYD÷X

Z’Zð?ZæZŠ»%œ/
Sk‚wWðZ*ÏäZLzg™iZzg‚V$6,ñ�ŠŠv»Úlzg™iÆaZ’Zð?ZæZŠ»

%œ/”gs™Zc*T»ÑgKâÎÅFg~ZzgaIV»¯g~´`�ÛZë™**Zzguò
ßg�w~OW,{¿Ãhwv™**ìXZkÑÆaZq-e{#{–™Šc*ŠHì
˜Vaä]‚ÂVŠycZzpoñ�ŠgLìX

Z’Zð?ZæZŠÆ%œ/Ð:ÜsZâKÉWðZ*ÏÅuzŠ~‚V$6,»x™äzZá
aZgÌnƒVÐXZkZŠZxÐªCÙƒ@*ìāWðZ*ÏÃZLZâKÅ¡ÅX
„ìX

ZeZ],$45ÿ
EHZ]4g.3ï GEHÄ

ªâj1CY,̂}»Âxâj1CZOxÆaI-N*» (EAS) ZeZ],$45ÿ
EHZ]4g.3ï GEHÄ

Z
')4jè GGIEóóÆ‚B‚BŠvZ@Zs CO2 Y½LLö.$ik,z 2050 ZŠZxìXI-N*äZL

Æ”wÆa0*õ‚!7À.ïGLizäÅìZzg»g™ŠÏÅZëF,+´â]HgÅ÷Xv
ä¦/¸',ÎV~i',Š„»x!qÝÅìZzgz{ZLZ@Zs—F,™g„ìXâj1C
4~Æic*Š{¸W,}òqÝ™äZzg1ZŠZgzVÃZkjZáÐ%æFN�lgppÆaSk
‚wWe^Æ£g'×h+½Ð½7g¯Š�‰÷Xv$Óë N�R6,�ÛZë»gzVZzge’iÃ
�ÛZëÅYäzZàZKâj1Cu¤/ñV~ÂW™g„ìZzgZL»gz!*g~0*gìiÆaÌ

u56,Âz%Ãi™g„ìX 14001 WðZöZz

(AEEA) ZebZeZ],4Z&½k5Ó4ø GGEZ-Zge

YÐâZiZŠH 2019 (AEEA) z,ZebZeZ],4Z&½k5Ó4ø GGEZ-Zge 16 Z&+kñR,vÃ
Y~Šc*ŠHX 2019 �ÑðÃ™Zc~Â{Zeb»Ð÷WyZeZ],4 9 ìXtZ-Zge

äHå�Zq-)o«YCZŠZg{ìZzg (NFEH) Zk½d$»ZZŠD¯¦xÃgZeZ],4
0*ÎãúZxZÜk~âj1]ÔtBïGL¬)Zzg½ÆˆÐ0WÇ„ÆaÃ÷áVìX

WðZ*ÏÃ0*Îy~âj1CDÅrýLZÍwÅÃl™äzZáŠk4+ZŠZgzV~
ÑgHY@*ìÔZzgtZ-ZgeZkK~vÆzjyÔ™ŠZgZzg»g7gf$�Yf)ŠZg~ÆzW
eä6,”6,z¤/ZñVÃúc*V™@*ìX

wÅu¤/xVZzguât»gc*V

ÅÂW (WWTP) zÆzZR,R,Hö.$

Zq-f)ŠZg»g7gf$à~ƒäÅwÐWðZ*ÏÓx´‡âãZzgâj1C¸Z°z
çZ*Åz™g„ìXWðZ*Ï¼Š6,Z85»4ø EGH~“uât»g~™}ÏXZk³xÅZq-

ìTÆfg)µn}0*ãÃ‡&ÿELZEw (WWTP) VwLzÆzZR,R,Hö.$ó
R,HZhZ¼ze7i×Ñíó - ¯c*YñÇX‰‰aZzZg~Z¦ZŠ~ZŸ†ƒÇZzg5L6,~
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uzkZi+zZ,̂g´454o-ö GFGH¤8-

WðZ*ÏZk!*]6,¢¢gBbìāZkÆZâKZkÆxF,+ZU*NV~ÐZq-
÷XZLZâKÅ&6VÃ6,zZymJäÆaWðZ*ÏCÙ‚wuzkZi+zZ,̂gÅ

øg}»gz!*gÅ (SA) &¢A~ZŸ±Æ£«»ZZŠ™@*ìXuzkZi+zZ,̂gi
qg]Åy~ZAVÅwgnp÷YètrýLZÍw~ƒD÷X»™g@Ð
',ZÓgZ„gZ‚ƒ@*ìXt@

_54i©5½jè
GHE

GIEÅ?Ï™D÷YèZyÆfg)„™g@',Z&+
Ð%1oƒD÷X

ÆaÔ{mîg6,I-N*~Ô!*ZOŠZ0+Zi~W»®Ô�Ûz|#Å4+&¢AZzg SA

¡¬]Å¥â]»qïƒ**¢zg~ìXZy&6VÆ�Ûzr~çz-$ÆaWðZ*
Ï‚Ñ:F,šM�ÛZë™@*ìXZkK~Zk‚w@Y1zZÑÃæúHŠHāz{Zi+zZ,̂giÃ
£/&6VZzg¥â]Ð:™,X

e’’Zâð_54i©5¿.ç GHE
GH~uz}

WðZ*ÏÃZk!*]6,¢¢ìātZâK„t™g@»:L‘W÷XZk
Ã�Æ�WðZ*Ï‚w~Šz%ûZKe’m6,Zâðuz}Â™Cì@*ā

ZâKÃZÌŠ¶zZÑ§¯„6,zZymñXZkuz}Ãe’m~4~ÑäZzg
ZâKÆZEyÅRÃ4¯äÆaZEwHY@*ìXqw„~øg~¼e’m
äuz}Æfg)qÝƒäzZàWgZYÅãCŠ6,pÆaŠzPÆ3äZzgŒÛnÅ
œª»W¸iHX

ZLZâKÃ'×h+t¯äÆaWðZ*Ïäe’mÆaZâð
_54i©5½jè

GHE
GIEw»

W¸iÌHìX¼Še’m~ZâKÆ”VÆajZj#Ì�ÛZëÅYCìX

@eÑ"3ï JGH›7Z’

Z&+kñR,vZL™g@Ã½7gZEyjŠ/�ÛZë™äÆaÃ÷áVgSìXZke
~WðZ*ÏäZLe’iÆ‚BZ·Zu~™g@Ð%1oƒäÆ¼fgZùaZ
KXZyu¤/ñVÆfg)™g@I-N*Çh-VÅ%#ÖzbàÆaI-N*e’’ÐgZ‚
™ä~ZEyCk™D÷Ô!5Õä

IS@Ñƒô~3äÅW»ZOxX´z{Zi,Ô™g@
g3ŠHìTÆfg) Happy Tree ÆŠwÅWzZiGgÆaCÙe’’6,Zq-

™g@ZKWgZYŠ}Mh÷X

2018-19 @
_54i©5½jè

GHE
GIEZ&+o

»ZZŠ™Cì@*āt¥x™nāI-N*uzw (CSI) WðZ*ÏCÙ‚w@
_54i©5½jè

GHE
GIEZ&+o

ÆjZáÐù¦îg6,™g@¾uJ-t÷XZk»Ñ™g@Ã'ZzgZyÃ4+
uzkZzgZEyÅ�ÛZbÃÚ4¯**)»,̂y(ÔâgL~gZò§hVÐëW}ƒ
™™g@Ãœª�ÛZë™**Zzg™g@ÅWgZYY'ìX

WðZ*ÏÇp~ZL™g@Ã4+Š/�ÛZë™ä6,¢gBbìXøg}™g@
…ZL™g@ÅÇWzZi CSI øg~ZÍAF,ß÷XZkÃ�ÃWÐ(,JäÆa

]4/õ NEE~ZzgQyÐ%1oƒä~æŠ™@*ìX

I-N*g;ezC»g3,)KWge~(

qD',ÎV~øg~£òâgLZg»YÅZëoiwÐ¦/g~ìZzgZ[™g@Çh-VÃZK
IÆˆ[ÐeJ%Zzg4¯äÆjZáÐ%æFN�l÷XZL™g@Ã%æFNi{Y]Å

Š»y½™äÆ³xÆ�Z&+kñR,vä0*Îy~«%ûI-N* one-stop 

g;ezC‡ìHìXZk6,Z�»ÑZ-KWge~6,i{Y]Å�Ûz|#Æfg)
ZŸ°Wæã»Zq-fg=aZ™**åX

Y~®xI-N*çwñR,i»[c*âƒ»Ô¤/z\§ÔKZ*Ï 2018 KWge~»Z¶bZÆ',
6,zëNzw;»[ÐÍesÔÏZ~ZzÔKÏZ*;Zzg»[ZZûŠZâãÔ¾w§ÔWðZ*
ÏäHXWiâ›Š"Å»x!ÆŴðZ*Ïä6,Z�Å'×h+ÂW»êHZzgZ6,s

Y~I-N*ßW!*ŠñR,i~ŠzuZKWge~»g3,ZüîwHX%æFNi{Y]Åâ8-~Ú 2019

ZŸ±Æ&4øFGILÃ'×h+&e’mÃÂWÆaÉHŠHìÔZzgZk»xÅŠ�Ñð
YJ-áµìX 2019 

¤/+e’’Z]454ø
HGHM

Z&+kñR,vâjw6,µZW,Z]%A$™äÆaÃ÷áVgSìXâj1CD»øgZ³x
�0*ÎVÆZÖpJ-özŠ7ìÉøg}¿~ÌZkÅ?ÏƒCìXâj1C
DZzg4~Åu¤/ñVÆZZŠ~ërýLZÍwÆ�Û&÷XI-N*0*Îyä¤/+e’
6,z¤/ZxúŠc*ì�0*Îy~I-N*e’mÆaZq-7À.ïGLiìTÆfg)z{F
ÂZ**ðÆ}èÅÞZzgZsZ~e~ÆZEw~ZŸ±Æfg)ZKÂZ**ðÅâ8-Zzg
»g0eZðW‚àÆZyZ`~zZã¶™Mh÷X

0*Îy~ñ�Še’mä¤/+e’6,z¤/Zx**ÇHìZzgWðZ*ÏZk!*]ÃD¯Cìā
',ŒÛZggOX KPIs ZkÅe’m¬@‚ÐëW}g÷ZzgZL

™«Ô¡Zzgâj1]

WðZ*Ï™«Ô¡Zzgâj1]Ð0Óx̧Z°zçZ*ÅñÐz™ÆZL
ZâKÃôpF,ZzgKF,âjw�ÛZë™äÆ³x6,Ã÷áVìXWðZ*ÏÓxZâKÔ
aZgzVÔ�ÛZëàÇyZzgÀòîg6,Z,ÓxZ�ÛZŠ»åìwgBbì�vÅ»gz!*g~
u¤/ñVÐOW,ƒMh÷XWðZ*Ï~ZâKqŠU*]ZzgaIVÅgzuåxÆn
Ãéuîg6,»x™D÷Zzg™«ÃÑhÓxçZ]ÅÙ|#™äÔZy»{Ø™äZzg

Z&+kñR,vǺ0*Œ»zZã�x Zy»oƒZOx™äÅÚÃl™D÷X
ìā:
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ŠkÑÄ™g@Ãuzk

Çh-VÅÅÆ$+sƒñiZz-VZzgÇh-VÅ®ZŠ~ZŸ±Å$+zªˆZi
�Ûz|#»gz!*g~½7gF,¹Æ&4øFGILÃ™g@ÃZÍAF,ßŠbZzgZyÆZEyÃ!*Ñ
¯**"u¢zg~ƒŠHìX™g@ÃZyÅœªÆ_.uzk�ÛZë™äÆzjyÆ�
øg}e’’,Mzg¾äLZ&½k545å GHGEHeZ-)WzgióZzgL�}W6,:ó»W¸iHìX

Z&½k545å GHGEHeZ-)Wzgi»È™g@ÅœªÆaZz‡‹»g~ZŸ†ìX!5Õä
ISe’’

WJ-²āö NƒC÷T 8 @*gZ] 9 WJ-²£Ðö NƒC‰pZ[ð 6 @*÷áx 9 ¬ð
~ÉpÆaÎW6,:ÃZEwHY@*ìX

ŠkÑÄ™g@Ãuzk�ÛZë™ä»@sá™WðZ*ÏäZ,ŠzgŠgZi´̧V~ñ!*b
zg¤:»W¸iHì�I-N*e’’,MzguÆŠZ],ï»gÐ!*CÙ÷Xtñ!*bzg¤:
™g@ÅŠr6,Çh-VÆaZëuzw�ÛZë™C÷X

zZg‹Å•Š~ÂW
I-N*~ëi',Š„@uzk�ÛZë™ä»³xgnp÷ZzgZL‡&ÿELŠg™g@Æa

4+Ẑi�Ûz|#¡¬]Zzg}.â]7™D÷XZÏ�Æ�WðZ*Ïäqw„
c*Zq-ÑÄ³¢a)�Ì¬WYñ(»Z´yHìX / zZg‹Zzg built-in ~&‚!

I-N*ZLW6,:ZzguzwåÚ4~)»,̂y(ÆaÃ÷áVgSì@*ā™g@I-N*
Ä»z0™ôpƒVXzZg‹~ÂW»6,z¤/ZxÌI-N*ÆZÏÃ�Æ�ÑzqHŠH
ìāI-N*Æ™g@f6îg6,tƒVXWðZ*Ï»zjyìāWIñ!*bÅ~4+

Z�ÛZŠZzg4+(ßYÆ‚B¡¬]Zzgœ1]ÆzWŠZ],ï»gÆfg)™g@Ã
4+Š/ZzgZEy�ÛZëHYñX

2018-19 ÏZö»,̂yZ-zC×

Zq-‚Ñ:u¤/òìT»Ñe’m~ (CSKE) @
_54i©5½jè

GHE
GIE»,̂yZ-zC×
»,̂y)Ú4~(ÆgzZ`»ªxzŠzZxZzgZK̈ãz‚bÅF,¹ìX

Ðic*Š{e’’p 450 »Z0+gZ`HŠHZzg themes Ðic*Š{ 130 Sk‚w®ÿ N

ÆZg»yÃI-N*z}ÔI-N*),÷6,?Zzg»,̂y×ezCÆÃ�Æ!*g}~F,šM
�ÛZëÅˆX

(QCC) ÃLÃZyNzwuÀó CSKE ÃzWF,Zzg4¯äÆa CSKE Zk‚w
Æ‚Bæ™Šc*ŠH@*āZÐ¬@eä6,áYc*YñX

ÃZ&+kñR,v~Â 2019 �Ñð 13 »¤/h+á CSKE 2018-19 a¸
4+-Väz1ZzgˆZiûÔ@gÉ4n.ç GIEEÔûZzg 16 ƒZT~7g}0*ÎyÐ

Æ‡V~ZK‚w½Å»,̂yu¤/ñVÐWÇ{HX T-Sure 

~z QCC ~ƒäzZá 2019 &4+-V»ZN[HŠHì�z‰Z~
BÏX

6,~bc–eu
!545454ø GEHEGE

WðZ*ÏÃÒ™CìāZL™g@ÆaâgLÅ4+gzZc*]á™Wñ@*āZyÃ
ic*Š{Ðic*Š{ZEyjuzk�ÛZë™nXZk�ÐëW}gTƒñWðZ*Ïä

Y~6,~bc–eu
!545454ø G

EHEGE)88Z*(»W¸iHX88Z*™g@ÃZ�ÛZ¹ 2016 ‚w
igÆ!*)̄†V~Q@*gmJƒÐôpg�»ZYZzgl§i�ÛZë™@*ìX88Z*
zZuŠx6,Œœªì;™g@'Zq-%ûZŠZ5™D÷ZzgQ%#ÖzbàÅj

uzwÐnƒD÷X value added }.â]Ô&Õä EL×AŠ+ZzgŠv

WðZ*ÏŠv¼ŠuzwZzgZ÷á�îÑzq™äZzgZ¹Yg~gpp»ZgZŠ{g‚rì@*ā
™g@ÃZEyjŠ/�ÛZë™ä»øgZŶg~gìX

ª
²-.54è GFGE

@�Û†e0*g¹CÙ‚wZq-ª²-.54è GFGE»ZZŠ™@*ìT~I-N*™g@ÆaHg{
e’m6,Çh~ÆZ*,$n.ç GIE»jç¤HY@*ìXCÙ!*gt6,z¤/Zx5—-VJ-(ì
Zzg6™g@Ð%1oƒä»fg=áCìX

Æ‚BZ·Zu Careem

µ542.ç GFHEE Careem Æ‚BZ·ZuH@*ā Careem Zk‚w@�Û†e0*g¹ä
äZL™g@Ã�Æîg Careem aZƒVX$+á~ CPUS Æfg)ZŸ°

6,Ã6»geŠ�X

Zk
²-.54è GFGEÆfg)ë¬Ðic*Š{™g@Ð%1oƒñÔÑq-ƒäzZá™g@Å
®ZŠÌ¬Ðic*Š{¶ZzgZkÆË~0*gFZzgzûÐƒäzZàWæã~ZŸ†ƒZX

(Skills Contest »"54iï
EHGH) ^¹Îæ LE

I-N*~ëe’m6,4+£gÅuzw�ÛZë™ä»³xgnp÷XI-N*ÄÅj,Z‚ÛZð
ª&¢AÆ£« ZzgZk~&¢AÃ�ÛzrŠ¶ÆaWðZ*ÏCÙ‚w^¹Îæ LE»"54iï

EHGH

»ZZŠ™CìXZk½d$ÃZq-‚we’’¾wuzkZzgZq-‚we’’!*e~Zh
Ì6,ÂHY@*ìX

Zk‚wWðZ*Ïä!*e~ZhÌ^¹Îæ LE»"54iï
EHGH»W¸iH�!*e~

"5½54h4è
HGEGIJEÔÌ

"5½54h4è
HGEGIJEZzg

"5½54h4è
HGEGIJEäz1XÝ§ 119 uzkZi+zZ,̂gi%zVÆaåXÐVi%zV~ù¦îg6,

zZßVÃI-N*ñR,»g7gcÔY0*yY™¬@R6,ZK&¢AÆZÖg»ñµ5X
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Zk6,z¤/Zx»Ñâ�ZâVÅZkjZáÐj,Z‚ÛZð™**ìāz{öÆyZy~ZL
pZ1VÃ7gZ™äÅÃÒ™,ÔSué SZ,Z�ÛZŠXÅoƒF,šMZzgœ1]J-g‚ð

~0*ÎyÆa 2020 özŠƒXW\Åv£ò‹zîh~Ä~ÅZz»SIY
zwÝ§ÆpZ[ÅŠ~çz-$™äÆa%æFN³xìX

E»gZ]4g.3ï GEH6,z¤/Zx - NCAP

ÅÓxZlxÅÇh-V~4+™õ_i�ÛZë™Æ CKD W\ÅvÃõìāz{ZK
',ÎV~WðZ*Ïä™«Ð0WÇ„~ZŸ†™ä 2 Å~́7gìX

Zzg™g@Ã™õœ1]ÆŠg„ZEwÅYïg~�ÛZë™äÆaÚÃlÅ
÷X

THUMS Æ‚B‚BeŹzgŠvPÃg'×6,ZĹÈ} NCAP WðZ*Ïä
CKD ÅÌZ÷á®)Å@*āWðZ*Ï Total Human Model for Safety ª

ÅÓxZlxÅÇh-V~�ÛZë™Š{™õS:]Æ!*g}~**ø+ÃWÇ„Š~YnX

â�ZâV~´ÆÃc*]Ã�ÛzrŠ¶ÆaWðZ*ÏäZC6,z¤/Zx
»W¸iHTÆ�-Eg;¥Ã́_iÆ!*g}~ #BeSafetyLeaders 

¥â]�ÛZëÅIZzgZ-Eg;-VÃúZx~́Ð0WÇ„Æ�Ûzr~p~
Æøéu“W»ñµ5X

™g@Æ‚B©]

¾ƒZVI-N*eg*»g£Ÿ!{ðOg~

Y~0*v,I-N*eg*»g£Ÿ!{ðOg~Æ‚BpZ1VÅÇh~äZCZ”ŠzhZc*å 2011

10,500  ZjßVÐ 250 ZzgZkÆẐk»(̂,ZŠNg;XZk»̂W¸i$Óë N½Æ
®0*gzVÐƒZåÔZzgA$ÐZKâÎÆZkzZu£«ä‚wŠg‚wzWeä6,F,¹

1550 Y~Â{¾ƒ,I-N*eg*»g£Ÿ!{ðOg~Æa$Óë N½Æ 2019 ÅìX
Y~ 2018 ®0*g}ñßwƒñ÷�@*qwZq-gkgeì) 48500 ZjßVÐ

®0*g}£«~Ñq-ƒñ¸(ÔZzg-VƒÐ 38000 ZjßVÐ 1150 

ic*Š{®0*gzVÆZ±gÐ0*Îy¬@R6,Š}�6,WŠHìX

”V~!ZÖgÅj,Z‚ÛZðÆfg)Üzw•»w³™äÆÑÐÂ
HYäzZÑtÎZŅ̃Zò£¨¬@R6,ƒäzZá!{ðOg~ÆƒÐ(,}£V~

‚wÐ 16 Ñgƒ@*ìXI-N*ñR,»g7gc‚Ñ:ãCŠ6,Zk£«»ZZŠ™CìT~
Á/ÆazáMh÷X

Zķò£«ÅLLgZb́45¾æ GH
Y

~óó~mzgaÌ(,|m|™zfe÷XZk‚wgZb́45¾æ GH
Y

~
®1100 Y~ñßwƒäzZá 2018 ®0*g}ñßwƒñ� 1600 ~®ÿ N

ic*Š{÷X 41% 0*gzVÆ£«~

½ŠZyÔ¼iÔâZŠgZ]¦™äzZßVZzgy~!{ðOgzV6,Œ0*õZg»yÆpŠUgæg~
}èä8Šõ

EOZzģòR6,Ý§zZá®0*g}ÉKX´z{Zi,Ôæg~äY0*y~ƒä
4+®0*gzV»ÌZN[HX 9 zZá¬@£«Æa0*ÎyÐ

t‚w¹{mìYèY0*y~ƒäzZá¬@£«~Šź45¾æ GH
Y

m,~0*ÎyÆ®
0*g}ÛA‰:

‚!øx̃ÅLL,y 10 ‚wǺ45¾æ GH
Y

~:g°c*g{yÐmgppzZà 10 Ð 8 /
»góóä»́»�ƒX

‚wǺ45¾æ GH
Y

~:ÑƒgÐmgppzZáZ',Z�ŒÛ7ÅLL»gWs 15 Ð 12 /
Zâm,"5Í-ö GEHóóä»́»�ƒX

ò 30 ®0*g}ñßwƒñX~Ð 950,000 ˜´Ð 86 ¬@£«~
ZzgZy~ÐŠz0*ÎyÐ¸Xt”VÔe’’ZzgWðZ*ÏÆai',Š„»x!ì
Zzgšµ0*ÎyÆaÌ÷á0+ZgZ³ZiìX0*ÎyÐŠzÝ§zZá”Vä¤/h6,Z,̂

Y~Z-ZgeÅ½d$~Ñ•ÆaY0*yYNÐ˜V 2019 qÝHìZzgz{Z~
ZyÃŠzu}̃´ÐÝ§zZá”VÐZYZzgŠz4™ä»c*ŠÇgñµAÇZzgY0*ã
pÄ»Š/ÌqÝƒÇX

Ý§zZá”V»¡oäÆa 39 WðZ*Ïä$Óë N½Åe’mÐWäzZá
Ñƒg~Zq-Z-Zge½d$»ZZŠHXÓxÝ§zZßVÃu%êZzgzwŠ�‰X

0*gFZzguzk - @�Û†
I-N*~ëL@ÃgÑ̀óª™g@ÃZCx@¯äÆÃ�6,¢gnp÷X@
�Û†e0*g¹™g@Ã4Š/�ÛZë™äÅÚÃÒ™ÆI-N*ÆZk�ÃiY)
z@*ìXIZieCg~£gÅYõÔZ-0*gFÅ�ÛZbZzgˆZi�Ûz|#£g~uzwÆ

fg)ë™g@ÃÇh~Åå»gWæ$åO]ÆŠzgZyZq-½7gZzg‡&ÿELZOŠŠ"Å¢
Š;ã™ZD÷X

(CSEA) @uzkZ&½k5Ó4ø GGEZ-Zge

~LWƒ^Zœ8-@uzkZ
&½k5Ó4ø GGEZ-ZgeóÛA1ìX CSEA 2018 WðZ*Ïä
',ÎVÐzág;ìZzgt 11 Z&+kñR,v»@�Û†e0*g¹Zk6,z¤/Zx~¦/¸

Í®N*?»tZ³ZiZÐ«%ûqÝƒZìXZk‚Ñ:6,z¤/ZxÅö!*ãI-N*ñR,
»g7gcÔY0*y™@*ìZzgŠ*½øwåðCÔ@*ÇZyZzgZ&+zk~zZµI-N*Æ1

ZŠZg}Zk~zfe÷XI-N*~ëƒ@uzk~Ú4~Æfg)ZL8Šõ
EO~

Ih+{WI',Z&+“WÆœāÑÆ”wÅÃÒ™D÷X

u¤/ñVÃ'×h+¸W,¯Šc*ìZzg CR Æfg)WðZ*ÏäZKẐi�Ûz|#Zzg CSEA

Æa™g@Ð%1oƒäÆ¼ŠfgZùaZK÷@*āZyÃ4+ ]Þ³,nrÛß8 @
Š/ZzgZEyqÝƒX
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**‡&ÿELh�lZzgzßáÅZq-÷Z_»¡oc*X;ðGg-zW`ÌCÙÑÆañizV
Çh~ÆpZ×à~™g@ÅZÍAIìX

Y~ëä;ðG»©à4~zZÑâew”gs™Zc*Xg-zÆÔ 2019 âà‚w
Z” 1GD YÆÑzq~ 2018 {~Zk,,cÆZŸ±Ã¹IHŠHX

‰ZŸ¯VÅ=q',ŒÛZgg„Zzg™g@Ð½7g5+k,ZðqÝƒðX

Conquer ;ðGg-zÅ5S:]Æ!*g}~™g@ÃWÇ„�ÛZë™äÆa
Æ**xÐZq-âgÌ6,z¤/ZxÑzqH the Wild - Destination Pakistan

ŠNÇV6,Œe´§m,Æîg6,7HŠHXZk§m,äÓxÎ̄zc* 7 ŠH�
PÃg'×6,½7g»x!qÝÅX

_5À.3ï G
YEH CKD SUV - I-N*¯gw3,

âgLÆ!gëgZg»Y»:Lµì�™g@ CKD SUV 0*Îy~ 4 ¯gw3,]À)é LY

Ã"Vw¢ðGO]Zzgz‡gÐWgZ3™CìXt"Ñgœ1]Ð:ì!5Õä
IS].h+Ô¤!gZzg

Z•ð¸W,R,1eĝ.em,wZ”ZzgegZÇ8-~çz-$™äzZá].h+_iX

YÆÑzq~¯gw3,âe²~Sßzz4ÃÌ”gs™Zc*ŠHT~ZkÇh~Æ 2019

ÐÌ:ìX Dual Front Powered Seats ].h+)1]~ZŸ†HŠHXt

ëZäÆazWeä6,âgÌu¤/xV CKD SUV ¯gw3,ÃâgL~4+
àzV~Wiâ›egZÇi»ZOxHŠH@*āáµ™g@ÃQk 7 ÂÅIX0*ÎyÆ

f6jyZzg¢ðGO]»iŠ/ƒn�̄gw3,ÃÂg2V6,`DƒñqÝƒ@*ìXzW
Æ**xÐZq- Steering with the Stars F,eä6,™g@J-g‚ðÆa

eî́»W¸iHŠHT~Sàîg6,»g™Š{Wiâ›gZ56,5¯gw3,Æ(;3ð FXGOVÆ
ÇV6,Œ 6 �g†]ÃgÄ™6_Š3ä»!*Ç*§iZ(gHŠHX 6 ú

Zk§m,Ã**ø+ä¹IHZzgÓxÎ̄zc*PÃg'×6,ZÐ¹5+k,ZðqÝ
ƒðX

_5À.3ï G
YEH CBU - I-N*ŠgWæ”{Çhc*V

7g¯̂CÃLHì CBU WðZ*ÏäÜzw•~Zq-*šzgg¶™DƒñZL
@*ā™g@ÅZâÎÅZg»Y5+k,¢zgc*]Ã7gZ™nXZke~WðZ*Ïä

_5À.3ï G
YEH~I-N* SUV Y~²)45½ï FGH 2018 ŠzgZÈ$åO]Šz5Çhc*V”gs™ZNXm

Æ§sÑä»Zëfg=µXI-N* SUV LglóÃ”gs™Zc*ŠH�™g@ÃeZyÐ
glẑšïGLZÃŠe$ZzgYfƒÃem,ZíÅ$+zªZq-¢›é EOwZzgÃéu§¯i0+ÏÆañizV
F,+Çh~ìXI-N*gl»*âewZ6bÔpzgCZzgÜzw•~œªÅVw0ŠHì

Å¤/Zƒ&+Ä÷ 220mm Tä™g@Ã4Z0+Zi~#pHX*em,ZíSàîg6,
Zõ»We- 7 Ô(MID) Ð:ì@*āÇh~Ã²ā)é

Y
Nä~'×h+W‚ãƒXI-N*gl~e_5Ñõ F

e_5Ñõ FZzgg*zdegZÇ‰_÷áï÷Xt÷á{ycZzg‡&Ò3ï EGGL¿»VàZâZ`ìX

Y~WðZ*Ïä#̄_5À.3ï G
YEH~;ðZöe-”gs™Zð�Ç&zgZ: 2019 �y

Z�ÛZŠÆa4+Üzw•Zzg»gz!*gÆa6ñZµ�ÛZë™CìX;ðZöe-)
â²w£g»õt¶Kyì�ZÒ™̂äzZßVÆa0*GZg~ZzgœªÅŸðìX

SURE I-N*

™g@ÃZEw”{Çh-VÅyh+z�Ûz|#Zzgf6jy»!*Ç*Š/�ÛZë™äÆa
”gs™ZðˆT»zZuÑZEw”{Çh-VÅ£ò SURE Y~I-N* 2014 

âgL~Zz!p~Ñ**åXA$ÐZ[J-t',Z&+zWƒ™$Óë NÆÓxß1V~ñ�Š
e’m»,Mzgu0ŠHìX 38 

äZÆ',Zzg SURE g5Z¦ZŠ~ZŸ†™äZzgŠZ],ï¿ÃzWF,™äÆaI-N*
YÆŠgxy™ZcÔÑƒgZzgZsxW!*Š~ZLrýLZÍwÆ6,z¤/ZxLLZeb 2018 Šc

ueàZEw”{»g!*iZgóó»W¸iHXZy!*iZgzVäDÙZgzV™g@ÃZK§sâbH�
‡&ÿELZOŠ)ueà(ZEw”{Çh-VÅˆl~¸c*ZKñ�Š{Çh~ÃZ\¤/i+™ä

aVÐnƒ**eT¸X ]mÓŠ3nßs Æai',Š„

ä@�Û†e0*g¹Æ‚B SURE ‚w»Z!xZ6bÆ‚B™DƒñI-N*
Z·Zu~Lueàó̈»W¸iHTÆ�ueàZEw”{Çh-VÅZq-‚wJ-

j%!ï OGzbàÅYñÏXt7gÄWðZ*ÏÅ§sÐÅˆÔZzgt«%ûìā
0*Îy~ZEw”{Çh-VÆˆ~ËWIñâväZ+uzw7Å÷XI-N*

SÏ�lZzgzßáÆ‚BWÐ(,fgìÏZzgZL™g@Ã5Zzg»Šuzw7 SURE 

™}Ï@*āZŒ‚wZq-åLLËyÌ&+z|×óó0YñX

Start Your Impossible

I-N*äZq-ñ"5Ó4-ö EGGHvÅwÐZLZg»Y»Ŷg~gnpƒñZz»SZzgcZ»
Start YÆ¡~ZCƒÐª¬@R»âgÌZŠZxHX 2020 SÔIY

I-N*»¬@»g7gf$ZŠZxìT»ÑZâKÔ0*gìiZzg@i Your Impossible 

ÃOW,™**ìX!~Ð(,fƒð(ßŠZzgâj1CF,¹ÆSkšzg~I-N*Zq-zWÔ
DIZ:Zzgñ!*bçÑ}Åú~çzyàCeLì˜VƒÃw•™äZzgZL

**eÃ½™äÅWiZŠ~ƒX

Z~ 29 ZŠZx»W¸i Start Your Impossible W\Åvä0*Îy~
YÃZq-ZŠZg{YCZ¶k½d$~HX 2018

2020 ZŠZxÆZ¶bÆaWðZ*ÏIY Start Your Impossible 0*Îy~
ZzàZzgcZàSÆ̂»W¸i™äÆa%æFN�lìT~0*Îã‹zLÄ~„k

OãóÌ‚BƒVÐ�™ZLÆrýLZÍwÆîh~÷XÄ„kOãZ&+kñR,v
Æ‚B do Pakistan to promote Karate - ZzgDZXkŴs™ZL

ZLW!*ð´º1g~~”V~™ZLÃ�ÛzrŠ¶Æa»x™,ÐX
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äÌ'×h+uât»g~ÅZzgZKZ¦ZŠ~ZŸ†HXZ[7g~ OEMs ÅIXñ�Š{
ÅÅù¦Z¦ZŠâgLÅù¦â8-Ðic*Š{ìXZOgÅ$åO]Áƒ̂ìZzgÇhc*V

W‚ãÐŠø7[÷²5¡¬]Å$+zª™g@ÆaZN[ÆzWF,ñZµaZ
ƒ‰÷X

ŠgWæZ] CBU ëÓ#ÖÐŠgpZ„™D÷āÅÃçz-$�ÛZë™**Yg~gOZzg
Åj,Z‚ÛZð:™,ÔpZ{ZEw”{c*Z¼uÇh-VÆaX

ù¦$ÓÀö NaZzZgÅF,¹ÅÑb~¼ŠúZïÆ!*)̄¶WðìXâgÌÅ¬@gzZc*]
”gs™ZñYäÅ¢zg]ì@*āWIø~âgÌÅu¤/ñV~ZŸ†HYnXë

Çh-VZzg#̄z41¹Îæ XGEÆe7~ç×Ä6, µnŠ³ß³r† Ó#ÖÐŠgpZ„™D÷ā
ŠzCÙ}ü;ÆÂxÃŠz!*g{¿~Ñc*YñYèZkÄÐÇh-VÆZ\.5Îæ EiâgÌ

g5»§iZ(g™gì÷;´z{Zi,Ó#Ö - Åu¤/ñV~ZŸ±Æaƒw−
6,
')4-ê GGJÅ¤ZzgeCg~ÆîsŠzgZ#/õ EGÅgzuåx~Ìçz-$™}X

…QyìāÓ#ÖWI0*gFÅŠgWæZ]Æ%µ6,ZÝg¶ÐÁÅg¦¯äZzgß
¬]ªCÙ™äÅ$+ÄZEVÆ{8ÅÃlYg~gÇÏXëtÌÂµ™D÷ā
Ó#ÖL¦™ä»1ú6,ZÇf$øÐU™L¦™äÆUgZŠZgzV6,v™}Ï
YèZk~¼ŠëŠHV÷Zzg»gz!*g`äÅÑ†ÃeÜZzg(,J**Zq-ÂZ%ìX

âgÌ

Å»Y,̂{

YÆ 2018-19 Y~WIñââgLbiï NGgz~»DgƒðX 2018-19 âà‚w
zZàì»giZzgÑV$#̄Çh-VÅ®ÿ N�Ûz|#  ŠzgZy$Óë N~£òR6,»gƒä

¶ìTÐ  8% °ŠÆ£«~  258,632 °Š¶Ô�¦/‚̧wÅR 240,646

Åz�{ù¦çÙbiï NG i³ß³ù̂Öo âgL~?0+ÏÅ¶K0+„ƒCìXWIñâÅ~
gz~Ô²z`6,âƒðZÚÆÑ²ÔZzgeZ°Æ£«~¤/Dƒñ0*Îãgz9Æ$øFL

©~W�yÐ!*'™CZ�ÛZ¹igÆË~Çh-VÅ(,fƒð©÷XZEw”{
Çh-VÅŠgWæ6,qD0*È~£òÅÆaZq-µU¶XŠzgZÈ‚w½"5é GES

°Š¶X 70,000  Çhc*VŠgWæƒNÔ²¦/‚̧wÅR 36,000  

v»Y,̂{

Z&+kñR,vä0*ÎyÅWIñâÅÆZq-Zë�Û&Æîg6,ŠzgZÈ$åO]çÙ
biï NGgz~Æ!*z�Šj,jF,¹ÅìX¦/¸»g™ŠÏ6,'áYDƒñWðZ*Ï

Y6,Z!x 2019 -Û»gK�Z[J-ÅƒÐ(,~®ZŠìÔZzg�y 65,346 ä
-Û6,',ŒÛZggpp~»x[ 66,211 5+k,ƒäzZáâà‚w~ZK�Ûz|#ÅRÃÌ

ƒðXZkÐ™g@ÆZŠZg}6,ZOŠÅ?ÏƒCìX

aZzZg~Z@Zs7g}™äÆaZk‚wÌù¦îg6,”h+Š!*ƒ»ŸYg~g;X™zÑ
XLI ~©àp~”gs™ZðˆZzgI-N*´45½ï EGHZ

"5Ó»4jè GFGIE»W¸iHŠHXZÏÑíZ\~
zk,z»ZŸ†HŠHT»îs²áÐZOgåXøg~ãCŠ~ZŠZgÅZ‚kL»,̂yó AT 

c*Ú4~»_./ìXëäg»z›Šzg™ÆaZzZg~Z¦ZŠ(,JäÆa¢zg~
ZŠZâ]K÷X¦/¸âà‚w~Zq-5y”{™zhzVgz9âqÅÌ÷á\‡ìÅˆ
¶TÆË~ñ�Š{$åO]~aZzZg~ZŸ†ƒZXÇh-VÅeCg~Å$åO]Á™ä

Zzg™g@ÆZEy~ZŸ±ÆaëäÓxF,ÃlXX

~©à4~ÅI 4x2 ö.$ÆW6,:~4~ÆË~¯gw3,Ôg-zZzg;ðG
XÃâgL~Zh5+k,ZðqÝƒðX

vä(,~uât»g-V»ŸYg~g3ƒZìZzgZKÃ8-¢4hÍ-ö
E

GHÃåZ¦ZŠÆ
‚B`g„ìXâgLÅâ8-Ã7gZ™äÆaZŸ°Zz‡‹»gÆ‚B‚B',ziß

-Û¶�¦/‚̧w̃z$åO]~ 65,346 ÌÃ8-Yg~g„XvÅ®ÿ NaZzZg
ZŸ†ìX 4% -ÛÆ£« 62,886 ƒäzZàaZzZg

-Ûƒ 66,211 ‚(,|™ 3.4 Çh-VÅù¦�Ûz|#Zk‚w CBU Zzg CKD

-Û�Ûz|#ƒñ¸X®ZŠzgZÈ 64,000 I²¦/¸‚wSÏ$åO]ÆŠzgZy
åX 22% Çh-V» LVC Zzg PC $åO]âgL¥£òR6,»g™Š{

WIezC0*ŒÆ_.WðZ*ÏäZCz°{7gZ™DƒñZKÓxÇh-V~Z
Zzg#̄Çh-V µnŠ³³ß³r³† Z\¤/i+KZzg].h+F,+™õS:]”gs™ZN!5Õä

ISÓx
~ŠzZöWgZöZ*ÚÅZœgeZ,̂cX

»g_5À.3ï G
YEH µnŠßr† CKD - I-N*™zÑ

øgZrýLZÍw»âewI-N*™zÑÐ)©àW‚öÔYfƒÃZ6bZzg4+»g™ŠÏÅ
´#Ö0ŠHìX™g@Ã4+Š/�ÛZë™äÅgzZe$‡ìgnpƒñWðZ*Ïä
ŠzgZÈ$åO]I-N*™zÑ~©à4~”gs™ZäÆ‚B‚BZKâÎÅ«Z"5Ó»4jè GFGIE

LI-N*´45½ï EGHó»W¸iHXZ[5I-N*™zÑWIezgÑuÔSMš,̂g›ZÑgxZzgI-N*´45½ï EGHÜ
S:]Ð:ìTÅ$+zª™g@ÃW‚ö»*Š/qÝƒÇX

Ð:Z"5Ó»4jè GFGIEƒäÅzz OEM tZz!Zx$0*Îy~«%û7ÅYg„ìX
ÐI-N*´45½ï EGH™g@Ãœª�ÛZë™Cìāz{ZLZ�g¯̂yÆfg)g"5ÿ GJN*ì~
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Æfg)WðZ*ÏäZKWIzÇh-VÆÃ̂'×h+LHìXZkÇh~Ã XLI AT

âgL~½7g5+k,ZðqÝƒðZzgWðZ*ÏZCû@sqÝ™ä~»x[ƒðX

&ëFLZ\_5À.3ï G
YEH CKD - I-N*;ðG

Y~ZK�Î,‚D{Æñµ6, 2019 ¢ð
GO]Zzgî�ðÅ´#ÖI-N*;ðGäâà‚w

258,6827%

کاجائزہ کمپنی 
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Å»Y,̂{Zzg»gz!*g»âjw

»gz!*g»âjwÔçZ]Zzg"$©545é GGGEGV

0*GZgçÙF,¹Æa®Õä NVçÙZPxãCŠ~ÑoìXZ!xÅ§sÇ'×yâà‚w
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~ZŸ†âgLÅâ8-6,'áYñÇX™g@ÆazWeä6,”ZN[Æ
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t£òaZzZgÃL™äÆa.e$ñizVz‰ÜìTÆa¢zg~ìā0*gFÆ
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J
ƒ**ÑiòÑoìXZöWgZz
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£/záµxZ]qÝ7ƒDXøgZtg{ìāWIÅÆaxzgC¿ÃD¯c*
YñZzg0*Œ~(,~p´VË0*Œ$åO]ÆZ!xÆˆ„”gs™ZðYNX

ÐiZZ+6�ÛhVÅ§sÐ 15 Æ�WIÅ~ZÒuât»gc*V ADP 16-21

34%
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eZ],Iig7g^
YÃZ!x5+k,ƒäzZá‚wÆaeZ],Iig7g^›We^”{â1CÍØZg}&4øFGIL}.#Ö÷X 2019 �y 30 Z&+kñR,v™ÆeZ],IiÅY+$Ð

ZzgZW,Z‹âˆ ií’n’^l â1C}òÔ

Y2018 Y2019 YÃZ!x5+k,ƒäzZá‚wÆâ1C}òZzg+B{3}é
GE

G]Šg`fs÷: 2019 �y 30

gz9( '000')
15,771,860 13,714,975 o«Ẑiü;

(6,480)   (492) Švù¦Äg{Y]',Zñ‚wi%æGLc
12,412 273,792 ‚—Ðv”{)H”{o«

15,777,792 13,989,259

ií’n’^l
2,358,000 2,554,500 gz9°¥( 30 ª 300% Y: 2018) gz9°¥ 32.50 ª 325% @ ªˆg~e-i+&+ .1

2,554,500 1,965,000 gz9°¥( 32.50 ª 325% Y: 2018) gz9°¥ 25 ª 250% @ ŠzuẐg~e-i+&+ .2

2,554,500 2,358,000 gz9°¥( 32.50 ª 325% Y: 2018) gz9°¥ 30 ª 300% @ ŠẐg~e-i+&+ .3

6,877,500 6,877,500

8,310,792 7,111,759 Z!Ä‚w6,WÐv™Š{)H”{o«
ZW,Z‹âˆ

3,537,000 2,161,500 gz9°¥( 45 ª 450% Y: 2018 gz9°¥) 27.50 ª 275% @ Xéi{îe-i+&+
4,500,000 4,500,000 ¾wgm,gz~Xéi{Ã
8,037,000 6,661,500

200.66 174.49 ãCŠ~Zzg¹”{Wæã°¥

/Å»Y,̂{Zzg»gz!*g»âjw
/v»Y,̂{
/™g@Æ‚B©]

0*gFZzguzk - /@�Û†
/™«Ô¡Zzgâj1]
/‘ðgÁgw
/W6,:
/ZÎgÂ(ßY

Çh-VÐWÐ—F,Îa - /»g7gf$�Yf)ŠZg~
/»g7gf$ç5]ZzǵzŸ¬»

vÅãCŠ~u¤/xV

Y~0*Îy~Zq-ê™vÆîg6, 1989 Z&+kñR,v™)v(Šc
Y~HåXvÆ‰Å 1993 Zïg7gf$ƒð¶ZzgZkäˆgCaZzZg»W¸i#

yh+z�Ûz|#0*ÎyZ6uZÞâ~ÅYCìXv»ãCŠ~»x0*Îy~I-N*Çh-VÅ
ZÔÔ%³zZgÃ8-ZzgâgÌ÷X

â1C»g™ŠÏ»ù¦Y,̂{
Çh-VÅ CBU Zzg CKD YÃZ!x5+k,ƒäzZá‚wÆŠzgZy 2019 �y 30

-Û�Ûz|#ƒñ¸X 64,000 -ÛƒŠH²¦/‚̧w 66,211 �Ûz|#»w

139.71 tgz9ì�¦/‚̧wÅWæã 15,799 Wæã net vÅûÐƒäzZà
tgz9ƒŠH�¦/¸ 13.71 Áƒ™ 13% ic*Š{ìX@*ëo«ẐiL 13% gz9Ð

tgz9åXù¦Wæã~ZŸ±»ãCŠ~:LI-N*™zÑÅ�Ûz|#~ZŸ† 15.77 ‚w
o«~¶»ãCŠ~:L0*Îygz9ÅZ%OeZ°ZzgY0*ã+Æ£«~Šg net å²

ÑJV~ZŸ†ìX input ~¶ÆË~ƒäzZÑ

¸ò�Zä~vÅ§sÐz

tgz9¦™Zñ�Ó!ïGL0*ÎyÆŠzgZÈ 52.30 ŠzgZÈ‚wvä¸ò�Zä~
Y~vÅZïg7gcÆˆÐv¸ò 1989 áCìX 1% ‚w®ÿ N¦™Š{g-Š»

tgz9Ðic*Š{¦™Z_ìX 418.3 �Zä~
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(6,480)   (492) Švù¦Äg{Y]',Zñ‚wi%æGLc
12,412 273,792 ‚—Ðv”{)H”{o«

15,777,792 13,989,259

ií’n’^l
2,358,000 2,554,500 gz9°¥( 30 ª 300% Y: 2018) gz9°¥ 32.50 ª 325% @ ªˆg~e-i+&+ .1

2,554,500 1,965,000 gz9°¥( 32.50 ª 325% Y: 2018) gz9°¥ 25 ª 250% @ ŠzuẐg~e-i+&+ .2

2,554,500 2,358,000 gz9°¥( 32.50 ª 325% Y: 2018) gz9°¥ 30 ª 300% @ ŠẐg~e-i+&+ .3

6,877,500 6,877,500

8,310,792 7,111,759 Z!Ä‚w6,WÐv™Š{)H”{o«
ZW,Z‹âˆ

3,537,000 2,161,500 gz9°¥( 45 ª 450% Y: 2018 gz9°¥) 27.50 ª 275% @ Xéi{îe-i+&+
4,500,000 4,500,000 ¾wgm,gz~Xéi{Ã
8,037,000 6,661,500

200.66 174.49 ãCŠ~Zzg¹”{Wæã°¥

/Å»Y,̂{Zzg»gz!*g»âjw
/v»Y,̂{
/™g@Æ‚B©]

0*gFZzguzk - /@�Û†
/™«Ô¡Zzgâj1]
/‘ðgÁgw
/W6,:
/ZÎgÂ(ßY

Çh-VÐWÐ—F,Îa - /»g7gf$�Yf)ŠZg~
/»g7gf$ç5]ZzǵzŸ¬»

vÅãCŠ~u¤/xV

Y~0*Îy~Zq-ê™vÆîg6, 1989 Z&+kñR,v™)v(Šc
Y~HåXvÆ‰Å 1993 Zïg7gf$ƒð¶ZzgZkäˆgCaZzZg»W¸i#

yh+z�Ûz|#0*ÎyZ6uZÞâ~ÅYCìXv»ãCŠ~»x0*Îy~I-N*Çh-VÅ
ZÔÔ%³zZgÃ8-ZzgâgÌ÷X

â1C»g™ŠÏ»ù¦Y,̂{
Çh-VÅ CBU Zzg CKD YÃZ!x5+k,ƒäzZá‚wÆŠzgZy 2019 �y 30

-Û�Ûz|#ƒñ¸X 64,000 -ÛƒŠH²¦/‚̧w 66,211 �Ûz|#»w

139.71 tgz9ì�¦/‚̧wÅWæã 15,799 Wæã net vÅûÐƒäzZà
tgz9ƒŠH�¦/¸ 13.71 Áƒ™ 13% ic*Š{ìX@*ëo«ẐiL 13% gz9Ð

tgz9åXù¦Wæã~ZŸ±»ãCŠ~:LI-N*™zÑÅ�Ûz|#~ZŸ† 15.77 ‚w
o«~¶»ãCŠ~:L0*Îygz9ÅZ%OeZ°ZzgY0*ã+Æ£«~Šg net å²

ÑJV~ZŸ†ìX input ~¶ÆË~ƒäzZÑ

¸ò�Zä~vÅ§sÐz

tgz9¦™Zñ�Ó!ïGL0*ÎyÆŠzgZÈ 52.30 ŠzgZÈ‚wvä¸ò�Zä~
Y~vÅZïg7gcÆˆÐv¸ò 1989 áCìX 1% ‚w®ÿ N¦™Š{g-Š»

tgz9Ðic*Š{¦™Z_ìX 418.3 �Zä~

7,467,000

eZ],Iig7g^
YÃZ!x5+k,ƒäzZá‚wÆaeZ],Iig7g^›We^”{â1CÍØZg}&4øFGIL}.#Ö÷X 2019 �y 30 Z&+kñR,v™ÆeZ],IiÅY+$Ð

ZzgZW,Z‹âˆ ií’n’^l â1C}òÔ

Y2018 Y2019 YÃZ!x5+k,ƒäzZá‚wÆâ1C}òZzg+B{3}é
GE

G]Šg`fs÷: 2019 �y 30

gz9( '000')
15,771,860 13,714,975 o«Ẑiü;

(6,480)   (492) Švù¦Äg{Y]',Zñ‚wi%æGLc
12,412 273,792 ‚—Ðv”{)H”{o«

15,777,792 13,989,259

ií’n’^l
2,358,000 2,554,500 gz9°¥( 30 ª 300% Y: 2018) gz9°¥ 32.50 ª 325% @ ªˆg~e-i+&+ .1

2,554,500 1,965,000 gz9°¥( 32.50 ª 325% Y: 2018) gz9°¥ 25 ª 250% @ ŠzuẐg~e-i+&+ .2

2,554,500 2,358,000 gz9°¥( 32.50 ª 325% Y: 2018) gz9°¥ 30 ª 300% @ ŠẐg~e-i+&+ .3

6,877,500 6,877,500

8,310,792 7,111,759 Z!Ä‚w6,WÐv™Š{)H”{o«
ZW,Z‹âˆ

3,537,000 2,161,500 gz9°¥( 45 ª 450% Y: 2018 gz9°¥) 27.50 ª 275% @ Xéi{îe-i+&+
4,500,000 4,500,000 ¾wgm,gz~Xéi{Ã
8,037,000 6,661,500

200.66 174.49 ãCŠ~Zzg¹”{Wæã°¥

/Å»Y,̂{Zzg»gz!*g»âjw
/v»Y,̂{
/™g@Æ‚B©]

0*gFZzguzk - /@�Û†
/™«Ô¡Zzgâj1]
/‘ðgÁgw
/W6,:
/ZÎgÂ(ßY

Çh-VÐWÐ—F,Îa - /»g7gf$�Yf)ŠZg~
/»g7gf$ç5]ZzǵzŸ¬»

vÅãCŠ~u¤/xV

Y~0*Îy~Zq-ê™vÆîg6, 1989 Z&+kñR,v™)v(Šc
Y~HåXvÆ‰Å 1993 Zïg7gf$ƒð¶ZzgZkäˆgCaZzZg»W¸i#

yh+z�Ûz|#0*ÎyZ6uZÞâ~ÅYCìXv»ãCŠ~»x0*Îy~I-N*Çh-VÅ
ZÔÔ%³zZgÃ8-ZzgâgÌ÷X

â1C»g™ŠÏ»ù¦Y,̂{
Çh-VÅ CBU Zzg CKD YÃZ!x5+k,ƒäzZá‚wÆŠzgZy 2019 �y 30

-Û�Ûz|#ƒñ¸X 64,000 -ÛƒŠH²¦/‚̧w 66,211 �Ûz|#»w

139.71 tgz9ì�¦/‚̧wÅWæã 15,799 Wæã net vÅûÐƒäzZà
tgz9ƒŠH�¦/¸ 13.71 Áƒ™ 13% ic*Š{ìX@*ëo«ẐiL 13% gz9Ð

tgz9åXù¦Wæã~ZŸ±»ãCŠ~:LI-N*™zÑÅ�Ûz|#~ZŸ† 15.77 ‚w
o«~¶»ãCŠ~:L0*Îygz9ÅZ%OeZ°ZzgY0*ã+Æ£«~Šg net å²

ÑJV~ZŸ†ìX input ~¶ÆË~ƒäzZÑ

¸ò�Zä~vÅ§sÐz

tgz9¦™Zñ�Ó!ïGL0*ÎyÆŠzgZÈ 52.30 ŠzgZÈ‚wvä¸ò�Zä~
Y~vÅZïg7gcÆˆÐv¸ò 1989 áCìX 1% ‚w®ÿ N¦™Š{g-Š»

tgz9Ðic*Š{¦™Z_ìX 418.3 �Zä~

157.99

eZ],Iig7g^
YÃZ!x5+k,ƒäzZá‚wÆaeZ],Iig7g^›We^”{â1CÍØZg}&4øFGIL}.#Ö÷X 2019 �y 30 Z&+kñR,v™ÆeZ],IiÅY+$Ð

ZzgZW,Z‹âˆ ií’n’^l â1C}òÔ

Y2018 Y2019 YÃZ!x5+k,ƒäzZá‚wÆâ1C}òZzg+B{3}é
GE

G]Šg`fs÷: 2019 �y 30

gz9( '000')
15,771,860 13,714,975 o«Ẑiü;

(6,480)   (492) Švù¦Äg{Y]',Zñ‚wi%æGLc
12,412 273,792 ‚—Ðv”{)H”{o«

15,777,792 13,989,259

ií’n’^l
2,358,000 2,554,500 gz9°¥( 30 ª 300% Y: 2018) gz9°¥ 32.50 ª 325% @ ªˆg~e-i+&+ .1

2,554,500 1,965,000 gz9°¥( 32.50 ª 325% Y: 2018) gz9°¥ 25 ª 250% @ ŠzuẐg~e-i+&+ .2

2,554,500 2,358,000 gz9°¥( 32.50 ª 325% Y: 2018) gz9°¥ 30 ª 300% @ ŠẐg~e-i+&+ .3

6,877,500 6,877,500

8,310,792 7,111,759 Z!Ä‚w6,WÐv™Š{)H”{o«
ZW,Z‹âˆ

3,537,000 2,161,500 gz9°¥( 45 ª 450% Y: 2018 gz9°¥) 27.50 ª 275% @ Xéi{îe-i+&+
4,500,000 4,500,000 ¾wgm,gz~Xéi{Ã
8,037,000 6,661,500

200.66 174.49 ãCŠ~Zzg¹”{Wæã°¥

/Å»Y,̂{Zzg»gz!*g»âjw
/v»Y,̂{
/™g@Æ‚B©]

0*gFZzguzk - /@�Û†
/™«Ô¡Zzgâj1]
/‘ðgÁgw
/W6,:
/ZÎgÂ(ßY

Çh-VÐWÐ—F,Îa - /»g7gf$�Yf)ŠZg~
/»g7gf$ç5]ZzǵzŸ¬»

vÅãCŠ~u¤/xV

Y~0*Îy~Zq-ê™vÆîg6, 1989 Z&+kñR,v™)v(Šc
Y~HåXvÆ‰Å 1993 Zïg7gf$ƒð¶ZzgZkäˆgCaZzZg»W¸i#

yh+z�Ûz|#0*ÎyZ6uZÞâ~ÅYCìXv»ãCŠ~»x0*Îy~I-N*Çh-VÅ
ZÔÔ%³zZgÃ8-ZzgâgÌ÷X

â1C»g™ŠÏ»ù¦Y,̂{
Çh-VÅ CBU Zzg CKD YÃZ!x5+k,ƒäzZá‚wÆŠzgZy 2019 �y 30

-Û�Ûz|#ƒñ¸X 64,000 -ÛƒŠH²¦/‚̧w 66,211 �Ûz|#»w

139.71 tgz9ì�¦/‚̧wÅWæã 15,799 Wæã net vÅûÐƒäzZà
tgz9ƒŠH�¦/¸ 13.71 Áƒ™ 13% ic*Š{ìX@*ëo«ẐiL 13% gz9Ð

tgz9åXù¦Wæã~ZŸ±»ãCŠ~:LI-N*™zÑÅ�Ûz|#~ZŸ† 15.77 ‚w
o«~¶»ãCŠ~:L0*Îygz9ÅZ%OeZ°ZzgY0*ã+Æ£«~Šg net å²

ÑJV~ZŸ†ìX input ~¶ÆË~ƒäzZÑ

¸ò�Zä~vÅ§sÐz

tgz9¦™Zñ�Ó!ïGL0*ÎyÆŠzgZÈ 52.30 ŠzgZÈ‚wvä¸ò�Zä~
Y~vÅZïg7gcÆˆÐv¸ò 1989 áCìX 1% ‚w®ÿ N¦™Š{g-Š»

tgz9Ðic*Š{¦™Z_ìX 418.3 �Zä~

ن ی �ب
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S:]6,SàÂzŠîìXZkK~ë¼ŠZŠZâ]™D÷!5Õä
ISøg}́$4h½ð G^

)ITÞ‘ðâewÃǵ(»éZzgŠvfgZùÐ�Ûzr@*āúZxZÜkÃWðZ* THUMS

Çh-V~4+™õS:]Ð0WÇ„qÝƒX CKD  ÏÅÓx

WðZ*Ï6,½z�ZzgZOŠ™äzZá™g@¯äZzg‡ìgppÆaë0*Îy½~ZL
e’iÆ‚B÷á:tK:»x™D÷XëZLe’iÃI-N*Çhc*V�Ûz|#™ä~çz-$
ÆaZK¡¬]ÔẐi�Ûz|#uzkZzgZ-I-N*0*gFÐ0Óx¥â]Å�ÛZb6,
¢gnp÷XëF,‰z}(6,z¤/ZñVZzgF,šMÆfg)ZLpÅÃuZ0+Zi~
çz-$™D÷X

ËvÆa»x!»Ç£gtƒ@*ìāQkÆ™g@QkÐÄpl÷X¸øgZ
ÌZëF,+ÑìZzgZkÆ”wÆaë4+£gÅ¡¬]ZzgIZi�Ûz|#Zzg
Ẑi�Ûz|#uzk�ÛZë™D÷ZzgÃÒ™D÷ā™g@ÃZ(Š/qÝƒāz{ZKÓx
´¢zgc*]Æaë6,ZOŠ™,X…Zˆkìāi%æGLY,̂{‚w¼Z±gÐ»°
ÂåYè¼Š!*g†V~p~ƒðÔ�øg}Z(gÐ!*CÙ¶Ô@*āgz9ÅŠg
~Ze7-Zzg(,~¶Ô8gwZ7,̂e-KÆZe7-Z:tZzg0*Œ~Šv¼Š
p=VÐûÃXëZKèÃg{ZzgŠvÃlYg~gOÐ@*ā™g@ÅÂu]Ð

WÐ(,|™Zy»½z�ZzgZOŠqÝ™ÃX

=tCDƒñpÙƒg„ìāWðZ*ÏÆ1geWseZ],IiäËgZÉðZzgù]
�ÛZë™ä»ŸYg~g3ì@*ā¢oÍg›ÃD¯c*YñZzgZOðÃ‚w½̧W,Z0+Zi

�ÛZëKYNX input ~j,Z‚ÛZðZzg

i%æGLY,̂{‚wÆŠzgZypŠœãCŠ6,1geÅ»g™ŠÏZzģW,e$»Y,̂{1ŠHì@*āZk

!*]ÃD¯c*Yñā»xÆ4+§jÚZ(gKYgì÷X

vÆZq-Z‚ÏeZ],IZzg¬ƒeZ],I»[�ÛqŠfzZ3g1geWseZ],IiÆ
¥ÁÅwÐgð],ƒñZzgQyÅ(°Zß‰Ü»[/ZyZ}ÔÃHgHŠHX1ge
»[�ÛqŠfzZ3gÅË}.â]ÃyZ•d7™@*ìZzgvÅ§sÐZy»]tZŠZ™@*
ìX1ge»[/ZyÔÃÌMÅwÐplWæh+HìX

i%æGLY,̂{‚wÆŠzgZy0*õ1ge)ÂƒNX~1geÃvÆW6,:Ô745Í-?ç FGEE
EEZzg1ge

ÆzjyÆ_.£œÅŠÅY+$7gÄÐWÇ{HŠHXtøgZZ³Ziìā
øg}0*kI-N*Å¬@¥â]ÑäzZá)$ÓÀö NZ�ÛZŠZzg"uŠ/»gZzg‡&ÿELZ�Zx

�ÛZë™D÷X input 0*ÎEV»½7gZâZ`ñ�Šì�!*‡°ÏÐ!*pgZÉðZzg
ë{mîg6,ZKWe^wÆZg»y»]tZŠZ™D÷�Z•ð-ZzgÚY,̂}»

ZZŠ™D÷@*āZk!*]ÃD¯c*YñāëçZ]Å7|ZzgZy~¶ÔZzg4+
»g7gf$§hVÅzYg~gOX

Wy~$4è MG1geWseZ],IiÅ§sÐÓxZ·ƒ®gi»v~QyÆÚ½zÐ
ZzgZOŠÆa]tZŠZ™@*ƒVX1geZzg~œāîg6,WðZ*ÏšÆCÙ¥ÁÆ‡g÷
ZzgëvÆaQyÆ)â²w¬zyZzgZÜm»Z‹Zs™D÷XëÅ~ZK
ªŠ]',ŒÛZggppÆa%æFN³x÷ZzgZvg„ZÅçEO]Ð™¬™D÷āøg~Ã@V~

…»x[™}X)W}(

ZZöÔ
ç}Z&+kñR,v™
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ç}»Y,̂{
³m,¥ƒ®gi

Y~Z#Ð«™zÑ»gƒðÔZ&+kñR,väZL7g}W6,:~ 1993

L»,̂yó)Ú4~(Æ�Ã‡ìgppZzgLI-N*z}ó6,»gÈg�ÅÃÒÅìXZy
ZŠZâ]Æ‚B‚Bøg}Óx¥ƒ®giZzg™g@Åçz-$ä…ƒÐ!*z‡g
',Z&+“WZzg÷ÏZzg»g™ŠÏÅ0*GZg¥VJ-îÆ‡.Þ¯c*ìXW`ëZK!*]»W¸i
ZL™g@Zzg¥ƒ®giÅÚ1C„ZzgzZÕÆaZyÆ]�Ð™D÷X

‚J-Åbiï NGgz~áµìÔZzg 3 Ð 2.5 »gz!*g~yZy~¬@çÙF,¹~
ZkŠgxãgëgÅF,¹ÃÌçZ]Ñh÷TÅzzÐŠ*Æ¼Š”V~F,ªC{
aZƒä»ZkyìX%Íz§hVÃ»™äzZà(ß;.ç EGEÆ‚B¬@»gz!*g~Âx~
(,}eä6,Éƒg„ìT~̧x6,4Ô6,z"5½n.ç

HGIEExªŠgWæZ]6,LÆfg)£ò
ÅÃ)$ÓÀö N)“Ðôpgpp»¿ÔZzgZ%MZzguÆŠgxyˆgCkB~

ª-g8-2Ð-**ŠkxÆyz`ÔZzg¼Š Brexit ZŸ±»rÑ@*ƒZç{Ô
(ÏÚi¬]¬@eä6,°xDaZ™gì÷X - Zgè

z,WðZ*Zp6,z¤/Zx»W¸iƒŠHìX¦/¸ 13 ñ�Š{âà‚wÆZ!x6,0*ÎyÆ
6,z¤/ZñV~‚|#Ð0XF,ZçÅµ/È~Å¶̂z{qÝ:ƒÃXi%æGLY,̂{
$åO]ÆŠzgZygz9ÅŠg~¹¶ƒðÔZÚÆÅÑ²ŠztÐÌic*Š{ƒIÔ
ÂZ**ðÅ†V~“ZŸ†ƒZÔAe-KZzggc{~e-K~“ZŸ†ƒZZzgŠ*zm,~¿
Ã4¯äZzgLÅuzŠ~ZŸ±Æa¼ŠZŠZâ]K‰÷X

Z¤/pëuÃŠ*zm,~¿Ð¦/ZgäZzgLÅuzŠ~ZŸ±ÅÓäÃ@VÅ½7g
×e$™D÷ptÌ¢zg~ìāF,ZçZzg50*ÎVÃ’góZzg‡&ÿEL¿Z0+Zi~**Ç
HYñ@*āâgLÃZyp=VÆa»gƒäZzgZyÆ_.F,ç™äÆa
{§pZ{z‰ÜAX

i%æGLY,̂{‚wÆŠzgZy0*Œ~¼Šp´VWIñâø6,ZW,Z0+ZiƒNXŠ*zm,”{
WIñâÅÃ0*ÈHŠHāLÃb:™äzZßVÃÇhc*V�Ûz|#:ÅYNXẐiZVt

ÐiZZ+zZàÇh-VÆaºm™Š~ˆZzgQ»ƒ̂X0*Îy~ 1300cc 0*È~¬
‚8gwZ7,̂e-K”gs™ZðˆXZkÃÌ¯g~ 10 “WzZàÜsZq-Çh~L¯gw3,ó6,

J-ÅÓxÇh-V6,¬Z+™Šc*ŠHZzgƒÐZëtā!*sy@*i{ 1700cc îg6,ps™Æ
7.5 ‚ÐÁ™Æ 10 ZzgZkÐ(,~Çh-VÆa 2000cc F,+P~ZkÃ

‚ÅZq-Zzg8gw 5 ‚Zzg 2.5  ÐgKÇh-VÆa 2000cc ‚™Šc*ŠHZzg
Z7,̂e-K”gs™ZŠ~ˆX!*g!*gZ+(,~p=VÐŠgxãZzgîs$åO]Åµ/
È~6,tZW,Z]%A$ƒMh÷£òZzgÎZŅ̃Zòuât»gzV»ZOŠOW,ƒYìX

5âà‚wÆW¸i6,èÃg{"‡°{p=VÆù¦ZW,Æ‚B‚BZŸ°Ae-K
‚ZŸ±Ôgz9ÅŠg~¶ZzgZ7,̂e-K»ù¦ZW,tƒZā 5 ‚Ð 2.5  ~

WIñâ»gàÇy†V~"‡1ZŸ±™ä6,6gƒ‰TÆË~â8-Ì
”h+OW,ƒðX

YÆË~âgL~6WäzZßVÅ 2016-2021 WIñâezC0*Œ
§sÐ¼Šuât»gc*Vƒð÷XZy5�Û'×ÃZq-ZëZzg)²:ÃZ+{qÝì:
ŠgWæ”{0*gF6,ÁAe-KÅZŠZ5XZy�Û'×»âgL~ŠZ¼7g~ÅÆaÔT

U*"$ 85Í-B5ë FGEEE
Y Zzg6�Û&÷áï÷ÔZzg�¬„dZy»DgìÔ OEMs ~ñ�Š{

ƒÏXë0*Œ‚iZ�ÛZŠÐ¦/Zgl™D÷ā0*gFÅŠgWæÅOñ£ò0*gF
ÃgiÃg¬tŠ}™£òÃ8-Åj,Z‚ÛZð™,X

Ó#Ö»ZEw”{Çh-VÅ)‡âãZzg)Š*zm,”{ŠgWæ6,0*È~»ZŠZx"upl
WÒìXëÓ#ÖÃ@*N™D÷āZyZŠZâ]6,cgWæYg~gÇXt̀P]qZ:
ZŠZxîs²áÐ£[åZzgëÓä0*Œ‚iZ�ÛZŠÃyZ•d7™D÷X

ziZg]',ZññACp~Z¼uÇh-VÆa50*Œ”gs™ZäÆaÃéu
Çhc*VÔ- cell Z0+Zi~»x™g„ìXI-N*Zq-Š;ðI„;$eÇhc*VÔ;[+gzXAw

Sy;$eiZzgZ¼uÇhc*V”gs™Z™¼Š(ßæV~¬@R6,ZKªŠ]‡ì™_
ìX0*Îy‰F,¹5+k,$Óë N~ñACp~ÆZÃãCŠ~ZK̈ã¢zg]ÆzWÚø
~ZÌŠ~YãecÔZzgZkÆaZŠZâ]»W¸iqgzfs‡VÐƒ**ec:ÅW

&4o-?ç
FG

E
E »™s0*ãÔ™Ã1äÎä»¿ÔtBïGL¬)Ô½ÔÇh-VÐŠðN»ZyZ`ÔpZ{

Çhc*VƒVc*$Óë N½~‚âyÅF,−ÆaZEwƒäzZà#̄Çhc*VÔZzgÅZzg
aZzZgÐƒäzZàWßŠÏX

…Z¼uÇh-VÅXéi{0*ŒÐ06,ö~ñ�Š¥â]6,"u¡÷ìXZk
0*ŒÐª]Z0îg6,Z¼uÇh-VÅŠgWæZ]Åj,Z‚ÛZðƒCìÔQe-KZzgû

LÐƒäzZàWæã»“vyƒ@*ìÔß¯,̂cÅÔƒCìÔeZ°»$Óë NÐZyZ`
ƒ@*ìÔâ™c*V»ƒC÷ZzgŠvt}òä3÷X´z{Zi,Ôt0*ŒZq-Ü~¯ðˆ
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Form of Proxy 
Thirtieth Annual General Meeting 

I/We,__________________________________________________________________________________

of ____________________________________________________________________________________                                          

being a member(s) of INDUS MOTOR COMPANY LIMITED, holder of _________________________

ordinary shares, as per Folio No. / CDC Participant ID & A/c No. ______________ hereby appoint 

Mr./Mrs./Ms.__________________________________________________Folio No. / CDC Participant 

ID & A/c No. __________________ of  ___________________________________, as my /our proxy 

in my/ our absence to attend and vote for me/ us and on my/our behalf at the Thirtieth Annual 

General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 08, 2019 and / or any adjournment thereof.

Signed under my / our hand this _____________ day of _________ 2019.

								        -------------------------------------

Signed in the presence of:

Witness 1 Witness 2

Signature __________________________ Signature ___________________________

Name __________________________ Name ___________________________

CNIC / Passport No. __________________________ CNIC / Passport No. ___________________________

Address __________________________ Address ___________________________
NOTES

1.	 This proxy form duly completed and signed, must be received at the office of the Company’s Share 
Registrar, not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting. 

2.	 he Company, except 
that a corporation may appoint a person who is not a member.

3.	 If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instrument of proxy are deposited 
by a member with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

For CDC Account Holders/ Corporate Entities:

In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met:

i)	 The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers 
shall be mentioned on the form.

ii)	 Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished 
with the proxy form.

iii)	 The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of meeting.

iv)	 In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen 
signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) alongwith proxy form to the 
Company.

Affix revenue 
stamp of 
Rs 5/-

Signature 
(Sign should agree with specimen 

registered with the Company)
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CDC House, 99-B, Block “B”, S.M.C.H.S., Main 
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400.
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Electronic Dividend Mandate Form
Indus Motor Company Limited

In accordance with the provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, and Companies (Distribution 
of Dividend) Regulations, 2017, it is mandatory that dividend payable in cash shall only be paid through 
electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholder. 

Shareholders are requested to send the attached Form duly filled and signed, along with attested copy 
of their CNIC to the Company’s Share Registrar, M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services Ltd., CDC House, 
99-B, Block-B, SMCHS, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi. CDC shareholders are requested to submit their 
Dividend Mandate Form and attested copy of CNIC directly to their broker (participant)/CDC.

I hereby communicate to receive my future dividends directly in my Bank account as detailed below:

Name of shareholder		  :--------------------------------------------------------------------------

Folio Number/CDC Account No.		 : ----------------------------of Indus Motor Company Limited. 

Contact number of shareholder		  : --------------------------------------------------------------------------

Title of Account		  : --------------------------------------------------------------------------

IBAN (*)		  : --------------------------------------------------------------------------

Name of Bank		  : --------------------------------------------------------------------------

Bank branch		  : --------------------------------------------------------------------------

Mailing Address of Branch		  : --------------------------------------------------------------------------

CNIC No. (attach attested copy)	 : --------------------------------------------------------------------------

NTN (in case of corporate entity)	: --------------------------------------------------------------------------

It is stated that the above particulars given by me are correct and to the best of my knowledge; I shall keep 
the Company informed in case of any changes in the said particulars in future.

Shareholder’s Signature                     Date

NOTES:

* 	 Please provide complete IBAN (International Bank Account Number), after checking with your 
concerned Bank branch to enable electronic credit directly into your bank account.
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TOYOTA QUETTA MOTORS
Postal Address: Toyota Quetta Motors, 
Airport Road Quetta, Quetta, Pakistan
E-mail: info@toyotaquettamotors.com
Contact No: (081) 2301805

TOYOTA JHELUM MOTORS
Postal Address: G.T Road, Opposite PTC 
Factory, Jhelum, Punjab
E-mail: info@toyotajhelum.com
Contact No:  (0544) 275467




